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This has been a transformational year for Cable

& Wireless Communications (CWC). There has

been continued demand for mobile data, and we
have reduced our operating costs, particularly in

the Caribbean. The sale of our Islands and Macau
divisions has focused our business on Panama and
the Caribbean - a region we call pan-America. These
continuing operations are therefore the focus of this
report. The reshaping of our business positions us
for future growth.
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Highlights

Highlights below are detailed for the Group,
with reported numbers for our continuing

business in italics.

Revenue

The income from sales of our
products and services.

EBITDA

This measure of trading profit
provides a guide to our ongoing
performance.

Capital expenditure

Our spending on the plant and
equipment for our business.

Operating cash flow

A measure of cash collected to
fund our ongoing operations.

Adjusted earnings
per share

The amount we earn for each
share in our Company.

Full year dividend

The amount paid out for each
share in our Company.

Percentages represent change on 2011/12 results

Group

US$2.9bn
0%

US$905m

US$347m

(15%)

US$558m

13%

US6.6¢

US4c

Continuing business

US$1.9bn
(4%)

US$589m
0%

US$263m
(16%)

US$326m
18%

US1.9c
12%
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Our business in brief

Our business is based in pan-America,
a region consisting of the countries which
lie in and around the Caribbean basin.

Where we operate

We can trace our involvement in the region back to
the 1870s and have been supporting the development
of its telecoms infrastructure since that ime

We control 14 businesses within the Caribbean, with
the largest markets being Jama:rca, The Bahamas and
Barbados We also hold a minority stake in TSTTin
Trinidad and Tobago In Central America we are the
leading operator in Panama

Across the reglon we have an extensive grid of
sub-sea cable networks and sell carrier services
1n 40 countries

We are also the majority shareholder in Monaco
Telecom, Monaco's leading telecoms operator

Key facts

Our brands

Panama

cwmovil com mastvdigital com cwpanama com
Caribbean

lime com btebahamas com

3.5m* 2.9m* 319,000°

Population of Panama Population of Jamaica Population of The Bahamas

*Source CIA World Factbook
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QOur services

Our network connects

the lives of our customers.

.

Athome

Triple play and quad play
In several locations we
enable customers to
purchase good value
combinations of our pay
TV, broadband, fixed line
and mobile services

In the community
Sactal telecoms

We help governments to
improve the efficiency
and cost of delivering
public servicesin areas
such as healthcare,
emergency services, law
and order and online
education

Atwork

Managed services and
data centres

We manage major
projects to upgrade and
install telecoms services
for businesses We also
store data securely on
behalf of businesses and
governments

Key facts

29%

Mobile data penetration

for CWC1n 2012/13

.

e

Our networks

Mobile

Our mobile networks

enable customers to make

calls, send messages and

access the internet We

- have 3 4 rmllion mobile
customers

sene s . e -

Broadband

We provide high speed
fixed broadband to
homes and workplaces
Increasing broadband
speed and rehability
isimportant to our
customers as the amount
of services, applications
and internet-enabled
devicesincreases We
have 366,000 broadband
customers

Ve e e

Fixed line
We own fixed line
networks enabling us
to provide landhne
and other services
to customers, from

. residential subscribers

- through to large-

scale enterprises and
governments Fixed line
is the backbone which
supports our other
networks, We have
1 I milhion fixed line
customers

Between nations
Carrier

Our extensive sub-sca
cable network gnid
carries voice and data
traffic internationally
on behalf of consumers,
enterprises and other
telecoms operators

85,000 26

People in 2012 who were helped  Sub-sea and terrestnal
by calling the 911 emergency cable systems

services platform that we

provide tn Panama City




Chairman’s review

“We will now run our businesses,
in the Caribbean and Panama,
as a unified operation.”

Sir Richard Lapthome, CBE
Chafrman

2012/13 Highlights

— Dividend of
1S4 cents

— Agreed sale of
majority of Monaco
& Islands division for
US$680 million

— Agreed sale of Macau
division for a total
consideration of

‘ US$750 milhon
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2012/13 has been a milestone year for our Company

It has been a year in which we executed several key
strategic initiatives, most notably selling our Macau and
Islands businesses to focus the Group on one region —
pan-America

Cable & Wireless Commusnications’ historic operating
model has been as a telecoms ‘finance house’, owning
and manageng a portfolio of assets The strategrc shift
we have undertaken during the year has converted the
Group to being a telecoms operator

We will now run our businesses, in the Caribbean

and Panama, as a unified operation This will nvolve
establishing a totally different structure for managing
the Group and 1ts operations, with the Group's central
function and operational control co-located in a new
faciity in the region

with this structure we will be able to reduce the layers
of management, bring our best talent to exercise
management control across the region and reinforce
the accountability of our front line managers

It 15 a clear break from the traditional approach of
CWC, and Cable & Wireless Group before that, but it

is the orgamisational approach that best captures the
opportunity for our business and hence for establishing
sustainable value for the firm

The fundamental drivers of our business remain strong
In the pan-America region demand for the mobile and
fixed data services we provide 1s growing Our business
posted a 34% increase in mobile data service revenues
in 2012/13 and the penetration of data services in the
regon is stifl below developed markets such as the US
and Europe




Positive value

“The fundamental drivers of our business
remain strong. In the pan-America
region demand for the mobile and fixed
data services we provide is growing.”

A focus on governance

The Board rerains committed to the high
standards of corporate governance that we
have developed over several years

Key Performance Indicators

We track a range of measures to monitor
our operations and services

For more information — 38

For more information—» 14

Ahead of full implementation of the changed approach

we are also improving the productivity of the business,
by tackling our cost base, particularly in the Caribbean

This will improve our margins as well as the services we
provide to customers

The new approach will, however, not affect our business
practices or corporate standards The growth and
development of this Group over its history has been
based on strong ethical principles, which will remain
firmly embedded 1n our organisation

We have always been a vital part of the communities we
serve — from prowviding the technology and networks
that our customers use to connect with each other, to
our support for the key institutions of the societies we
operate in

For example, we take a firm public stance against
corruption and unethical business practice Corruption
damages business, discourages investment, stifles
innovation and ultimately costs consumers CWC already
has rigorous procedures in place to attempt to prevent
improper activities in our business, and we have set
several further prionties to improve our practices, as
well as setting an example to our industry We have set
out further detail on our position in the CSR report on
pages 20 to 23

With all the activity during the year devoted to
progressing complex portfolio changes we were
constantly aware of the risk of distraction from our usual
attention to operational supervision However, amud a
very active year for the business, we have also achieved
a strong operating performance, dehvering the results
we forecast at the start of the year

Group revenue of US$1 9 billion and EBITDA of
Us$589 million represented a solid performance, and
our cash generation was strong For a full commentary
on the results, please see the Finance review on

pages 24 to 30

As we continue the process of change we remain
committed to mantaining returns to our shareholders
via our dividend The Board has recommended a dividend
of US4 cents for the 2012/13 year, and committed

to matntaining the US4 cents paymentin 2013714

We aim to progressively grow our dividend i line

with future performance

Finally, these results and the transformation of the
business would not have been possible without the
efforts of our committed colleagues Those who will
leave the Group with the disposals, and those who
remain, have done an excellent job in meeting the needs
of our customers On behalf of the Board, | thank them
all for their efforts

Sir Richard Lapthorne, CBE
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Chief Executive’s review

“We have set a target of
US$100 million of annual
cost savings to be achieved
over the next two years.”

Tony Rice
Chief Executive

2012/13 Hhghhghts

— US%$210 milhion
mobile data revenue
in Panama and the
Caribbean

— 17% increase in
Panama mobile
average revenue
per user

— 75,000 new mobile
customers in Jamaica
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2012/13 has been a successful year for Cable & Wireless
Communications, and brought our business 1o a key
inflection point

As a Group we achieved ‘structural coherence’ following
our announced divestments of the Macau and Islands
operations — a strategy we have pursued since our
demerger from Cable & Wireless Group in 2010

We are now a business focused entirely on one region,
pan-America, where we have a great platform from
which to build

This structural clarity aflows us to review our operating
model and management approach and make changes

to create a more unified, effective and cost-efficient
business The streamlined business will also help us to
adapt in the new age of telecoms where data rather than
voice 15 the primary product and customer priority

We have established a strong foundation from wiuch
to grow the business, our challenge I1s now to deliver

2012/13 Performance

The business perfermance in 2012/13 was sold, but
highlighted the unequivocal shift to a data-centric
marketplace

Mobile data revenue grew by 34% during the year

as our customers continued to rapidly migrate on to
smartphones In contrast our voice revenue declined,
particularly in fixed line services

in Panama the growth of mobile data drove a 3%
increase i mobile revenue, despite continued intense
competition in the market

Mobtle data made a similar contribution to strong
financial performance in The Bahamas, as our 4G
network came online We also continued to improve
efficency and customer experience in this market

Our Jamaica business has struggled in the face of mobile
competition in recent years, but following positive




requlatory changes our team launched a ternific frght-
back campaign and increased custemers by 16%

Trading conditions in the rest of the Caribbean were
challenging, but we continued to enhance the services
we deliver in markets with higher GDP and announced
plans to build fibre broadband networks in the Cayman
Islands and Barbados

We also demonstrated our abiity to tackle costs during
the year, with the outsourcing of our retail operations
in Barbados and our network management in Jamaica
contributing to a reduced cost base in the Canbbean

Performance in our other divisions, Macau and Monaco
& islands, was positive, with Monaco Telecom having
benefited from the elimination of loss-making activities
to post EBITDA 27% higher

New operating model

Having unified our business we can now bring our
management teams together, including moving

our senior management closer to our operations,

and most impertantly, closer to our customers We
have announced plans to establish a new corporate
headquarters in southern Florida, USA The Group will
remain hsted on the London Stock Exchange, but our
key corporate functions will be based in the new HQ
and our management team will take a more operational
approach

This fundamental change to our operating model will
enable us to drive significant cost out of the business
We have set a target of US$100 million of annual cost
savings to be achieved over the next two years The
savings will come through productivity improvement
and the realisation of synergies as we unify the business

This will improve our cash flow and margns, particularly
in our Caribbean business Our operating margin in the
Caribbean is currently 24% and we have set a target of
raising 1t to above 30% in the medium term

Mobile data

Investment
Proceeds from the disposals will also give us the financial
flexibility to invest in the future of CWC

Such investment will be focused on

— Organic — Quality network infrastructure and systems
to debiver the best possible customer experience

— Inorganic — Acquisitions that we can develop into full
service businesses within our target footprint

Hawving introduced high speed mobile data networks

in our key markets the next frontier is ‘Long Term
Evolution® technology which will enable our customers
to easily stream video on their smartphones We are in
the early stages of introducing this in The Bahamas and
expect to launch a commercial proposition in 2013/14

Customer service remains a cornerstone of what we do
and so we will continue to mvest in facilities that help us
to improve the experience we deliver

We have strict critena for making investments and
Return on Invested Capital, which we have broadly
maintained at the same level as n 2012/13, 15 an
important management measure We are targeting
improvements in future and key to that will be the
pricing and bundling of the mobile data bandwidth we
supply We have made progress on introducing tiered
pricing for mobile data services acress our business and
will continue to develop our customner information and
billing systems insupport of that

While we are saying goodbye to many valued colleagues
through our disposals, these are exciting times for CWC
We have a unified business, clear strategy and strong
sense of determination to enact the changes which will
transform our Group and dehver long-term growth

Tony Rice

“Having introduced high speed mobile data
networks in our key markets the next
frontier is ‘Long Term Evolution’ technology
which will enable our customers to easily
stream video on their smartphones. We are
in the early stages of introducing this in
The Bahamas and expecttolaunch a
commercial proposition in 2013/14.”

Our pan-America opportunity

We have positioned our business to growina
region with increasing demand for mobile data

and broadband

Our strategic priorities

Our strategic priorities include pursuing organic
and 1norganic growth opportunmues whilst
improving the productivity of our business

For more information ‘%

08  Formorcinformation — 13
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Our pan-America opportunity

We want to be the leading full service
telecoms provider in the pan-America
region. Our rationale for concentrating
on pan-America is five-fold:

o8

'There is a growing demand for data

Around the world telecoms customer behaviour 1s changing. Customers
are buying smartphones and tabiets and using applications with
increasingly enriched forms of entertainment and information.
Network speeds and capacities are increasing, enabling customers

to download richer content like pay TV and streamed video.

As aresult of these trends, the appetite for data services, particularly
mobile data, will continue to Increase.

Worldwide data traffic is growing strongly...

Petabytes/month
+26% Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR)

e N N N N ™

110,282

_ O JL O JLLO JIL_O )

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Source Cisco Visual Networking Index Forecast and Methodology

...especially mobile data in Latin America

Terrabytes/month
+72% CAGR

e ™ N 7 N \( ™

480,840
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2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

iy

Source Cisco Visual Networking Index Global Mobile Data Traffic Forecast Update
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Full service operators are best placed to meet
the demands of customers and operators

CWC operates networks which provide a full set of telecoms services - fixed hine,
mobile, broadband, pay TV, enterprise, social telecoms and carrier.

Full service operators are well placed to pravide customers with the best mobile
data experience and coverage, as we are able to utilise a combination of mobile,
fixed and sub-sea cable networks

Our fibre broadband networks are a platform to reach other customers, and provide
new services - pay TV for consumers, managed services for enterprises and social
telecoms for governments.

Forecasts indicate that there will be strong growth in demand for data products
across all our customer segments.

Forecast global demand increases 2012-2016*

Business/Government Consumer broadband Consumer TV over Mobile data trafiic CAGR
CAGR CAGR broadband CAGR

=) @) 76y

* Source Cisco Visual Networking Index Forecast and Methodology
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Our pan-America opportunity continued

3  Thepan-America region has significant
growth potential

US$689bn

GDP*

e @
W?popfllmﬁ? S S—

r \ 4m

Mobile

1 4 phones*
Internet users* L O /

OO@OO

(

* Source CIA World Factbook Countres mcluded Angutlla Antigua and Barbuda Aruba The Bahamas, Barbados Belrze British Virgm Islands
Cayman Islands Costa Rica Cuba Curagau Dorminica, Domintcan Republic El Salvador Grenada Guatemala Hati Honduras Jamaica
Montsesrat Nicaragua Panama, Puerto Rico St Kitts and Newis St Lucia St Martin 5t Vincent and the Grenadines Sint Maarten
Turudad and Tobago Turks & Carcos US Virgin slands
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4  We are well positioned to be the provider
of choice in pan-America

We are the leading operator in 10 out of 16 mobile markets

00000000000EEE0MN

O

15 out of 16 broadband markets

JLIJL L IL L]
LI LI L L L]

cececeececcccee

We are investing in high capacity, reliable networks

High speed mobile data
services are available in
sixmarkets and we have

upgraded our core networks
in The Bahamas and
St Vincent and
the Grenadines.

Our network of
22 sub-sea and four
overland cable systems
carry data traffic from
the internet to our

customers.

Annual report 2012/13 m




Our pan-America opportunity continued

12

With strong potential synergies

Having focused our business on a single regton we are now improving
our productivity by creating a unified operating structure, ssmplifying
the way we deliver services and reducing network costs. We have set
ourselves a target of reducing our cost base by US$100 million over the
next two years.

We plan to establish a new headquarters within the region in which key
corporate and operational functions will be co-located.

Pan-America
Potential to realise significant value

— US$100m two year cost saving target =~ — Network efficiencies
— New operating model — Property rationalisation
— Lower headcount — Administrative savings

Cable & Wreless Communications




QOur strategic priorities

The core elements of our strategy to become the
leading full service telecoms provider in the
pan-America region are:

1  Develop data-based products and services
in existing markets

— Mobile data, broadband and pay TV - for consumers
— Social telecoms - for governments
— Managed services, data centres and hosting - for enterprises

— Carrier services - for other operators

2  Enhance customer experience
— Services and support
— Consistent, reliable networks
— Triple play
- Fair, usage-based pricing

3  Identify new markets

— Identify opportunities for organic expansion into new markets, for example
utilising our experience in social telecoms

— Pursue acquisttions of established operators in stable economies, with a strict
investment criteria

4  Change operating model
— De-layer management
— Create new headquarters in southern Flornida

— Increase speed of decision making

5  Improve operational synergy
— Reduce duplication
— Drive for a lower cost base than our competitors
— Improve delivery of services
— Better leverage our regional position with suppliers

— Share costs across our regional business

Annual report 2012713
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How we monitor our business

We manage our business and monitor

progress using a range of key performance
indicators.

14

Qur financial performance
1s tracked on a regular basis
through metrics such as
those set out on our
Highlights page. We also
track a range of measures
to monitor our operations
and services. These include:

Cable & Wireless Communications

TI414
Customer numbers

‘We monitor the number of
customers for each of our
services mobile, fixed line,
broadband and pay TV
services,

37,000

Pay TV customers in Panama
increased by 5%

1.5m

Canbbean mobile customers
were in line with the prior year

NI

Customer spending

We measure how much
customers spend on each of
our services and reportitas
Average Revenue Per User,
per month (ARPU)

US$15.70

2011712 — US$13 40
Panama moble ARPU

US$28.50

201112 - US$27 30
Panama broadband ARPU




ny-.

New service growth

We monitor revenue from
new product areas, like

mobile data,

US$97m

2011/12 - US$66m

Mobile data revenue in Panama

US$113m

2011/12 - US$89m

Mobile data revenue in Caribbean

3%

2011/12-22%
Proportion of
mobile service
revenue from
non-voice In
Panama

Costs and efficiency

We closely monitor spending on
our operations with particular
attention given to our largest
costs such as staff and networks.

US$578m

2011/12 - US$611m
Caribbean operating
expenditure

34

2001712 -37%
Canbbean staff costs
asa percentage of
operating expenditure

23%

201112 - 18%
Proportion of
mobile service
revenue from
non-voice in the
Caribbean

Markets*

We also monitor customer
demand for key servicesin
the countries in which we

operate.

196%

2011/12 - 185%
Mobile penetration
in Panama

11%

2011/12 - 9%
Mobile data
penetration

1 Panama

36%

2011/12 - 33%
Houschold
mternet
penctration
in Panama

*Source Pyramd research

118%

2011/12-111%

Mobile penetration

in the Canbbean

14%

2011/12 - 9%
Mobile data
penetrationin
the Caubbean

40%

2011/12 - 35%
Household
intemet
penetrationin
the Caribbean

Annual report 2012/13
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We want to be the leading
full service telecoms
provider in pan-America
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Operational review

Our businesses delivered a
stable performance during
the year, amid the significant
changes to the Group.

Overview

Mobile data was the stand-out service across our
business Approximately 32% of total handsets sold in
Panama and the Canbbean were smartphones which has
supported this growth Mobile data revenue increased
349%, with 47% growth in Panama and 28% in the
Canbbean This was a strong return on the investment
we made in mobile data networks in 2011/12 Following
that sigificant investment in the prior year, capital
expenditure was lower across the Group

While our mobile data actvity increased, customers
continued to turn away from fixed voice usage, switching
instead to use mobiles and voice over internet protocol
services utilising fixed broadband

Broadband 1s a significant growth opportunity for our
business, with penetration rates in pan-Amenica fower
than in developed nations We plan to invest in the roll-
out of fibre broadband next year

We also plan further launches of our ‘LIME TV', TV over
broadband service in the Caribbean following a positive
reception in Barbados and Cayman

Group operating expenditure was US$738 rillion for
our continuing operatiens, an improvemnent of 6% on the
prior year

We expect further cost reductions as we move to
a unmified bustness structure and drive to improve
operational synergy and target US$100 mihon of
savings over the next two years

Caribbean 2012/2013 2011/2012
Revenue US$1.120bn  US$1 172bn
EBITDA US$274m US$284m
Operating cash flow US$124m US$120m

Our Caribbean business saw good performances in The
Bahamas and Jamaica, but faced difficult econemic
conditions n the Eastern Caribbean

The successful transformation of our Bahamas business
continued as we cempleted the roll out of anew high
speed mobile data network There has been a signtficant
increase in mobile data network traffic and an extra
500,000 calls per day since we started the project in
2011712

Cable & Wireless Communications

Across the region we enjoyed better management of
costs, with operating expenditure improved by 5% as we
benefited from efficiency improvements in The Bahamas
and a region-wide cost reduction programme

Our Jamaica mobtle customer base increased by 16% by ‘
year end as regulatory changes created a level playing field |
|

However, changes to regulations in Jamaica and the
imposition of a special telecoms tax contributed to a
10% fall in Caribbean fixed line revenue

Trading conditions in the rest of the Caribbean were
difficutt, but we continued to Invest in growth services
within higher GDP per capita markets Our new Barbados
pay TV network had over 3,000 customers by year end
and we launched n a second market, the Cayman Islands,
i April 2013 We have also announced plans to roll

out new high speed fibre broadband networks in both
Barbados and Cayman

The ecanomic outlook for the region is stable The
International Monetary Fund predicts that whilst growth
will continue to be constrained, the Caribbean’s recovery
from recession will continue, with a gradual pick up In

tourist flows

Panama 2012/2013 2011/2012
Revenue US$586m US$601m
EBITDA US$239m US$256m
Operating cash flow US$154m US$131m

In Panama we improved EBITDA by 8% in the second
half of the year Our mobile business again performed
stronaly, leading to a 3% increase in mobile revenue

The business 15 In one of the most competitive mobile
markets in Central Amernica with four operators and
mobile number portability giving customers the
opportunity to freely move between networks Despite
this we retained a majonty of market share by ganing
an additional 18,000 postpaid customers We plan to
build on this positive momentum by launching a mobile
payments servicein 2013/14

Pay TV Is a core component of our triple play {pay TV,
broadband, fixed line) offering Our pay TV customer
base increased by 5%, with more than three quarters of
customers choosing to take multiple services




The delayed launch of some Government programmes
caused a decline in enterpnise revenue, but we won
several social telecoms contracts These included
contracts to put the country's ‘National Registry online
{making It easier to buy and sell property in Panamal,
create an [T system for public hospitals, and to install

a software system to help the health service monitor,
maintain and manage the assets it owns

Qur business continues to benefit from Panama’s strong
GDP growth {over 10%in 2012) Growth has been
boosted by construction related to the project to widen
the Panama Canal, a major boost to future trade which
will be completed in 2014

Monaco 2012/2013 201172012
Revenue US$236m US$267m
EBITDA US$75m US$59m
Operating cash flow US$60m US$34m

Manaco continued to perform strongly in 2012/13,
with the sale of its loss-making Afinis operations
during the year helping to boost EBITDA by 27% There
was continued demand for mobile data services from
residents and roamers, creating a positive platform

for the introduction of Long Term Evolution services in
2013/14

CWC Wholesale Solutions

Last year we combined our sub-sea cable assets into a
new business, CWC Wholesale Solutions

In May 2013 we announced that we have entered into a
strategic partnership with Columbus Networks Limited
to further develop our international wholesale capacity
business The joint venture contains more than 42,000 km
of sub-sea cables with connectivity to 42 countries

The alliance positions us strongly to meet the data
capacity demands of our retail operations in the future,
as well as optimising our capital expenditure on sub-sea
cable networks in the future

We will further extend our capability next year as a
founder member of the Pacific Caribbean Cable System,
a 6,000 km cable inking Flonida and Ecuador, buillding
work for which will begin in 2013/14

Islands and Macau

We agreed the sale of both our Islands and Macau
businesses, to Batelco Group and CITIC Telecom
International Holdings Limited respectively

The agreed sale price of US$750 milion for Macau
reflected the company’s strong growth in recent years
and its development since CWC became a founding
shareholder in 1981 The disposal of our islands bustness
also achieved an excellent price, with an agreed sale
price of US$580 millon We atso agreed the sale of 25%
of our shareholding n CMC, the business which holds
our shares in Monaco Telecom, for US$100 millien to
Batelco We have an option in place to sell Batelco the
rest of our shares in CMC, subject to gaining regulatory
and Government approval by April 2014

Talks with our partner in that business, the Government
of Monaco, have taken place regarding the sale of our
remarning 75% in CMC Feedback has not been as
positive as expected and so we are also working with
Batelco to consider the alternative options available

Win back Jamaica
Garry Stnclaw, CEQ, Jamaica

“We campaigned for a change in the regulation
governing mobile operators to give Jamaicans
real choice When the Government made those
changes last summer we immediately launched
Talk EZ for our prepald and postpaid customers,
reducing call prices by over two-thirds and
reasserting LIME as Jamaica’s value leader
Talk EZ was supported by our highly successful
marketing campaign based around the Olympic
Games which really excited consumers We are
still in a dog fight, but for the firsttime in along
time the momentum 1s withus ”

Mobile data leadership
Jorge Nicelau, CEQ, Panama

“Qur four operator mobile market is one of the
most fiercely contested in Central America We
have mamtained our market share above 50%,
because we have been innovative in delivering
affordable access to mobile data services for our
customers, for example with pricing plans that
enable customers to buy data allowances for
short time periods ”

New networks in The Bahamas
Geoff Houston, CEO, Bahamas

“The completion of our high speed mobile data
network in The Bahamas was a clear statement of
our intent, considering that the legacy network
was morethan 15 years old in some places The
value of this work has been clear and we've
released pent up demand for quality telecom
services We have spectrum to introduce even
faster mobile data services and plan to do so1n
2013/14, ensuring we are strongly positioned for
the introduction of mobile competition in 2014 "
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Corporate social responsibility

We take corporate social responsibility
seriously. CWC (and prior to 2010 Cable
& Wireless Plc) has been a continuing
member of the FTSE4Good corporate
responsibility index since its inception
in 2001.

Below are some examples of how our
business units deliver corporate social
responsibility programmes meeting
our four responsibility principles:
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1

Contribute positively to the social and
economic development of the
communities 1n which we operate

Qur services directly contribute to the economy of
the countries in which we operate We also invest in
the social development of the communities where our
employees and customers hive

We sponsor sporting activities and athletes across
pan-Amenca

In the Caribbean we sponscred several individual
athletes in the 2012 Olympic Games including Grenada s
Olympic 400m champion, Kirani James and sprinter,
Yohan Blake from Jamaica who won one gold and two
sitver medals in London

Our Bahamas business sponsored its national team at
the Olympics, and the 2013 CARIFTA Games, a major
piatform for the regton’s young athletes It 1s the third
year In a row that our Caribbean business has sponsored
the CARIFTA Games

tn Panama +Mowil, our mobile brand, 1s synonymous with
soccer as sponsor of the National Football League, the
+Movii Cup and the Panamanian Football Federation Our
sponsorship of the national team last year included the
friendly ‘Red vs Red’ clash between Panama and World
and European Champions, Spain

Cable & Wireless Communications

We are also a strong supporter of education, and in
Jamaica our annual ‘Skoo! Aid’ event attracted 30,000
people and helped local children prepare for the new
school year by providing free school supplies, harcuts
and medical, dental and eye checks

In Panama we teamed up with renowned painter Olga
Sinclar to provide a painting workshop for thousands
of children

We also work to develop the economies in which we
operate In 2012, our Panama business sponsored
Connect Americas, a major telecoms conference which
discussed ways to close the digital divide in the region
Later in the year the business sponsored the Britain in
Panama conference which celebrated the links between
the two countries and encouraged more inward
investment of the type made by CWC




1 Cable & Wireless Panama
supports the Olga
Sinclair Foundation s art
workshops for children to
nspire a new generation
of arustsin Panama

2

Seek continuous improvement in our
environmental performance

Our environmental commitment focuses on energy
conservation, recycling, waste management, responstble
water usage and reducing our carbon footprint

Our online system to report on energy use and carbon
emissions ensures consistent reporting and provides us
with a useful reference point against which to measure
reductions in energy usage and carben emissions

We estimate our carbon footprint to be 171,398 tonnes
of CO,e based on our Scope 1, 2 & 3 greenhouse

gas emissions Our electricity consumption was
248,992 megawatt hours this year and our fuel usage
was 5 87 milhon litres

The Group’s total emissions have tncreased by 17,540
tonnes of CO, from the prior year This s due to

a 32% increase in the emissions associated with
electricity consumption despite only a 12% increase
inusage This disproporticnate increase in electrity-
associated emissions s principally caused by changes

in the methodology employed by the Carbon Neutral
Protocol and changes in the International Energy Agency
calculated emissions factors for electricity consumption
In the relevant regions, particutarly Jamaica

We continue to use video conferencing facilities to
reduce business travel, although travel is still necessary
due to our geographical spread, and we estimate that
created 6,136 tonnes of CO,e usage

The recyching programmes in our Panama business,
started in 2011/12, continued successfully This year we
ran seminars for colleagues to emphasise the importance
of recycling paper and ink products We also formalised
agreements with recychng enterprises Recicla Panama
and Recitec to dispose of obsolete IT equipment, as we
don several other businesses Panama has recycled
more than 50,000 pounds of equipment so far

The Caribbean region continued to generate the largest
proportion of carbon emissions, representing 50%

of the Group's total emissions for the 2012/13 year
Management have initiated a programme with energy
optimisation consultants that s focused on identifying
and executing projects to reduce energy usage and
carbon emissions, as well as procuring energy more
efficiently in the Caribbean These projects will typically
take three or more years to realise significant benefits,
however we expect to see some reduction in energy
usage n the 2013/14 year

We also work to support the local ecosystems of the
countries in which we operate Grenada, for example,
15 known as the sland of spice’” due to its production
of nutmeg and mace crops QOur business has been
prometing the mportance of the nutmeg plant and

n 2012 provided over 1,000 plants to farmers, and
sponsored the Grenada Nutmeg Festival in November
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Corporate social responsibility

2 Children are entertained
at LIME s Skool Aud event

3

Respect cultures, values and human
rights throughout our operations

We conduct business with honesty, integnty, openness
and with respect for the human nights and interests

of our employees and the communities in which we
operate

Our Panama business joined the Social Enterprise
Alliance for the Prevention and Eradication of Child
Labour in Panama As part of the Athance we will defend
and promote the rrghts of children and teenagers in
Panama so that they acquire training, education and hfe
skills

Carmval s an inportant part of cultural activities across
pan-America, and our businesses get involved in many
locations

In The Bahamas, for example, we agreed a US$850,000
sponsorship to support the Christmas season Junkanoo
parades, which have been a part of Bahamian life for
several centuries
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In Panama we had +Movwl floats in annual carnival
parades across the country, and maintained local
tradition by spraying the crowds with water as they
thronged in the streets dancing to their favourite tunes

Since 2005, our Panama business has also sponsored
and organised the Nationa! Oratory Contest, a public
speaking competition which started in the 1970s The
Oratory contest encourages young people to research
and then discuss topical 1ssues about Panama The
2012 National Oratory Contest winner, Suellen Ayala,
won a scholarship to umiversity and will be able to study
towards her dream of becoming a doctor

As well as celebrating national culture the business

also recognises minority groups within Panama For
example, we celebrated the Chinese year of the snake by
supporting celebrations for the Chinese community in
Panama




3 Sergio Busquets and
Sergio Ramos — Panama
vs Span friendly

4 LIME sponsors CARIFTA
Games 2012

“CWC always take a
proactive approach to
addressing the threat
of corrupt activities in
the markets in which
we operate.”

4

Nurture best practice in our activities

Our businesses share best practice across the Group,
developing further what 1s good and removing what 1sn't

Our success has been built on an honest and transparent
approach We have recently strengthened our
procedures in ine with the requirements of the UK's
Anti-Bribery law, but the principles behind this legislation
are not new to our business Qur commitment to ethical
business behawiour 1s long-standing and starts at the top
of the orgamisation

CWC always takes a proactive approach to addressing
the threat of corrupt activities in the markets in which
we operate

Externally, we are taking a more public stand against
corruptton by increasing the transparency of our dealings
with Government and urging our competitors to do the
same

We also take very senously our duty to protect our
employees from corruption This commitment has
enabled us to attract some of the brightest and best
talent everywhere we do business

To address all these challenges, we have developed an
internal programme which set outs our values and our
policies and procedures to prevent bribery and corrupt
practices from occurring i our business activities This
includes

— A company-wide code of conduct policy — updated
annually

— An annual Board review of the Company’s compliance
with the UK Anti-Bribery legislation

— A register of political or chartable contributions,
sponsorships, gifts and corporate hospitahty

— Company-wide annual training for staff

« Thorough due diigence on the many other businesses
and organisations with which we have business
relationships

This comprehensive programme has been tallored
to runirmise the damaging effects of bribery in all
Junisdictions in which we operate We take a zero
tolerance approach to corruption

Annual report 2012/13 23




Financial review

“It was a dynamic and busy
year and I am pleased with

”n
our performance.
Tim Pennington
Chief Financial Officer
2012/13 Highlhights Return on invested capital (ROIC)
— Total Group EBITDA of k-
US$905 muilhion - ahead
of prior year and outlook —
— Continuing Group — ]
EBITDA of US$589 S—
million - Panama up
8% 1n H2 versus H1 200/12 201213
: We define ROIC as total operating profit before
— Underlying equity free exceptional items divided by average adjusted
cash flowup 11% invested capital
Risk Financial statements
We have updated our risk register, as we do every Full details on financial performance are available in
12 months the Group financial statemems
For more information —» 31 For more information —» 69
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Group financial performance summary

Continulng Continuing
Year ended 31 March 2013 Year ended 31 March 2012
Pre- Pre-
exceptional Exceptional exceptional  Exceptional
items items Total items. items Total
USSm us$m us$m US$m US$m us$m
Revenue 1,942 - 1,942 2,032 - 2032
Cost of sales (555) - (555) (592) - (592)
Gross margin 1,387 - 1,387 1,440 - 1,440
QOperating costs (798} (50) (848) (850) (66) (9186)
EBITDA® 589 (50) 539 590 (66) 524
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (275) (86) (361) (277} (244) {521}
Net other operating income/(expense) 4 - 4 (11 - an
Operating profit/{loss) 318 (136) 182 302 {310) (8)
Share of post-tax profit of associates and joint ventures 10 - 10 26 - 26
Total operating profit/{loss) 328 (136) 192 328 (310) 18
Net finance expense (141) - (141) (148) - {148)
{Loss)/gam on termination of operations (16) - (16) 13 - 13
Profit/(loss) before ncome tax 171 (136) 35 193 (310) (117)
Income tax (expense)/credit (61) 20 {41) (59} 10 (49)
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations 110 (116} (6) 134 (300) (1686}
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 184 - 184 192 - 192
Profit/{loss) for the year 294 (116) 178 326 (300) 26
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Company 127 (108} 19 158 (235) 77n
Non-controlling interests 167 (8) 159 168 (65) 103
Balance sheet capital expenditure? (263) (313)
Cash exceptionals (26) (69}
Operating cash flow? 326 277
Earmings per share (including discontinued operations) {cents) 08 3D
Adjusted earnings per share (EPS} (including discontinued
operations) (cents)? 66 65
Headcount (full time employees at period end) 5,349 5,923
1 EBITDA s defined as earnings before Interest tax depreciation and amortisation, net other aperating and non-operating income/(expense) and exceptional items
2 Balance sheet capital expenditure excludes transfer of cable assets frominventory
3 Operating cash flow 1s defined as EBITDA less balance sheet capital expenditure
4 Adjusted EPS 1s before exceptional items gamns/{losses) on disposals amorusation of acquired imtang bles and transaction costs
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Financial review
continued

During the period, CWC announced that it entered into two
significant disposal agreements As a result, the businesses
in the Maldives, the Channel Islands and Isle of Man, the
Seychelles, South Atlantic, Diego Garcia and Macau have
been treated as discontinued operations within the Group’s
reported rasults

Revenue from continuing operations fell by 4% to U5$1,942 million
Mobite revenue for the Group was flat on the prior year as strong
mobile data growth of 34%, following increased penetration and
usage, was of fset by declining voice revenue Our fixed voice and
enterprise, data and other revenues were adversely impacted

by declining voice traffic, lower activity levels and a difficult
mMacroeconomic environment

Group EBITDA was in hine with the prior year at U$$589 million as
improved performance in Monaco following the disposal of Afinis in
the first half was of fset by declines in Panama and in the Caribbean,
where EBITDA also reduced despite efficiency gains

Operating profit before exceptional items was the same as the prior
period at US$328 million During the year we took an exceptional
restructuring charge of US$50 million related to efficiency initiatives
including the imitial steps towards the transformation of engineering
operations across the Canibbean In addition, we took an exceptional
non-cash impairment charge of US$86 milhon in the Eastern
Canbbean reflecting the more difficult economic cimate we face in
those markets

Profit for the period increased to US$178 milhon following lower
exceptional charges Adjusted earnings per share for the year
were 2% higher than the prior year at US6 6 cents The Board has
recommended a full year dividend of US4 cents per share

On a constant currency basis, revenue for the Group was 3% lower
and EBITDA was 1% higher than the prior year
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Panama
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March Change
(US$m) 2013 2012 %
Mobile 323 3i5 3
Broadband 60 60 0
Fixed voice 122 136 10
Enterpnise, dataand other 81 90 {10)
Revenue 586 601 (2)
EBITDA 239 256 {(7)
Margin % 41 43

Revenue at US$586 million was 2% lower than the same peniod last
year as strong mobile growth was offset by lower fixed voice and
enterprise, data and other revenues

Maobile revenue was up 3% to US$323 milion The business
maintained market leadership and data penetration of the subscriber
baseincreasedto 31% High data usage, particularly in the prepaid
segment due to the availability of short-term flexible plans, resulted
tn non-voice revenue growth of 47% which more than offset the
dechine in voice revenue ARPU grew by 17% as postpaid subscribers
were 9% higher and we retamed high value prepaid customers whilst
promaotional actvity caused the total number of prepaid subscribers
to fluctuate

Broadband & TV revenue at US$60 million was in line with the same
period last year Our focus remained on the higher ARPU broadband
segment and pay TV subscribers grew by 5% on the prior year The
number of pay TV subscribers taking an additional triple play service
Increased to 77%

Fixed voice revenue dechned by 10% to US$122 million as mebile
competition continued to smpact usage and rates

Enterpnse, data and other revenue fell by 10% as a result of delayed
Government pregrammes in Panama During the year we were
awarded a Government contract to supply, install and support

new systems to share documents electronically and a contract to
introduce a Hospital Information System to improve administration
and patient care in state funded hospitals

Gross margin as a percentage of revenue was 1% higher than last
year as growth in higher margin mobile offset reduced enterprise,
data and other revenue which 1s typically lower margin

Operating costs at US$158 million were 8% higher than the prior
year reflecting higher netwark costs following the expansion of our
mobile network and greater utility costs

As aresult of higher operating costs, EBITDA of US$239 million was
7% lower compared to the prior year, however we saw an increase of
8% in second half performance compared to the first half EBITDA as
a percentage of revenue was 41%

Our proportionate ownership of Panama EBITDA for the year ended
31 March 2013 was 49%




Cartbbean Monaco’
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March Change 31 March 31 March Change
{Ussm} 2013 2012 % {Uss$m) 2013 2012 %
Mobile 527 531 (1) Mobile 61 59 3
Broadband 120 122 (2) Broadband 16 15 7
Fixed vorce 290 323 (10) Fixed voice 25 26 (4
Enterprise, data and other 183 196 (7) Enterprise, data and other 134 149 (10)
Revenue 1,120 1,172 (4) Revenue 236 249 (5)
EBITDA 274 284 (4) EBITDA 75 54 39
Margin % 24 24 Margin % 32 22

Revenue in our Caribbean business at US$1 120 billon was down
4% on the prior year, consistent with the dechne in the first half
of the year

Mobile revenue of US$527 milhion was 1% down on the prior

year driven principally by lower ARPU Subscriber numbers were
broadly flat on the prior period with growth in Jamatca following
regulatory changes which enabled us to improve our competitive
positioning, stimulating subscriber and usage growth offset by
churn in the Eastern Caribbean We have seen sustained growth in
mobile data usage following the launch of high speed networks ina
number of islands during the year and plan to expand on this where
commercially viable

Broadband & TV revenue was down 2% at US$120 million We
launched LIME TV in Barbados during the year and have signed
up over 3,000 subscribers to date with plans to roll out TV over
broadband services to a number of islands n the coming year

Fixed voice revenue at US$290 million was 10% down compared
to the prior year Voice substitution continued across the

region, although the ARPU and revenue decline this year was
manly influenced by Jamaica where regulatory changes and the
introduction of a special telecommunications tax led to lower
revenues

Enterprise, data and other revenue at US$183 milhon was down 7%
on last year due principaily to a lower level of cable capacity sales in
the period

Gross margin as a percentage of revenue remained stable

Operating costs were 5% down compared to the pnor year at
US$578 million Across the Canibbean business we have embarked
on targeted cost reduction programmes te improve efficiency and
build a sustainable operating base During this year our headcount
has reduced by 12% to 3,421 and we have further outsourced our
field force techrician services in Jamaica Much of the improvement
has come from our Bahamas business which has seen a full year’s
benefit from the restructuring we undertook following acquisition
of the company n 2011

EBITDA for the Caribbean was U5$274 million representing a 4%
reduction from the prior year

Our proportionate ownership of Caribbean EBITDA for the year
ended 31 March 2013 was 72%

1 At constant currency

Revenue at US$236 million was 5% lower than the prior year ona
constant currency basis driven primarily by a reduction in transit
traffic volumes Cespite theintroduction of competitton, our mobile
customner base grew by 9% as we launched new tanffs and focused
on non-voice revenue This more than offset dechning voice revenue
and resulted in overall mobile revenue growth of 3% at constant
currency Subscriber growthled to a 7% increase in broadband & TV
revenue on a constant currency basis

Gross margmn at US$139 million was 2% higher than the prior year on
aconstant currency basis as improved mobile gross margin, driven
by lower outpayments, offset lower total revenue

Operating costs of U5$64 millon were 22% lower at constant
currency primarily due to the disposal of Afirus in August 2012

EBITDA at US$75 million was 39% higher than the prior year at
constant currency and 27% higher on a reported basis reflecting
lower operating costs

Excepticonal restructuring costs

Net exceptionalitems (excluding impairments) of US$50 mullion
related to redundancy and restructuring programmes in the
Canbbean The prior year charge of US$66 million was primarily in
respect of restructuring activities in The Bahamas and Panama

Depreciation, amortisation and imparrment
Depreciation and amortisation at US$275 million remained in line
with the pre-exceptional charge in the prior year

We recognised a non-cash impairment charge of US$86 milicn in
the year ended 31 March 2013 This was mainly due to the difficult
macro environment In the Eastern Caribbean indicated in our Q3
results The prior year charge consisted of a non-cash impatrment
and accelerated depreciation charge of US$244 million primarily due
to poor financial performance in Jamaica

Net other operating income/{expense)

The US$4 million net other operating income received in the year
comprised a foreign exchange translation gain of US$8 milhon
related to UK pension schemes partially offset by US$4 million

of hurricane related costs nthe Caribbean
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Financial review
continued

Joint ventures and associates

Our share of profit after tax from joint ventures was U5$10 mithon,
US$16 mullion lower than the same period last year pnmarnily due
to customer migration costs in TSTT following the introduction of
a 4G/HSPA+ high speed mobile data network and the impact of
increased competition on Roshan

Net finance expense

The US$141 million net finance expense for the Group included
finance income of US$11 milfron (US$10 million in 2011/12} and
finance expense of US$152 mithon {US$158 millonn 2011/12)
The reduction in finance expense compared to the prior period
mainly reflected the absence of the non-cash Monaco put option
interest partially offset by foreign exchange losses

(Loss)/gain on termination of operations

The US$16 million charge reflected the loss on the disposal of Afinis
In the prior year, the income of US$13 million was n respect of gains
on disposals

Income tax expense

The iIncame tax charge for the continuing Group of US$41 million
(US$49 million in 2011/12) was in respect of overseas taxes This
charge represented an effective tax rate of 36% pre-exceptional
items Remowving the impact of non-deductible interest charged on
the Group’s central borrowmng facilities this charge represented an
effective tax rate of 24% pre-exceptional items

We expect the Group effective tax rate in 2013/14, pre-exceptional
items and excluding non-deductible interest charged on the Group's
central borrowing facihties, to be around 25%
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Discontinued operations

Our Istands businesses comprising operations in the Maldives, the
Seychelles, the Channel Islands and Iste of Man, South Atlantic and
Diego Garcia had a good year with revenue and gress margin up 1%
compared to the prior year driven by strong mobile and broadband &
TV growth

Macau achieved another record year of EBITDA performance driven
by increased mobile data usage where revenue was up 43% on the
prior year and higher mobile roaming revenue

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure was US$263 million, excluding cable assets
transferred from inventory, 16% lower than last year and
representing 14% of revenue Including discontinued operations,
Group capital expenditure was US$347 million and in hine with
guidance

Our principal customer facing investments continued to be in
4G/HSPA+ mobile data networks supporting smartphone sales in
Panama, The Bahamas, Barbados, British Virgin Islands, St Lucia
and Cayman, selective pay TV investrments, and improvements to
our fixed broadband network These fixed broadband investments
have included continuing our fibre roll outs in the Canbbean and
completing a Next Generation Network in The Bahamas We have
also pursued strategic investments in transmission capacity and
cable systems to support both retaill and carrier sales Finally,

we continue to advance our billing and customer relationship
management systems

We have now completed our second year of investment in The
Bahamas having invested around US$100 million 1 capital

projects during that penod We continue to focus on providing an
improved service to our customers and preparing for future market
competition




Group cash flow?

2012/13 2011712
UsSm ussm
Total Total
EBITDA? 589 550
Balance sheet capital expenditure® (263) (313)
Operating cash flow before exceptional
items 326 277
Movement 1n working capital and other
provisions* {10) (4)
Net mnvestment income® 23 1
Underlying free cash flow 339 284
Fixed charges
tncome taxes paid® (74) {70)
Interest paid” (129) (119
Dridends paid to non-controlling
interests® (106) (93)
Underlying equity free cash flow from
discontinued operations 111 125
Underlying equity free cash flow 1M 127
Underlying equity free cash flow per share 5 6¢ 51c
Dividends paid to shareholders (166) (204)
Net cash flow before one-off iterns and
exceptional items (25) 77
Non-recurring itemns and exceptionals
Cash exceptionals (26) (69)
Coupon for sterling unsecured bond
redeemed August 20127 27 -
Panama tax brought forward® (37) -
Share buyback - (70)
L7IP - 9)
Acquisitions and disposals® {4) {(117)
Discontinued operations {6) (N
Net cash flow after one-off items and
exceptional items (125) (349}
Net proceeds from borrowings 113 299
Net cash flow (12) (50)

1 Based onour management accounts

2 Earnings before interest, tax depreciation and amortisation, net other operating and
non-opefating ncome and exceptional tems

3 Balance sheet capital expendsture excludes transfer of cable assets from inventory

4 includes movemnent in capital expenditure accruals

S includes dividends received from yoint ventures of US$6 millionin 2012413
{U5%4 mitiionin 2011/12)

6 Excludes US$37 million impact on tming of payments following change in Panama tax
leqislation

7 Excludes US$27 mullion coupon in HY 2012713 on sterling unsecured bond of £200
midlion redeemed in August 2012

8 Monaco Telecom dwidend paid te minonty mnterest of US$33 millon in 2012713
{US$17 mition 1in 2011/12) has beenreallocated to didends paid to nen-controling
interests but for IFRS purposes s included in acquisitions and disposals

The Group generated operating cash flow before exceptional items
of US$326 million for the year ended 31 March 2013, 189% higher
than the prior year as capital expenditure reduced following previous
heavy investments in mobile data networks within key markets
There was a net autflow in working capital and provisians whilst
investment income of US$23 million included proceeds from the sale
of iInvestments, interest received on cash balances and dividends
received from jomnt ventures

Fixed charges

We paid US$ 74 millron refating to underlying income tax in
2012/13, US$4 milion higher than the prior year Interest of
US$129 million was paid on our external borrowings We paid
dividends to non-controlling interests of US$106 mitlion in the
period, which was US$13 milltlon higher than the prior year due
to Increased distributions from Monaco prior to closing of the
Islands transaction

Underlying equity free cash flow of US$141 million, or USS 6 cents
per share, was up 11% relative to the prior year driven by reduced
capntal expenditure On the current dividend of US4 cents per share
this represented underlying cash dividend cover of 1 4 times

Non-recurring items and exceptionals

The net cash outflow included US$26 million for exceptional

items related to redundancy and restructuring programmes in

the Caribbean We also incurred additional borrowing costs of
US$27 milfion due to the timing of refinancing our 2012 sterling
unsecured bond A tax legislation change during 2012/13 in Panama
led to the timing of payments being brought forward and as a result
there were US$37 million of additional cash tax payments in the year
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Financial review

continued
Group cash and debt
As at Asat
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
Us$m us§m
Cash and cash equivalents 152 312
Sterling unsecured bonds repayable in 2012 - (317)
Sterling unsecured bonds repayable in 2019 {224) (234)
US$500 milhion secured bonds due 2017 (493) (492)
US$400 milion secured bonds due 2020 (391) (390)
U5$600 million Revolving Credit Facility
(RCF) {360) -
Other central (37) -
Other regional debt facilities {298) (274)
Total debt (1,803) {1,707)
Total reported net (debt) (1.651) {1,395)

Net cash within assets held for sale
Attributable to CWC 81

Attributable to rminorities 62
Restated net (debt) {1,508)
Islands disposal proceeds 680
Macau disposal proceeds 750
Cash within assets held for sale attributable

to minonties (62)
Pro forma net {debt)} (140)

Curing the year the sterling unsecured bonds repayable in August
2012 were redeemed at par using cash balances and drawings on
the US$600 million revolving credit facility The revolving credit
facility has a margin of 2 50% over LIBOR and a matunity date of
October 2016 As at 31 March 2013, US$360 million of this facility
was drawn Following closing of the Islands transaction on 3 April
2013, al! outstanding drawings cn the revolving credit facility and
US$25 million of other borrowings were repaid

Pro forma net debt as at 31 March 2013 after receipt of the disposat
proceeds for the Islands (including the Seychelles) and Macau
businesses was US$140 million This figure includes an adjustment
for net cash attributable to minonity interests in the disposed
businesses
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Pensions

As at 31 March 2013, the defined benefit section of the

Cable & Wireless Superannuation Fund (CWSF) had an 1AS 19
defiat of £86 million, compared to a deficit of £81 million as at
31 March 2012

Cash contributions have been agreed with the Trustees in order to
eliminate the actuanial deficit, however these payments are subject
to the outcome of the actuanal valuation as at March 2013 This
future defrcit funding constitutes a mimimum funding agreement
and, in accordance with accounting standards, we are required to
account for this within our 1AS 19 deficit The 1AS 19 deficit recorded
at 31 March 2013 represents the present value of the maximum
amount committed under the mimmum funding agreement

The increase in the deficit in the year 1s mainly due to a fall in the
corporate bond rate used to discount habilities The AA corporate
bond rate used in calculating the pension defiat was 4 5% compared
with 4 9% at 31 March 2012

The fund assets at 31 March 2013 were approximately invested
73% in the bulk annuity policy, 18% in equities, and 9% in bonds,
property, swaps and cash

There are other unfunded pension liabilities in the UK of £30 million
{£26 milion at 31 March 2012) The Group holds investments

in gilts of £24 million to partially back the UK unfunded pension
habilities Other schemes in Cable & Wireless Communications have
anet IAS 19 surplus of US$19 million (US$30 million surplus at

31 March 2012)

Dividend

For the financial year 2012/13 the Board 1s recommending a final
dividend of US2 67 cents per share This represents two-thirds of
our previously announced intention to pay a full year dvidend of
US4 cents per share

The Board is targeting progressive dividend growth that reflects the
underlying cash generation and growth cutlook of the business




Principal risks and uncertainties

We recognise that there are risks in operating our
businesses, influenced by both internal and external
factors, some of which are outside our control. The Group
has a risk management framework which our business
units and headquarters utilise to review their risks.

We set out a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that could have a materially adverse effect on the Group and how
they are managed However, there may be other risks that are
currently unknown or regarded as immaterial which could turn
out to be material We update the Group risk register on arolling

Risk and impact

12 month basis and since thelast year end a number of nisks have
been removed as they are nolonger considered to be material to
the Group overall

Investors should consider these risks along with other
information provided in this Annual report

Mitigation

Business change

Business change strategles fail to be executed quickly enough
or fail to achieve the anticipated efficiency and cost savings In
particular, the Group's strategic focus {s on the Central America
and Canbbean region and we have begun to develop a unified
business structure and revised operating model to better exploit
opportunities available and realise synergies Ifsuch business
change programmes do not achieve their objectives this could
affect the Group's profitability and cash flow

» Reguiar reviews are held by Group senior managementto
monitor project status, risks and mitigating actions

» We employ high calibre individuals with proven experience
and expertise of working on business turnaround/change
projects

Investment

Following the disposal of the majority of the Islands and Macau
businesses the Group's strategy is to focus investment in the
Caribbean and Central American region where we have a
critical mass of operations and the ability to realise operational
efficiencies There 1s arisk thatinvestments, acquisitions and
partnership arrangements are not successful or that suitable
1nvestment opportunities are not available in the region This
could adversely affect the Group’s return on investment and
ultimately shareholder returns

» We undertake detailed due diligence, employ expenenced and
knowledgeable individuals, obtain external specialist advice
and ensure thorough debate at Board level

» [ntegratton plans are considered as part of our due diligence
to ensure any new acquisitions can be successfully integrated
into our Group

» We set rigorous investment hurdles internally against which
we measure potential opportunities

» Group Board approvalis required for matenal transactions

Business development

The development of mobile data, pay TV and value added services
together with other sources of revenue growth fail to perform
asanticipated The Group therefore fails to mobnlise into new
business lines 1n sufficient time to offset the structural decline in
traditional voice revenues being experienced across the telecoms
industry Failure to achieve profitable revenue growth may lead
toadechne in revenue and a reduction in future profitabihty and
cash flow

» We ensure focused attention on markeung and product
development activities and encourage cross-regional
leveraging

» We engage with experts to look at external product
developments

» We focus closely on the pricing of new services to ensuie the
Group achieves the required return

» Postamplementation reviews of business cases are conducted
as part of business unit performance reviews
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Risk and impact

Mitigation

Competitive activity

Competitor activity and new market entrants could, through

a combination of aggressive pricing and promotional activity,
reduce our market share and margins As a consequence of
disposals, the Group is also more concentrated 1n terms of
geographical spread and therefore may be more restricted inats
ability to compete effectively in the event of further consolidation
and new market entrants Failure by the Group to compete
effectively could have a significant adverse effect on revenues,
profitability and cash flow

» We undertake continued investment mn our networks to
improve our customer experience, for example we are focusing
on selective investments in high speed networks in a number
of territories

» We engineer our customer propositions based on our strengths
relative to our competitors

» There is focus on our retention activity and loyalty programmes
and how te enhance our customer relationship management
capabilities

Economic conditions

The effect of an economic downturn may adversely affect our
operations and trading The challenging economic environment
in some of our major territories and the importance of overseas
tourism to the economies of some countries could continue to
suppress government and consumer spending impacting our
profitability and cash flow

» We continue to monitor key recession indicators and 1emain
prepared totake action to address any ongoing impact of the
downturn

» We continuously seek toimprove efficiency and reduce costs in
order to best meet customer price expectations

Regulatory risk

We need to comply with alarge range of regulations and licence
terms which govern our operations across the multiple legal
jurisdictions in which we operate Changes in the regulatory
environment could impact the granting and renewal of licences,
spectrum and operating agreements or sigmificant terms
attached to them We are also 1mpacted by key regulatory
decisions relating to pricing such as the determination of
termination rates Failure to complywith regulations or adverse
regulatory decisions could impact the value of our investments,
lemut the Group's financial returns or restrict the ability Lo
operate or provide new services to our custorners

» We actively hiaise with regulators to encourage a positive
working relationship based upon open dialogue

» We continuously monitor developments in the regulatory
environment for all ourbusinesses Regular reports are made
to the executive team on regulatory risks

» We employlocal colleagues in each country who are
experienced in local laws and regulations

Political risk

A change in the political environment could lead to changes in
law, government policy or attitudes towards foreign investment
This could have an adverse impact on our business operations,
investment decisions and profitability
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» We monitor political developments in both existing and
potential markets closely

» We actively haise with governments and opposition partues
to encourage a positive working relationship with open
communtcation at senior levels

» We aim to contribute positively to the social and economic
development of the communities where we operate




Risk and impact

Mitigation

Service disruption

Our networks form part of a country’s eritical national
infrastructure and therefore we are relied upon on a daily basis to
deliver a high quality, resilient service Disruption to our network
and IT systems from events such as hurricanes and other natural
disasters, fire, security breaches, system failures or human

error could damage our reputation and also resultin aloss of
customers or financial claims

» All our businesses have business continuity policies and major
incident management plans in place which we continue to
review to ensure that theyremain up to date

» We also have insurance cover and employ network resilience to
mitigate the effects of these risks

» We plan network upgrades and have a progiamme of ongoing
maintenance

Network and data security

We catry and store large volumes of confidential personal and
corporate voice trafficand data Unauthorised access to sensitive
data by third parties or employees could have an adverse effect
on the Group's business, its reputation and expose us to litigation

» The Group has information security procedures and controls in
place which are regularly reviewed

» Remedial action plans are implemented where necessary

» We conduct third party data security reviews as required

People

Our people are one of our most important assets and problems
recruiting and retaimng skilled colleagues could harm our
business We also face the risk of disruption and lost productivity
in the event of industnial action

» Incentive, succession and retention plans are in place to lLumt
the risk of losing key empleyees

» We actively engage with untons and undertake colleague
engagement surveys to keep abreast of and monitor any
employee 1ssues

» We have business continwty plans in place to deal with
industrial action

Technology

New technology developments may render our existing products,
services and supporting infrastructure obsolete or non-
competitive As aresultthis mayrequire the Group to increaseits
rate and level of investment 1n new technologies which affect cash
flow and profit Concerns are occasionally expressed that mobile
phones and transmitiers may pose long term health risks which,  f
proven, may result in the Group being exposed Lo litigation

» New technology developments are under constant review and
new technologies are Introduced when appropriate

» We continue to keep abreast of the latest research on the
potential health risks of mobile phones and transmutters

Joint ventures

We have a number of operations where we do not have
management contro} Our ability to manage the performance of
thesc operations is therefore more limited which could impact
the value of our investments

» We endeavour to have some operational involvement and we
engage with local management in line with the applicable
sharcholder agreements

» We have regular interaction with ourlocal joint venture
partners

Pensions

The Group has significant pension scheme obligations The value
of the Group's pension schemes' assets and liabilities may be
adversely affected by a decline ininvestment returns, longer

hfe expectancy and regulations Anincrease in pension deficits
may necessitate additional contributions to the schemes with an
adverse impact on future cash resources

» We have previously undertaken actions te de-risk our exposure
through the purchase of insurance policies for certain scheme
liabilities in the UK and Jamaica

» We continue to examine additional strategies to further
mutigate the nisk of increased deficits

» The Company maintains regular dialogue with the pension
Trustees who manage the scheme’s assets with appropriate
external advice along withindependent advisers
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Our customers are
embracing mobile data
across the Caribbean
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Board of Directors

1 Sir Richard Lapthorne, CREY

Chairman, Chairman of the Nomination Committee
Sir Richard Lapthorne s Chairman of the Company having
been Chairman of Cable and Wireless plc since January 2003
He s also Chairman of the Nomination Committee In March
2012 he was appointed Chairman of the Foresight Group on
UK Manufacturing and i1s Charman of the PwC Public Interest
Body and a Non-executive Directer of Sherntt International,
basedn Taronto

Between June 2009 and April 2010, he was Chairman of the
McLaren Group From 1996 to May 2003 Richard was Charrman
of Amersham International ple (now GE Healthcare} having joined
its Board as a Non-executive Director in 1989 He was Finance
Director of British Aerospace plc from July 1992 and Vice
Chairman from April 1998 untif his retirement in 1999

Richard i1s a Trustee of Tommy s Camparign, the chanty
researching still and premature birth He was Non-executive
Chairman of New Look Group and Morse plc untsl November
2007 and February 2008 respectively and Her Majesty the
Queen’s Trustee at The Royal Botanic Gardens Kew until his
retirement in September 2009

2 Tony Rice

Chief Executive

Tony Rice s Chief Executive of the Company and has been so
since demerger 1n March 2010, having previously served as CEQ
of the predecessor Cable & Wireless Commumications business
since November 2008 He was Group Finance Birector of Cable
and Wireless plc from March 2006 onwards, having been a
Non-executtve Director since January 2003

Tony was at British Aerospace and its successor company BAE
Systems for 16 years as Group Treasurer and ultimately Group
Managing Director, Commercia! Arcraft, responsible for its
Arrbus and Regional Awrcraft business units From 2002 he was
CEO of Tunstall Holdings Ltd, Europe s leading telecare company
until its sale in September 2005

Tony 15 the Semor Independent Non-executive Director of Spint
Pub Company plc which bisted on the London Stack Exchange

in 2011 He s also Charman of Alexander Mann Solutions, and
Tony was recently appointed as a Trustee for Shelter, the housing
and homelessness charity

3 Tim Pennington

Chief Financial Officer

T Penmungton is Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company
He prevtously served as the Group Finance Director for Cable
and Wireless plc Previously, Tim was CFO and an Executive
Chrector of Hutchison Telecommunications International Lid, a
company isted in Hong Kong and New York Tim was also Finance
Director of Hutchison 3G (UK) (Hutchison Whampoa s UK mobile
business) and has corporate finance experience with HSBC
Investment Bank and Samuel Montagu & Co

4 Nick Cooper

Corporate Services Director

Nick Cooper 15 an Executive Director of the Company,

having served as Corporate Services Director for the Cable

& Wireless Commumications business since December 2008
and Group General Counsel and Company Secretary for Cable
and Wireless plc from January 2006 to demerger He has

Board leve! responsibility for Human Resources, Brand, PR

& Communications, Legal & Requlatary Affairs Insurance,
Corporate Social Responsibility Procurement and IT Nick
qualfied as a solicitor with London law firm Herbert Smith He
has held in-house positions as company sohcitor with Asda and
George Clothing and as General Counse! and Company Secretary
of The Sage Group Plc and JD Wetherspoon Pic In Septermber
2002, Nick was appointed Company Secretary and was part of
the Executive Management Board of Energis until its acquisition
by Cable and Wireless plc

5 Simon Ball v

Deputy Chairman, Semtor Independent Director,
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Simon 8alf1s a Non-executive Director of the Company having
previously served as a Non-executive Director of Cable and
Wireless plc since May 2006 He s also the Deputy Chairman,
Senior Independent Director, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit and Nomination
Committees Stmon became Chairman of the Remuneration
Commttee on 1 June 2012 having previcusly been the Chairman
of the Audit Cornmittee Simon 1s a Non-executive Director of
Tribal Group plc and of Allied Insh Banks plc Previously, Simon
was Group Finance Director for 31 Group plc until November
2008 and also held a sertes of semor finance and operational
roles at Dresdner Kleinwort Benson, served as Group Finance
Birector for the Robert Fleming Group and was Director General,
Finance for the Department for Constitutional Affars

6 Mark Hamlin A2®

Non-executive Director

Mark Hamlin has been a Non-executive Director of the Company
since his appotntment on 1 January 2012, and 1s amember

of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees

Mark s a Chartered Chinecal Psychologist, and 1s the Charrman

of the Organisation Resource Group of Companies Heisa

senior adviser to the boards of global businesses in many areas
including strateqy, culture and corporate change programmes in
international markets Born in Johannesburg he 1s involved with
anumber of charities in Africa, some aimed at ¢creating additional
income for subsistence farmers and their families, and others
establishing life skills education centres for young people Mark
1s the President of Wedmore Opera a community based music
performance charnty i Somerset

7 Alison Platt AN

Non-executive Director

Alison Platt was appointed a Mon-executive Director of the
Company on 1 June 2012, andis a member of the Audit,
Nermination and Remuneration Committees Alison s 3 Managing
Director at Bupa, responsible for International Development
Markets She took up this post in October 2012 having
previously held a number of serior posts across Bupaincluding
Chief Operating Officer of its UK private hospitals busmess,
Deputy Managing Director inits UK insurance business and
latterly Managimng Director for its businesses in the UK Europe
and North America Before joiming Bupa, Alison held a number
of key positions n Brtish Airways

Alisan Platt was char of ‘Opportunity Now', which seeks to
accelerate change for women in the workplace, from May 2002
until Apnl 2073 She was also a Non-executive Director of the
Foreign & Commonwealth Office between 2005 and 2010, and
in the 2011 New Year Honours she was appointed a CMG for her
services to the Board of the FCO

8 lan Tyler ANt

Non-executive Director, Chatrman of the Audut
Comnutiee

lan Tyler has been a Non-executive Director of the Company
since his appontment on 1 January 2011 On 1 June 2012,

lan was appointed Chairman of the Audit Committee lanis also
a member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees
lanis a chartered accountant and was Chief Executive of Balfour
Beatty plc from January 2005 to March 2013, having jomed
the company in 1996 as Finance Director and having become
Chief Operating Officer in 2002 From 1993 to 1996 lan was
Finance Director of ARC Lumited, one of the principal subsidiaries
of Hanson Plc, having previously been Hansons Group Financial
Cormptroller sitnce 1991 Prior to that, from 1988, he held

the positions of Group Treasurer and Financial Controller at
Storehouse Ple, the retailing group lan 15 a Non-executive
Director of BAE Systems plc and also President of CRASH

the charity for homeless pecple around the UK

A Denotes membershp of Audit Committee

N Denotes membership of Nomnation Commuttee

R Denotes membership of R ation Committee
Commuttee membership shown as at 31 March 2013
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Directors’ and corporate governance report

“Good corporate governance is critical
to ensuring our long-term success.”

Sir Richard Lapthorne, CBE

Chairman

38

Dear Shareholder

Cable & Wireless Communications has complied
in full with the UK Corporate Governance Code
throughout the year

Corporate governance is about delegating safely and
it is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that

the Group is governed properly and responsibly

By its very nature effective corporate governance 1s
fundamental to the Board's duty to maintain control
and line of sight across a geographically dispersed
Group such as Cable & Wireless Communications

This year has been an active year for the Board The
disposals of the Islands and Macau business units
required an increased time comimitment for the
Board of Directors during the year to ensure that
there was sufficient time for robust and challenging
debate in relation to the disposals and also to ensure
that the balance of time for Board discusstons focused
on strategy, the review of financial and operational
performance and oversight of internal controls to
ensure the right checks and balances remained in
place during a period of iransformational change

Cable & Wireless Communications

Alison Platt, Managing Director at Bupa responsible
for International Development Markets, joined the
Board in June 2012 Alison brings skills, knowledge
and experience gained from her executive carecer
across International markets

This section describes the way that corporate
governance works in Cable & Wireless
Communtcations Our governance focuses not only
on the boardroom but right across the business We
believe that good governance supports long-term
performance

Our cominitment to ethical business behaviouris
long-standing and starts at the top of the organisation
and we believe that our success has beenbuilt on
anhonest and transparent approach A values-led
culture, high behavioural standards and robust
procedures are fundamental to a strong corporate
governance framework We have updated our Code
of Conduct during the year which sits alongside our
Anti-Bribery policy and procedures which were
strengthened in 2011 We have a comprehensive
internal programme which ensures that everyone
who is part of our Group understands our approach
and values viaa communications and traming
programme

SirRichard Lapthorne, CBE
Chatrman

21 May 2013




Compliance with the
UK Corporate Governance Code

Throughout the year the Group has complied with all relevant
provistons set out in the 2010 UK Corporate Governance Code (the
Code) and applied the main principles of the Code as described in
pages 37 to 67 Reporting under the UK Corporate Governance
Code dated September 2012 will take effect for our 2013/14
financial year

The Code 1s available on the Financial Reporting Council's website
www frc org uk

Board membership
Biographies of the current Directors, including details of their
Commuttee memberships, are shown on page 37

Details of Directors’ attendance at scheduled Board meetings are
shown in the table below

Membership and attendance at meetings

Sir Richard Lapthorne o0000 0000 9/9
Mick Cooper 200000000 9/9
Tim Pennington 000 0000MO 9/9
Tony Rice 2000000800 9/9
Simon Ball 0000008000 9/9
Mary Franais’ QO 0/2
Mark Hamlin 200000000 9/9
Alison Platt? 000000080 8/8
lan Tyler 00000000 9/9

1 Mary Frances retired with effect from 30 June 2012
2 Alison Platt was appointed to the Board with efect from 1 June 2012

Alison Platt was appotnted to the Board as a Non-executive
Director with effect from 1 June 2012, and Mary Francis retired
as a Non-executive Director with effect from the end of her term
on 30 June 2012

The Board meets regutarly and there were nine meetings during
the year, including an annual strategy meeting One Board meeting
took place in a regional business unit location Such visits provide
an insight into the business unit operations, the local teams and the
culture and environment in which they operate

There are a number of informal meetings held throughout the year
and as part of the annual corperate governance programme the
Independent Directors meet once a year to discuss any relevant
governance matters They also met twice with the Chatrman
present and once with the Chairman and Chief Executive present
This balance of formal and informal meetings throughout the year
creates an environment that encourages challenge, the sharning of
information, iInnovative thinking and open commurnication

The Chairman is responsible for the overall operatton and
governance of the Board The Chairman provides the leadership
of the Board to ensure that the Board satisfies its duties and
responsibihities The Chairman sets the agenda for the Board,
ensuring that the Board receives clear, imely and accurate
informatwan The Chairman is also responsible for facilitating the
contribution of the Directors

The Charrman, together with the Senior Independent Director, 1s
also responsible for ensuring that the Company maintains effective
communication with shareholders and other stakeholders

The commitment of the Chairman as a Non-executive Director

of Sherritt International, a company listed on the Toronto Stock
Exchange, as Charman of the PwC Public Interest Body and as
Chairman of the Foresight Group on UK Manufacturing are noted on
page 37, and the Board considers that these appointments are not a
constraint on tus agreed time cornrmitment to the Company

The Chief Executive has responsibility for developing the strategy
for recommendat:on to the Board He is also responsible for the
leadership of the business and managing it within the authonities
delegated by the Board

Role of the Board

The Board is responsible for the Group's corporate governance
system and 1s committed to maintaining hugh governance standards
In order to progress the objectives of the Group the Board meets
en aregular basis and is responsible for organising and directing the
Company and the Group in amanner that promotes the success of
the Company and is consistent with good corporate governance
practice To enable the Board to function effectively, full and timely
access 1s given to all relevant information

The key policies and practices of the Company and the Group are set
out In this report as well as in the reports of the Audit Committee
on pages 48 to 50 and the Remuneration Committee on pages 51
to 66 furthermore, our iIndependent Non-executive Directors have
prepared a report descrnibung corporate governance and behaviours
of the Board on page 47 and details of significant shareholdings and
rights, cbligations, powers and procedures under the Company's
Articles of Association are set out in the statutory information

on pages 42 to 46 Together, these reports provide shareholders
with an insight into how our Beard and senior management seek

to manage the business to create and deliver long-term success

for the Group

Formal minutes recording decistons of all Board and Commuttee
meetings are prepared and orculated to each Director as
appropriate if a Director objects to a particular proposal, this is
recorded in the minutes of the relevant meeting During the period
under review there were no such objections
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Directors’ and corporate
governance report continued

There s a formal schedule of matters reserved to the Board which
includes

— Strategy and management
Approval of long-term objectives and strategy, extension of
Group activities Into new business or geographic areas, any
decision to cease to operate any material part of the Group's
business, review of Group performance and the approval of
annual budget

— Corporate governance
Annual formal reviews of 1ts own performance, a review of Group
corporate governance arrangements, receiving reports on the
views of shareholders and determining the independence of
Non-executive Directors

— Financial reporting and controls
Approval of announcermnents of interim and final results, annual
report and accounts, approval of dimdend policy and approval of
significant changes in accounting policies and practices

— Board membership and other appointments
Changes to the structure, size and composition of the Board,
membership and chairmanship of Beard Committees, ensuring
adequate succession planning, appointment of the Senior
Independent Director and the appointment or removal of the
Company Secretary

— Remuneration
Determining the remuneration policy for the Directors and other
senior executives and the introduction of new share incentive
plans or major changes to existing plans to be put to shareholders
for approval

— Delegation of authonity
The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive and receiving reports from Board Committees on
their activities

— Contracts/expenditure
Approval of all sgmificant contracts and expenditure and all
investments or disposals in shares in which the Group holds an
interest

— Internal controls
Recemving reports on and reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group's risk and control processes to support its strategy and
objectives and assessing these annually

Qther specific responsibilities are delegated to the Audit, Nomination
and Remuneration Committees, each with clearly defined terms

of reference Each Committee reviews their terms of reference
annually to ensure that they remain appropriate and effective

Full details on matters reserved to the Board and the terms
of reference of its Committees can be found on our website
at www cwc com

A0 Cable & Wireless Communications

Board balance and independence

The Board currently comprises the Chairman, three Executive
Directors and four Non-executive Directors The Board considers

all the Company’s Non-executive Directors to be independent in
character and judgement Collectively the Non-executive Directors
contribute to an effective Board with a strong rix of skills and
business experence, inctuding recent financial, strategic, operations
and retal experience, gained in a vaniety of geographic areas As
they alt occupy or have occupied senior positions each contributes
significant weight to Board decisions

The Non-executive Directors are imtially appointed for a three year
term with an expectation that they will continue for a further three
year term

The terms and conditions of appointment of the Non-executive
Directors, which sets out the time commitment expected of them,
and service contracts for Executive Directors, are avallable for
nspection by shareholders at our registered office during normal
bustness hours and at our Annual General Meeting (AGM)

All Directors have access to the advice of the Company
Secretary as well as appropriate tramning and briefings on matters
including corporate socal responsibility, ethics, health & safety
and governance matters Additionally, any Director may take
independent professional advice on any matter at the Company’s
expense in the furtherance of their duties

The Senior independent Director

Simon Ballis the Semor Independent Director of the Company The
Senior Independent Director 15 available to meet shareholders on
request and is the designated point of contact for shareholders to
raise any concerns where contact through the normal channels of
the Chairman or Executive Directors is inappropriate Matters raised
by major sharehalders to any Director are brought to the attention
of the Board

As part of our commitment to regular dialogue, meetings have
been held between the Executive Directors and investors on an
ongoing basis throughout the year The Chairman and the Senor
tndependent Director have offered ongoing dialogue and meetings
with shareholders to discuss any issues they wish to raise, and held
meetings where appropriate or requested The Company intends to
continue this practice

Internal control, risk management and financial reparting

The Board 15 responsible for the Group’'s system of internal control
and for reviewing its effectiveness on a continual basis The Group's
system of internal controlis designed to manage, rather than
eliminate, the nsk of fallure to achieve business objectives and

can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss The concept of reasonable assurance
recognises that the cost of contro! procedures should not exceed
the expected benefits




The Group aperates a risk management process under which

the regional businesses identify the key risks to therr plans, ther
likelihood and impact and the actions betng taken to manage those
nsks and the effectiveness of steps taken to mitigate them The risk
register is presented to the Audrt Committee on a roltng 12 month
basis The principal risks identified by the Group are set out on pages
31t033

The Executive Directors report to the Board, on behalf of
management, significant changes in the Group’s businesses and the
external environment in which it operates In addition, they provide
the Board with monthly financial infarmation, which includes key nsk
and performance indicators The Group’s key internal contrel and
monitoring procedures include the followtng

~— Financial reporting each year, an annual budget 1s agreed and
approved by the Board At each Board meeting, actual results are
reviewed and reported against budget and, when appropriate,
revised forecasts

—Investment appraisal the Group has clearly defined policies for
capital expenditure These include annual budgets, detalled
appraisal processes and post-implementation reviews for such
expenditure

-— Monitoring systems internal controls are monitored through a
programme of internal audits The Internal Audit function reports
to the Audit Committee on its examination and evaluation of the
effectiveness and adequacy of systems of internal control

— Financial and non—financial controls the Group has dedicated
resource to embed processes and controls across the businesses
It operates a number of self-assessment exercises, which include
monthly and quarterly processes to certify compliance with key
financial and non-financial controls via the Business Assurance
Checkhlist {BAC) The BAC requires management to assess and
certify the effectiveness of its fundamental controls over all
aspects of its operations The results of this exercise are utilised
by Internal Audit in planning sts work for the farthcoming year

— Whistle blowing the Group operates an Ethics Helpline which i
adrmirustered by an independent third party and is available to all
employees

—In addition to the regular updates and reports during the year, the
Board was also updated on cyber-security threats and the
controls i place to protect against them

Effectiveness of internal control

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
systems in operation during the financial year in accordance with the
revised Turnbull guidance The processes as set out above have been
in place for the year under review and up to the date of this Annual
report Where appropriate, necessary action has been or is being
taken to remedy any failings and weaknesses identified as significant
duning this review

The responsibility for internal contro! procedures within our joint
ventures rests with the senior management of those operations
We monitor our investments and exert our influence through board
representation where possible

Induction and professional development

Onappomtment, the induction of new Board members 1s undertaken
by the Company Secretary at the request of the Chairman, who
retains responsibility for the induction process The induction
inctudes the provision of information about the Company, details of
pracedures, governance issues and Directors’ responsibilities The
programme also includes meetings with sentor management and

key advisers, with meetings with major shareholders arranged on
request

The ongoing traning and development programme for the Directors
includes

— Regular visits to the overseas business units to meet the local
teams During the year, this ncluded a Board visit to the
Canbbean enabling enhanced knowledge of the business
operations and to meet local external stakeholders

— The Board also received presentations from an external provider
on the economics, political environment, challenges and
opportunities of the Central American telecommunications
markets

— Technology briefing papers to enhance understanding of the
Group's products and services which, during the year, included a
briefing on customer relationship management and billing systems
and processes

— Governance updates from external advisers or via the Company
Secretary's report

— Additional presentations to provide an external stakeholder or
market perspective which, during the year, included a
presentation to the Board regarding governance from an
institutional shareholder’s perspective

In addhtion, individual training requirements are agreed and arranged
with Directors as required

Board Committees
The reports of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
are set out on pages 48 to 50 and 51 to 66 respectively

Nomination Committee
Normination Committee membership

Membership and attendance at meetings

Sir Richard Lapthorme @ in
Simon Ball o 1i”n
Mary Francis’ O 0/1
Mark Hamlin ® 11
Alison Platt? 0/0
lan Tyler ] 1”1

1 Mary Francis retred from the Committee with effect from 30 June 2012
% Alsen Platt was appointed to the Committee with effect from 1 june 2012

The Nomination Committee (the Committee) was chared by

Sir Richard Lapthorne throughout the year Ahson Platt became a
member of the Committee upon her appeintment to the Board as a
Non-executive Director on 1 June 2012, and Mary Francis retired
with effect from 30 June 2012 All members of the Committee,
apart from the Chairman, are ndependent Non-executive Directors

Terms of reference
The terms of reference set out the authority of the Committee to
carry outits duties

The full terms of reference of the Commuttee are available
at WWW CWC Com

The principal duties of the Committee are set out In the terms of
reference and include

— To review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations with regard to any changes

— To gve full consideration te succession planming for key roles

— To identify and nominate candidates for the approval of the
Board, having evaluated the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board

— To review the time commtment reguired from Non-executive
Directors

— To ensure that the balance of the Board and its Commuttees s
consistent with good corporate governance and complies with the
minimum requirements of the Code
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Directors’ and corporate
governance report continued

In accordance with the terms of reference, the Committee has
reviewed succession planring requirements and the need to ensure
planned and progressive refreshing of the Board as and when
required

Meetings
The Nomination Committee met on one occasion n the period
1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013

During the period under review, the Committee considered and
recommended to the Board the appointment of Alison Platt as a
Non-executive Director, and as a member of the Audit, Nomination
and Remuneration Committees Alison Platt, as a Managing Director
at Bupa responsible for driving retail growth in international markets,
was identified as a candidate who would complement the existing
balance of skills and knowfedge of the Board, with sufficient time

to dedicate to the role JCA Group, an independent boardroom
consultancy firm, was appointed to undertake the search and was
briefed wath the critena required for the role, including consideration
for gender diversity The suitability of her knowledge and skills was
independently venfied by JCA Group

In addition, 1In May 2013 the Committee considered and
recommended the re-appointment of Non-executive Director
Simon Ball for a further one year period Simon Ball has been on the
Board of the Company since demerger in March 2010, and prior

to this served as a Non-executive Director of Cable and Wireless
plc from 1 May 2006 The re-appointment of Simon Ball was
considered in the hght of the Code requirements for his continued
independence and the need to ensure progressive refreshing of the
Board The Committee reviewed his contnibution over the previous
year and considered that fus skills and breadth of experience would
be valuable in retaining a well-balanced Board

The Board remains supportive of Lord Davies’ recommendations
The Board understands the importance of diversity and recogrmises
the importance of women having greater representation in senior

roles The search for Board candidates will continue to be conducted,

and appointments made, with due regard to the benefits of diversity
on the Board and where appropriate specialist search consultants
engaged to assist in the search for suitable candidates However, all
appomtments to the Board are ultimately based on merit, measured
against objective criteria, and the skills and experience the indwvidual
can bring to the Board taking into account a number of factors
including the existing size of the Board, the balance of Executive and
Non-executive Directors as well as the existing skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity already represented and the likely future
requirements

The composition of the Board, including the balance of skills,
independence, knowledge and diversity on the Board 1s reviewed
annually as part of the Board evaluation process
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Performance evaluation

In accordance with the Code, an external evaluation of the Board
takes place at least every three years The last external evaluation
was undertaken in 2011 by Independent Audit Limited, which
evaluated the performance of the Board as a whole Independent
Audit Limted has no other connection wath the Corpany or Group

Aninternal Board evaluation was conducted in 2012 using a
structured guestionnaire, which covered the operations of the Board
and its principal Committees Questionnaires were also 1ssued, in the
case of each of the Board Committees, to those participants who
regularly attend these meetings

The report on the findings of the review was discussed by the
Board at its meeting in June 2012 The evaluation concluded that
the Board andits Committees operate effectively A number of
recommendations were made following the review and the key
themes included further consideration of the size of the Board in
light of the strategic direction of the Group and augmenting the
Board’s induction and traning programme, with an increased focus
on matters specific to the telecommunications industry The Non-
executive Directors also appraised the Chairman's performance
and carefully reviewed the relationship between the Chairman and
the Executive Directors to ensure that the Board structure and
relationships continue to promote the long-term success of the
Group

The Board evaluation for 2013 will also be conducted using a
structured questionnaire covering the operation of both the Board
and its pnincipal Commuittees and the results and recommendations
will subsequently be discussed by the Board

Other statutory information

Principal activities, business review and results

The Group's principal activities are detailed on pages 2 and 3
Through this Annual report, including the Chawrman's review and
the Business review sections (pages 1 to 33) that precede this
report and this corporate governance section {pages 38 to 67}
the Board seeks to present a balanced and clear assessment of the
Group's activities, position and prospects Each of those sections
is incorporated by reference into the Directors’ report, which s
comprised of those sections, the information set out below and the
other information which is incorporated by reference The Group’s
results for the financial year are shown in the consolidated income
statement on page 71

Directors
The names and biographical detarls of the Directors are set out on
page 37

In compliance with the Code which specifies that all directors
of FTSE 350 companies should be subject to annual election by
shareholders, all Directors will stand for re-election at the 2013
AGM

The interests of the Directors and their connected persons in the
shares of Cable & Wireless Communications Plc, along with detalls
of their share awards, are contaned in the Directors’ remuneration
report set out on pages 51 to 66




No Director had a matenal interest in any sigificant contract
with the Company or any of its subsidianies during the year For
further information, refer to note 32 of the consohdated fimancial
statements

The Company has granted indemmities in favour of its Directors
agamst personal financial exposure that they may imcur in the course
of their professional duties as Directors of the Company and/or any
subsidiaries (as applicable} These indemnities are qualifying third-
party indemnity provisions for the purposes of the Compantes Act
2006 (the 2006 Act) They were granted on appointment of the
Directors and are still in force Officers of wholly owned subsiciary
companies within the Group have also been granted indemnities

Dividends

The Directors recommend a final dividend of US2 67 cents per
ordinary share payable on 9 August 2013 to ordinary shareholders
on the register at the close of business on 31 May 2013 Ths final
dmdend, together with the interim dividend of US1 33 cents per
share pard by the Company en 11 January 2013, makes a total
dmtdend payment to shareholders of the Company of iS4 cents
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2013

Share capital and treasury shares

The called-up share capital of the Company, together with details
of shares allotted during the year, are shown in note 8 to the
Company financial statements At the 2012 AGM, the Company was
authorised by shareholders to purchase up to 252 million of 1ts own
ordinary shares, representing approximately 10% of its 1ssued share

Company’s shareholders

capital (excluding shares held in treasury) as at 11 June 2012 Under
the authority granted by shareholders at the 2010 AGM to purchase
up to 262 million of its own ordinary shares, on 23 February 2011
the Company announced a share buyback programme up to a value
of US$100 million in order toreturn capital to shareholders During
the period 1 April 2011 to 20 July 2011, the Company purchased
94,726,873 shares with a nominal value of US$0 05 each foran
aggregate consideration of US$66 million, and these are held as
treasury shares The total number of shares held in treasury as at

31 March 201315 137,488,873

The Board intends to seek sharehelder approval at the forthcoming
AGM on 25 July 2013 to make market purchases of up to 10% of
its 1ssued share caprtal (excluding shares held in treasury) Detals of
the proposed resolution are included in the Notice of Meeting The
Drrectors have no present intention of exercising this authority to
purchase the Company’s ordinary shares but will keep the matter
under review, taking into account other investment opportunities
The authonty would only be exercised If and when, In the light

of market conditions prevailing at the time, the Directors belreve
that the effect of such purchases will be in the best interests of
shareholders generally

The Company 1s not aware of any agreements between holders of
securities that may result in restnictions on the transfer of securities
or on voting rights

Further details on the share capital of the Company are set out in
note B to the Company financial statements on page 132 and are
incorporated into this report by reference

As at 31 March 2013 and the date of this report, the Company had been notified of the following substantial holdings of voting rights in the
1ssued share capital of the Company in accordance with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules

As at 31 March 2013 As at 21 May 2013

No of % of Nature of No of % of Nature of

ordinary shares voting rights holding  ordinary shares voting rights holding

Orbis Holdings Limited 370,326,609 14 65 Indirect 370,326,609 14 65 indirect
Asa Asa

Newton Investment Management Limited 252,784,845

discretionary
999 fund manager

discretionary
999 fund manager 252,784,845

Ethics

The Company 1s committed to sound business conduct in its
relationships with key stakeholders (shareholders, employees,
customers, business partners and suppliers), governments and
regulaters, communities and the environment

During the year a review of the Group's ethics policies was
undertaken A new Code of Conduct policy was approved by the
Board which sits alongside the Group’s Anti-Bribery Policy and
applies to all Group companies and employees Where the Group
operates In conjunction with business partners, third parties or

in joint venture arrangements without management control, it
aims to promote the apphcation of these policies Responsibility
for the compliance with the policy remains with the Board and the
regional Chief Executives are responsible for the communication,
implementation and monitoring of their region

The Group seeks to conduct its operations with honesty, integrity
and openness, and with respect for the human rights and interests
of our employees The Group respects the legihimate interests of

all those with whom 1t has relationships The Group's employees are
required to complete an annual online training programme in relation
to these policies

Charitable and political donations

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group

gave US$1 42 million (2011/12 — US$3 million) to

chanitable organisations including US$91,436 (£60,000)

(2011712 - US$144,312 (£90,000)) to the Porthcurno Trust,

a charitable organisation in the United Kingdom The Group

actively supports corporate social responsibiity in the communities
in which it operates and more information on these activities 1s

set out on pages 20 to 23

The Company has no intention of making donations to what are
generally regarded as pohitical parties within the European Union
As a precautionary measure and in the ight of the wide definitions
of Eurepean Union political orgarusations for the purposes of the
2006 Act, a resolution was passed at the 2010 AGM permitting
the Company to make political donattons and incur pehtical
expenditure During the year, the Company did not exercise its
authority granted to it at the 2010 AGM to make political donations
within the European Union In aggregate, the sumof U5$91,126
{US$233,167 - 2011/12) was made to non-tU political parties
by non-EU subsidiary companies during the year

Suppher payment policy

The Company did not enter into any purchase contracts with
suppliers which required payment during the year to 31 March
2013 It1s the Group's policy to agree appropriate terms and
condrtions in advance with suppliers and to make payment in
accordance with those terms and conditions, provided the supplier
has complied with them
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Directors’ and corporate
governance report continued

Employee inclusion and diversity

The Group operates in many countries with diverse employment
practices Whilst respecting local circumstances, wherever we
operate we follow the principles of equal opportunity in recruitment,
development, remuneration and advancement The Group's
employment policies also comply with local requirements and meet
relevant standards on employment of disabled people Full and

fair constderation 1s given to disabled apphicants for employment
and training, and career development 15 encouraged on the basis
of aptitude and ability it 1s Group policy to retamn employees who
become disabled whilst in its service and to provide specialist
training where appropriate

Employee communication

The Group commumcates with employees 1n many ways, including
regular briefings by management, newsletters and intranet sites
These communications help to achieve a common awareness among
employees of the financial and operational performance of the
Group

Exercise of nghts of shares in employee share schemes

The Trustees of The Cable & Wireless Communications Share
Ownership Trust (the Trust) exercise the voting rights on shares held
in the employee trust in accordance with their fiduciary duties as
Trustees, whichinclude the duty to act in the best interests of the
beneficiaries of the Trust

Annual General Meeting

The AGM will be held at 11 00am on Thursday 25 July 2013 at the
Grange Tower Bridge Hotel, 45 Prescot Street, London E1 8GP
Details of the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM are given in the
Notice of Meeting

Auditor

Our auditor, KPMG Audit Pic, has instigated an orderly wind down
of its business as a result of an internal reorganisation and KPMG
LLP (an intermediate parent) 1s proposed as statutory auditor of
the Company for the next financial year Resolutions to appoint
KPMG LLP as our external auditor in place of KPMG Audst Plc and
to authorise the Directors to set the auditor’s remuneration will be
proposed at the AGM

So far as the Directors are aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information (as defined in Section 418(3) of the 2006 Act) of which
the auditors are unaware and the Directors have taken all reasonable
steps to ascertain any relevant audit information and ensure the
auditors are aware of such information

44 Cable & Wireless Communications

Change of control

The Group has a number of contracts that are subject to change of
contro! clauses These primanly relate to financing faciiities, bonds,
licences and operating agreements

Under the Group’s US$500 million and US$100 milhon revolving
credit facility agreements, on a change of contro! the lenders are
not obliged tofund any further sums and, If the majority lenders
require, on not less than 10 days’ notice, the faciity can be cancelled
and all outstanding loans, together with related charges, become
immediately due and payable

Under the terms of the US$500 million 7 75% 2017 Sentor Secured
Notes and the US$400 miliion 8 75% 2020 Senior Secured Notes
(the Bonds), if a change of control event occurs, each holder of the
Bonds will have the night to require the repurchase of all or any part
of their Bonds at a redemption price equal to 101% of the principal
amount of the Bonds purchased, together with accrued (but unpaid)
nterest

A number of the Group's operating licences and shareholders’
agreements include change of control clauses which may be
triggered by the sale of all or a controlling stake in a business, or
certain types of restructunng

In the event of a change of control, these clauses may require
consideration to determme their impact on the Group At present,
nisks arising from a change of control are not considered to be
significant The Group will take appropriate action to mitigate any
risks arising from these events should they occur Change of control
provisions in relation to Directors’ service contracts are explained in
the Directors’ remuneration report on page 58

Rights and obligations attaching to the ordinary shares

The following section summarises the rights and abligations in the
Company's Articles of Associatien (the Articles) relating to the
ordinary shares of the Company The full Articles can be found on
the Company's website www cwc com

Amendment of Articles The Articles may be amended by a special
resolution of the shareholders passed at a general meeting of the
Company

Voting Each share (other than those held in treasury) aliows the
holder to have one vote at general meetings of the Company on
votes taken ona poll Proxy appointment and voting instructions
must be received by the registrars at least 48 hours before the ime
appomnted for the holding of a general meeting or 24 hours before

a pollif not taken on the same day as the meeting (in each case
subject to the Directors’ discretion to specify that the time periods
exclude any part of a day that is not a working day)




Dividends The Company’s shareholders can declare dividends by
passing an ordinary resolution, but the payment cannot exceed the
amount recommended by the Directors The Directors may also
pay intenm dwidends without shareholder approval If they consider
that the financial position of the Company justifies it The Directors
may operate dividend reinvestment plans or, subject to shareholder
approval, operate scrip schemes or pay dividends by distributing
assets No dwvidend carnes aright to mterest from the Company If
dividends remain unclaimed for 12 years they are forfeited by the
shareholder and revert to the Company

Partly paid shares The Company has a ien on all partly paid shares
{and dividends), which has priority over claims of others to such
shares covering any money owed to the Company for the shares
The Directors may sell alt or any of such shares where (1) the money
owed by the shareholder 1s payable immediately, (i1) the Directors
have given notice demanding payment, stating the amount due and
that the shares will be sold on non-payment, and (1) the meney has
not been paid within 14 clear days of the service of the notice

The Directors may make calls on shareholders to pay any money
which has not yet been paid to the Company for therr shares If a
callis unpaid, the shareholder will be hable to pay interest and all
expenses incurred by the Company as a result of non-payment If
the call remains unpaid for 14 clear days after the date of a notice
In addition, failure to comply with any such notice may result in
forfeiture of any share which is the subject of the notice, including
any unpaid dividends

The Drrectors may dechine to register the transfer of any shares
that are not fully paid, provided that such refusal does not prevent
dealings from taking place on an open and proper basis

Sanctions Unless the Directors decide otherwise, a shareholder shall
not be entitled to vote at any general meeting of the Company or at
any separate general meeting of the holders of any class of shares in
the Company or exercise any other right conferred by membership
in relation to general meetings if the shareholder has not paid all
amounts relating to those shares which are due at the time of the
meeting, or If the shareholder 1s given a notice following a failure

by that shareholder or someone who appears to be interested in

the shares to comply with a notice under section 793 of the 2006
Act Further, if a shareholder holding 0 25% or more of the 1ssued
shares of a class {(excluding treasury shares) or interested person s
in default of a section 793 notice, the Directors may also state in the
notice that (1) the payment of any dividend shall be withheld, (1) the
shareholder shall not be entitled to elect to receive shares in place of
dividends withheld, and (i) the transfer of the shares held by such
shareholder shall be restricted

Certificated shares The Company can sell any certificated shares at
the best price reasonably obtainable at the time of the sale if (1)
apenod of 12 years at least three dividends have become payable
and no dividends have been claimed, (1) the Company has published
a notice after the 12 year period stating that it ntends to sell the
shares, and (i) during the 12 year penod and for three months after
the notice, the Company has not heard from the shareholder or any
person entitled to sell the shares

The Directors may dechne registration of certificated shares f (1) a
share transfer form 1s used to transfer more than one class of shares,
(n) transfers are in favour of more than four joint holders, or {m) the
share transfer form 1s not defivered to the office, or such other place
deaded on by the Directors, accompanied by the share certificate
relating to the shares being transferred (unless the transfer1sby a
person to whom the Company was not required to, and did not, send
a certificate) and any other evidence reasonably asked for by the
Directors to show entitlemnent to transfer the shares

Uncertificated shares The Directors may decline registration of
uncertificated shares if the transfer 1s in favour of more than four
joint holders or otherwise in accordance with the Uncertificated
Secunities Regulations 2001

Interests in shares Except where express nights are given, the
Company will enly recogrise a current and absolute right to whole
shares The fact that any share, or any part of a share, may not be
owned outright by the registered owner is not of any concern to the
Company

US Holders The Directors may require a shareholder or other person
appearing to be interested inshares, te disclose information relating
to the ownership of such shares or to show that such shares are

not held by a US Holder {defined in the Articles as being (1) persons
resident 1n the US who hold shares in the Company and {(n) persons
who appear to the Directors to fall within sub-paragraph (1} of the
definition of a US Holder) The Directors may require a US Holder to
sell therr shares to someone who i1s not a US Holder, faling which, the
Company may effect a sale of such shares on the US Holder's behalf

Disputes Any disputes between a shareholder and the Company
and/or the Directors ansing out of or in connection with the Articles
shall be exclusively and finally resolved under the Rules of Arbitration
of the International Chamber of Commerce, as amended from time
to time, in accerdance with the Articles

Appointment and replacement of Directors

The rufes about the appointment and replacement of Directors are
contained in the Articles, including the rules for who s eligible to be
elected as a Director and the procedure to be followed to nominate
such persons

The Articles provide that Directors may be appointed by an ordinary
resolution of the members or by a resolution of the Directors,
provided that, in the latter instance, a Director appointed in this
way retires and stands for election at the first AGM following his
appeintment

The Company’s members may remove a Director by passing an
ordinary resolution for which special notice has been given Any
Drrector will automatically cease to be a Director if (1) they resign,
{n) they offer to resign and the other Directors accept that offer,
() ali the other Directors (being at least three} require it, (W) they
are suffering from mental {ll health and the Directors require thern
to cease to be a Director, (v) they have missed Directors’ meetings
for a continuous pened of six months without permission and

the other Directors resolve that they shall cease to be a Director,
(v1) a bankruptcy order 15 made against them, or they make an
arrangement or compositionwith therr creditors, (vi) they are
prohubited from being a Director by law, or {(vin) they cease to be

a Director under legislation or are removed from office under the
Articles
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Powers of Directors

The powers of the Directors are determined by UK legislation and
the Articles As provided in the Articles, the Directors may exercise
all the Company’s powers provided that the Articles or applicable
legislation do not stipulate that any such powers must be exercised
by the members The Directors have been authorised to 1ssue and
allot ordinary shares, pursuant to Article 12 The powers under
Article 12 are referred to shareholders at the AGM for renewat
Shareholders are also requested to renew the Directors’ power

to make market purchases of shares at each AGM Any shares
purchased may be cancelled or held as treasury shares

Conflicts of interest

The Articles permit the Directors to authonise conflicts and potential

conflicts Pracedures have been put in place for the disclosure by
Directors of any such conflicts and also for the consideration and
authorisation of these conflicts by the Board These procedures
allow for the imposition of imits or conditions by the Board when
authorising any conflict, if they think this i1s appropriate

46 Cable & Wireless Communications

Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely

to affect its future development, performance and position are
set out in the Business reviews on pages 1 to 33 including the
Financial review on pages 24 to 30 The financial position of the
Group, its cashflows, hquidity position and borrowing facilities are
described m the Financial review on pages 24 to 30 Further, notes
24, 28 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements include the
Group's cbjectves, policies and processes for managing its capital,
its financial risk management objectives, details of its financial
instruments and hedging activities, and its exposure to credit and
liguidity risk

The Directors believe that the Group's geographic spread, robust
monrtoring and forecasting processes leave 1t well placed to

manage its business risks in the current economic conditions

In additron, the Group's forecasts and projections, taking into
account possible changes in trading performance which could be
reasonably anticipated, indicate that the Group 1s able to operate
within the level of its current available facthties A formal process for
momitoring comphance with debt covenants s also in place Further
information on debt can be found In note 22 to the consohdated
financial statements

After reviewing budgets and other longar-term plans and making
enguiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operation for the
foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements

C uhob”@d

By order of the Board

Clare Underwood
Company Secretary

21 May 2013




Independent
Directors’ report

The strategic portfoho considerations leading up to the disposal
of the Islands and Macau business vnits has required a different
focus from the Board during the year

Additional time was added to the exght scheduled Board meetings
and a further Board meeting was also held Significant attention was
given to the move from a diverse international portfolio of assets,
to afocused, unified regional telecoms operator The Board has
discussed evolving strategy throughout the year with robust and
challenging debate on the organic and tnorganic opportunities in the
pan-America reglon as well as the cultural and organisation demands
of the move to a regional telecoms operator External participants
were mvited to the strategy meeting in December to discuss the
ecanomic and political environment of the regton which provided a
valuable insight for the Independent Directors as well as a further
basis for ngorous debate in subsequent discussions

During the year, it was important that despite the substantive focus
on the changing bustness, close attention remained on dehivering a
strong operating performance The annual meeting plan included

a number of recurring items particularly in relation to financial and
operationat performance to inform a structured debate In addition,
a number of unstructured debates took place during the year
covering a number of matters including strategy and remuneration
These discussions enabled the Board to freely discuss and challenge
the Company's behaviour and approach to such matters without the
constraints of predetermied opinions

In the past three years, at least two Board meetings a year have
taken place in the regional business urit locations These visits give
the Independent Directors a valuable insight into the business unit
operations, the local teams and the culture and environment within
which they operate The number of overseas visits was reduced

in the year ended 31 March 2013 due to the time commitment
required in relation to the disposal of the two business units During
the year, the Board visited the Cayman Islands and met with the
Caribbean management teamn as well as external stakeholders
including Government Ministers and enterprise customers

As part of the annual corporate governance programme, the
Independent Directors met separately during the year to discuss
any relevant governance matters They also met twice with the
Chawrman present and once wath the Chatrman and Chief Executwe
present

Alison Platt, Managing Director at Bupa responsible for International
Development Markets joined the Board as an Independent Director
n June 2012 Alson’s breadth of experience gained during her
successful career at Bupa has augmented the Board's focus on
behavicural, organisational, market facing and cultural matters ali

of which are key considerations in this period of transformational
change

Turming now to the four questions posed annually as part of Cable
& Wireless Communications’ approach to measurning effective
corporate governance

1 What is the quality of the relationship between the Chairman
and the Executive Directors?

The Chairman and the Executive Directors have been working
together as a teamn since 2008 and the relationship between them
has remained strong This provided a stable background to plan and
execute two major corporate transactions and facihitate the decision
to move towards a unified regional telecoms operator

There 1s a clear understanding of the roles of each of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive with the Chairman being responsible for the
leadership of the Board and the Chief Executive being responsible
for runming the business

2 How open are the Executive Directors with the Board?

The Board receives detailled reports and presentations from the
three Executive Directors in advance of Board meetings, as well
as updates at the meetings This s supplemented by unstructured
debates on key strategic areas There were also three informal
meetings held during the course of the year

The Board also meets with members of the London and Regional
Senior Management teams who are invited to attend Board and
Commuittee meetings to present and discuss a number of matters
including remuneration, risk and operational performance enabling
an open forum for discussion and debate

3 What is the visibility of the checks and balances between the
Executive Directors?

The wisibiity of checks and balances between the Executive
Directors has remained hugh This was particularly important for the
executton of the disposal of the two business units as well as the
preparation and approval of the two circutars which were sent to
shareholders

The Executve Directors have openly shared and debated different
perspectives in Board meetings enabling the Non-executive
Directors to obtain a rounded view of the Executive Directors’ views

4 Have questions asked by the Independent Directors in Board
and Committee meetings been appropniately addressed?

The Independent Directors are comfortable that questions have
been answered in a considered and effective manner throughout
the year ended 31 March 2013 and are satished that the corporaie
governance controls of Cable & Wireless Communications Plc are
effective

As we look ahead to the transformation process with the
consequent strategic and executive challenges that will present
to the Executive Directars and the Board, as a whole, it will be
entical that the beneficial behavioural practices established are
continuously applied The Charrman, the Executive Directors and
the independent Directors need to pay particular attention to this
aspect of Board management and behaviours in the pernod ahead

Simon Ball
Sentor Independent Director

21 May 2013
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Audit Committee report

“This report sets out the membership, purposes and
activities of the Audit Committee. During the year, the
Committee has undertaken a number of key activities,
including considering the effects of the disposal of the
Monaco & Islands and Macau business units, reviews
of judgemental accounting and disclosure issues such
as exceptional items, revenue recognition, the risk
management framework and the effectiveness of the
Group’s external audit arrangements.”

Ian Tyler
Chatrman of the Auduit Commitiee

2012/13 Key activities

— Rewviewing the annual report and accounts,
preliminary results and pressrelease for the year
ended 31 March 2012

-~ Reviewing the composition and balance of trade
receivables and acerued income during the year to
assess the level of exposure within the Group

— Reviewing the nature and disclosure of exceptional
iems

— Reviewing the Group's revenue recognition
policles and their application

— Reviewing the internal control and risk
management framework processes and how they
are implemented by the reglonal business units

— Reviewing the effectiveness of the in-house audit
team and the co-source arrangements as well as
the internal audit plan, taking into consideration
the transformational activity during the year
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— The appointment of a new hezd of internal audit
— Reviewing the status of Group hitigation

- Assessing the external auditor's independence and
undertaking an evaluation of the external auditor

— Reviewing external audit strategy and fees,
including the impact of the disposals on the scope
of the audit

— Review of tax risk and treasury, accounting and tax
policies

— Reviewing theinterim results and press release for
the six months ended 30 September 2012

— Monitoring Group insurance cover

-— Reviewing the accounting impact of the disposal of
the Monaco & Islands and Macau business units

Thisreport should be read in conjunction with the
Directors’ and corporate governance report on pages
38t0 47




Audit Committee membership
The Audit Committee (the Commuttee) 1s comprised solely of
independent Non-executive Directors

Membership and attendance at meetings

Simon Ball 92000 4/4
Mary Francis' O o/t
Mark Hamlin o800 474
Alison Platt? 00 3/3
lan Tyler 9000 4/4

1 Mary Francis retired from the Committee with effect from 30 June 2012
2 Ahson Platt was apponted as a member of the Committee with effect from 1 June
2012

With effect from 1 June 2012, lan Tyler was appointed Chatrman of
the Committee and Alison Platt a member of the Committee

The Board has satisfied itself that at least one member of the
Committee has recent and relevant financial experience and s
confident that the collective experience of the members enables
them to act as an effective Audit Committee The outcomes of
Committes meetings are reported to the Board

Terms of reference
The terms of reference set out the authonity of the Commuttee to
carry out its duties

The Committee undertock a review of its objectives and terms
of reference duning the period and the full terms of reference are
avallable at www cwc com

The principal duties of the Commuttee are set out in the terms of
reference and include

— To review and monitor the effectiveness of internal controls,
internal audit and nsk management systems

— To review and approve the internal audit programme, ensurning
adequate resources and co-ordination with external auditors

— To monitor the integrity of the financial statements and
announcements relating to financial performance, and review
significant judgements contained in them

- To moritor the financial reporting process and the effectiveness
of the statutory audit of the Annual report

— To review and monitor independence and performance of external
auditors, recommend their appointment, re-appointment and
removal toa the Board as appropniate and develop policy in relation
to the provision of non-audit services

Meetings

The Committee held four scheduled meetings during the year ended
31 March 2013 Details of Committee membership and indvidual
attendance at the meetings by members are given in the table on
this page

The Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Group Financial Controller,
Head of Internal Audit and representatives from KPMG Audit Pic
(KPMG), the Company’s external auditor, are also invited to attend afl
Committee meetings tn May and November when the full year and
half year results are considered, the Chairman is also invited to attend

The agenda for meetings 1s prepared by the Committee Chairman

In conjunction with the Chief Financial Officer, Group Financial
Controller and the external auditor Each scheduled meeting
commences with a private session, attended only by Commuttee
members, the external auditor and Head of Internal Audit, to take
soundings on matters to be discussed at the meeting or any other
matters attendees wish to highight At each meeting the Committee
then receives reports from the Chuef Financial Gfficer, the external
auditor and the Head of Internal Audht, together with biannual
Itigation reports

Disclosure Committee

To assist the Committee with the above, responsibility for
identifying and considering disclosure matters in connection with
the preparation of all market releases containing material financial
information has been delegated to a Disclosure Committee This
Committee comprises members of semor management from
finance, legal, company secretarial and investor relations

During the preparation of the Annual report, the Disclosure
Committee obtains certifrcations from contributors prior to the
document’s review by the Committee and approval by the Board

Whistle blowing

The Company provides an Ethics Helpline which 1s administered by
an independent third party and 1s available to all Group employees
via a web-portal or by telephone This provides a mechanmism

for employees to raise concerns where they either do not feel
comfortable ratsing the matter with local management or they are
not satisfied with the local management response

Internal Audit

Internal Audit is led by the Head of Internat Audit, supported

by a team of in-house auditors based in the UK and Jamaica,
supplemented by a third party to provide specific skills as required
The internal audit plan 1s approved by the Committee annually
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External audit

The Board has accepted the Committee’s recommendation that
KPMG should be retamed for 2013/14 This recommendation was
based on a detalled review of the 2011712 audit of the Company
which demonstrated overall satisfaction with the performance

of KPMG as external auditor The review included a survey of
Committee members and key personnel involved in the audit,
discussions with KPMG, senior management and Internal Audit,
as well as an analysis of KPMG's capabilities and independence

The external auditor 1s required to rotate the audit partner
responsible for the Group audit every five years The audit
engagement partner responsible for the 2012/13 audtt wilt rotate
following the completion of the Group's 2013/14 audit cycle

KPMG was appointed as auditor of the Company during the financial

year 2009/10 and also acted as auditor of Cable and Wireless
plc from 1991 There are no contractual obligations restricting
the Company’s choice of external auditors A revised version of
the UK Corporate Governance Code was issued by the Financial

Reporting Council in September 2012 which provides that FTSE 350

companies should put the external audit contract out to tender at
least every 10 years The Committee will consider these provisions
and developing guidance in relation to audit tendering and rotation
n light of emerging practice during the course of the financial year
ending 31 March 2014

KPMG has instigated an orderly wind down of KPMG Audit Plc as a

result of an internal reorganisation and requested that going forward
the audit 1s instead undertaken by KPMG LLP (an intermediate parent

of KPMG Audit Plc) KPMG Audit Plc will not therefore be seeking
re-appointment as auditor of the Company and In accordance with

the Companies Act 2006, a resolution proposing the appomtment of

KPMG LLP as our auditor will be put to the 2013 AGM
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The Committee has established a policy to maintain the
independence of the external auditor and its personnel and to
govern the provision of audit and non-audit services provided by
the auditor and its associates The policy clearly identifies permitted
and prohibited services and sets out the procedure to be followed
for the approval of all audit and non-audit services All engagements
with an expected fee in excess of US$400,000 require the prior
approval of the Chairman of the Comrttee, and to be reported to
the Commuttee

For the year ended 31 March 2013 the Committee approved fees
for audit services of US$4 3 million, together with fees for audit-
related regulatory reporting of US$0 8 million and non-audit work of
US$1 2 millien The nature of the services provided Is set out in note
6e to the consalidated financial statements There 1s no limitation

of hability in the terms of appointment of KPMG as auditor to the
Company

lan Tyler
Charman, Audit Committee

21 May 2013




Directors’ remuneration report

“This year our incentive arrangements take into
account the changing shape of our portfolio”

S1mon Ball
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

| am pleased to present, on behalf of the Board, the Remuneration
Committee’s report providing details of the remuneration of the
Directors for the financial year 2012/13 and our policy for 2013/14

As you may be aware, the UK Government’s Department for
Business, Innovation & Skills (BiS) has produced draft regulations
reforming the way In which the remuneration of Directors is
approved and reported upon The new regulations expected to come
into effect in October 2013 will impact the content and presentation
of the Directors’ remuneration report Accordingly, we have decided
to adopt some of the draft regulations early, including the splitting
of the report into two sections a Policy report, setting out our
policy for the year ahead, and an Implementation report, setting out
how we implemented our paolicy over the year to 31 March 2013,
which we hope will make the overall report more accessible for
shareholders

Remuneration policy for 2013/14

Over the past 12 months there have been significant changes within
our organisation We have divested of the Islands part of our Monaco
& Islands business (specifically the Channel Islands, the Maldives,
the Seychelles and South Atlantic territories) and are in the process
of finalising the sale of our 51% shareholding in CTM, our Macau
operation These changes in our portfolio will allow us to create a
more focused pan-America business around our existing Caribbean
and Panamanian businesses and will enable us to explore potental
acquisition opportunities in this region alongside organic growth
initiatives As a result, we are proposing some changes to how our
bonus and Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP) schemes are structured
for 2013/14 to ensure that our incentive arrangements are ahgned
appropniately with the new orgamisational structure

As we wish to incentivise our Executive Directors to focus on the
continuing operations of the business, 70% of the bonus will remain
subject to EBITDA and cash flow targets The performance of
Macau will be excluded from the bonus targets and will not count
towards performance In the event that Monaco Telecom s sold in
the year, the outcome of the sale will form part of the consideration
of bonus outcome 30% of the bonus will be measured on specific
personal objectives, with the focus based on measures relating to
the portfoho reshaping

Last year we made a number of changes to our LTiP arrangements,
speafically a reduction in quantum of LTIP awards and a change in
performance condiions from absolute Total Sharehelder Return
(TSR} to a combination of relative TSR and Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Since that review, Inlight of the significant organisational changes
that have taken and will take place in the short to medium term,
the Committee has agreed that for the 2013/14 LTIP awards, the
use of relative TSR as a single metric 1s more appropriate given the
difficuities in setting a robust and appropriate EPS range during a
period of significant organisational change There will be no change
to the policy on overall quantum for the bonus and LTIP

No salary increases are being proposed for the Executive Directors
and so fixed pay levels have been maintained at current levels

Full details of our bonus and LTIP arrangements for the forthcoming
year are described in the report

Performance and reward for 2012/13

Bonuses for 2013 are paying out at the level of 56% of maximum
opportunity for Tony Rice, and 61% of maximum opportumity for
Tim Pennington and Nick Cooper The bonus payments represent

a combination of strong EBITDA performance for Macau and
Monaco & Islands which has flowed through to robust Net Cash Flow
before Financing (NCFbf) results, and solid performance against
personal objectives Further detatls on the bonus outturn s provided
on page 61

No LTIP awards vested in the year to 31 March 2013, as the
absolute TSR performance target was not achieved (n addition, the
LTIP award with performance conditions measured over the three
years to 3 June 2013 1s forecast to also not reach the absolute TSR
performance target

A single resolution for the advisory approval of this report will be put
10 shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) on 25 July
2013 Onbehalf of the Remuneration Committee, | hope that we can
again rely on the continued support of our shareholders in 2013/14

Simon Ball
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
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Directors’

remuneration report

continued

2012/13 Key activities

— Finahising executive remuneration arrangements
for 2012/13, on the basis described 1n last year's
Annual report This included implementing the
structural changes to the LTIP arrangements
made last year, approving the annual bonus
payments and deferred bonus awards relating to
performancein 2011/12

— Reviewing annual bonus arrangemenits for the
forthcomingyear, 2013/14, and aligning with the
strategic direction of the Group

— Reviewing our shareholding gindelines whach
are at the upper decile for all FTSE companies
thus creating effective claw back and alignment
between Executive Directors and shareholders

— Undertaking a risk audit of executive remuneration
policies

— Consultation with shareholders on remuneration
approach for 2012/13

— Reviewing the BIS developments and
recommendations and scheduling work towards
their implementation, including implementing
some of the proposed recommendations into this
year's temuneration report

— Reviewing the Remuneration Commuttee’s Terms
of Reference to ensure that they are up to date and
remain appropriate
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This report provides information on the remuneration
of the Directors of Cable & Wireless Communications
Plc for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the
arrangements that will apply until 31 March 2014
Itwill be subject to an advisory vote at the AGM on
25july 2013

‘The report1s spht into two prumary sections a Policy
report and an Implementation report The following
topics are covered in each section

Policy report
— An overview of our remuneration policy

— Remuneration arrangements for 2013/14 and how
these ahgn with Board strategy

Implementation report
— Remuneration Committee governance

— Remuneration outcomes in 2012/13

— Audited information




Policy report

Overview of our remuneration policy

The structure of remuneration for Executive Directors was initially
adopted on demerger in March 2010 The Remuneration Committee
(the Committee) recognised that the circumstances for managing
Cable & Wireless Communications Plc were materially different from
those affecting the former Cable and Wireless plc and over the fast
three years has significantly amended its policy to a more standard
arrangement, while criically retaiming hinkage to the Company’s
evolving strategy

Our policy

Overview

The overall aim1s to establish remuneration structures which
encourage, reinforce and reward the delivery of outstanding
business performance This is underpinned by the following guiding
principles

— The nsk and reward structure must maintain an overall aignment
with the interests of shareholders

— Executive Directors are encouraged to maintain a very significant
personal investment tn the shares of the Company

— There 1s a strong focus on performance-related pay

— Targets should be appropriately stretching and provide for median
levels of reward for median performance against the targets, and
median to top quartite rewards for exceptional performance

How do we do this?

- By setting fixed pay levels by reference to mid-market
comparators and recrutment/retention considerations, while
retaining some flexibility to reflect executives’ expenence and
expertise

— By carefully balancing the vanable pay opportunities provided
through our performance-related short and long term ncentive
plans such that executives are incentivised to maximise
performance over both the short and longer term

— By prowviding for a significant proportion of the package to
be delivered and retained in shares and therefore subject to
claw back

— By requiring Executive Directors to build up and maintain a
substantial holding of ordinary shares at upper decile level of
market practice

— By ensuning that all aspects of remuneration for the Executive
Directors and selected senior employees are approved by the
Commuttee and by reviewing the levels, structure and philosophy
of remuneration on an annual basis

— By taking account of the pay and employment conditions of other
employees in the Group when determining the Executive
Directors’ remuneration

— By considering the impact of remuneration on the risk profile
of the Company

What key changes have we made for 2013/147

Fixed pay

No salary increases are being proposed for the Executive Directors
and so fixed pay levels have been maintained at current levels

Annual bonus
70% will be based on financial targets and 30% on personal
performance cbjectives

The majornity of the bonus will continue te be subject to financial
targets based on Group EBITDA and Group NCFbF (apportioned two
thirds EBITDA and one third NCFbF) As we wish to incentivise our
Executive Directors to focus on the continuing operations of the
business, the performance of Macau will be excluded from the bonus
targets and will not count towards performance Inaddition, in the
event that Monaco Telecom s sold in the year, the outcome of the
sale will form part of the consideration of bonus outcome (at a level
of ane seventh of the element measured on financial performance)

The proportion of bonus based on spealfic personal objectives will
increase from 20% to 30% of totaf bonus opportunity, with the
focus on driving greater synergies and growth opportunities both
organic and inorganic in the pan-America region

Long-termincentves

The degree of portfelio change which we have had and expect

to continue to experrence for the foreseaable future, makes it
difficult to define a robust EPS range at this point m time  Therefore
the Committee has deaided that the awards to be granted in
2013/14 will be entirely based on relative TSR The Committee

will additionally assess whether it is satisfied with the financial
performance of the Group before determining the extent to

which (if at all) awards should vest

There will be no change to the policy on overall quantum for the
bonus and LTIP

Set outin this next section are the following:
— A pohcy table summansing remuneration arrangements
for 2013714

— How the remuneration arrangements for 2013/14 afign
with Group strategy

— Charts showing how remuneration packages for 2013/14
are spt at target and maximurm performance levels

— Remuneration policy for the financial year 2013/14 in detad
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Policy table for Executive Directors’ remuneration from April 2013

Element and
maximum Purpose and link to strategy Operation
Base salary — Reflect the value of the indwidual and role — Reviewed annually, effective 1 April
— Reflect experience and expertise — Pertodic account of practice in comparable
— Provide an appropriate level of fixed basic income companies taken
—Targeted at or around mid-market, with some
flexibility to reflect experience and expertise
—Pay of other UK based employees taken into
account
Annual bonus — Incentivise annual delivery of increase in shareholder  —Half of grass bonus paid in shares deferred for
value by maximising EBITDA and cash generation and 12 months!
through specific personal targets — Claw back provisions apply
— Stretching targets provide for below market rewards  __pot pensionable
for below target performance and top quartile
rewards for exceptional performance
Long Term — Intended to ahgn Executives’ performance closely — Annual grant of performance shares
Incentive Plan with key strategic objectives over the longer-term,
particularly increasing shareholder value, promoting
profitable growth and reinforcing a progressive
dividend policy
— Stretching targets provide for median levels of reward
for median performance against the targets, and
median to top quartile rewards for exceptional
performance
Pension — Provide a mid-market level of reurement benefits — Executive Directors may choose to receive an
— Contribute to the provisien of an appropriate balance employer’s pension contribution or pension cash
in the overall package between fixed and variable allowance
mncome
Other benefits — Provide employee benefit programme including hife, — Benefts provided through third-party providers
disability and health insurance to provide supportin — Car prowvision provided as applicable
the event of ill health or death
Share ownership — Upper decile shareholding requirements create close  —Where holding not already attained it 1s required to
guidelines alignment between Executives and shareholders and be achieved through retention of shares or the
reduce the potential for behaviours which are vesting of awards {on a net of tax basis) from share
detrimental to the long-term health of the Company plans

1 tnaccordance with the rules of The Cable & Wireless Communications 2011 Deferred Bonus Plan (the Deferred Benus Plan) haif of each gross bonus awarded wili be converted
wnto shares which are deferced for 12 months and subject to forfeiture duning that period Duning the deferral period the shares carry cash dividend nghts and any dividends
awarded are also deferred during the deferral period Deferred shares count toward each participant s personalshareholding The Committee may exercise its discretion as to
whether claw back is applicable at any time prior to the date in the following year when the shares are due to be released Claw back allows for alt or a portion of shares to be
reduced in the event that there (s a restatement of the Company s accounts resulting from fraud error or misrepresentation of anyssues of a nature which have a siguificant
effect on the performance of the busmess

TSR 1s defined as share price growth adjusted for dividends and capital actions For the purposes of awards TSRwill be calculated using 2 one month average share price at the
begmning and end of the performance period in order to moderate the effect of short-term volatibty

%]
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Maximum

Performance targets

Changes for 2013/14

— Annual increases generally linked to those
of the wider workforce although the
Committee retains discretion to award
increases to individuals above this level
where appropniate

N/A

— No change to policy

— Salaries of Executive Directors will not
be increased for 2013/14 and will
remain at

—CEO £700.000
—CFO £500,000
—Corporate Services

Director £375.000

— 0% to 150% of salary for all Executive
Directors, dependent on performance

— 70% based on finanaial targets and 30%
based on personal performance

— Financial targets for 2013/14 are
two-thirds based on Group EBITDA and
one-third on Group NCFbF (in the event
that Monaco Telecom is sold in the year
then one seventh of this part of the bonus
will be based on the outcome of the sale)

— Personal performance focused ondriving
synergies and growth opportunities
related to the portfolio reshaping

— Exclusion of Macau from Group targets,

tomaintain focus on continuing
operations

— Inclusion of measure relating to sale of
Menaco Telecom

— Increase in proportion based on
personal performance (from 20% to
30%) to drive focus on operational
synergy

— Maximum of 400% of salary per annum
— Award policy currently set at

— Performance measured over a fixed three
year period

— Change to single relative TSR
performance measure for 2013714
awards from awards based 50% on

- — Based on TSR relative to a bespoke grou
CEO 200% of salary of sector-based compantes? poke grotp relative TSR and 50% on EPS
—CFO 200% of salary
— Corporate Services — 25% vests at threshold (median ranking)
0 repctor 150% of sala rnsing on a straight ine basts to full vesting
i vy at upper quartile ranking
— The Committee will assess whether it is
satisfied with the financial performance of
the Group before determining the extent
to which (if at all) awards vest
— Employer’s defined contrnibution and/or N/A N/A
pension cash supplement of 25% of salary
N/A N/A N/A
—CEO 400% of salary N/A N/A
~CFO 300% of salary
— Corporate Services
Director 200% of salary
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How do the remuneration arrangements for 2013/14 align with Group strategy?

The performance targets set for the Executive Directors and their regional management teams have been carefully aligned with the Group's

strategy This is illustrated in the following table

Strategic objective

Annual bonus scheme metric

Long Term Incentive metric

Growth of our pan-America
operations

Focus on EBITDA and cash metrics encourages focus
on opportunities for synergies and economies of scale
across the two regtons

Well executed M&A activity will flow
through to TSR improvements over time

Improving operational synergy

The blend of earrungs and cash targets in the annual
bonus plan creates a focus on impreving gross margin,
reducing operating costs and strong cash management
through tight working capital discipline, operational
expenditure reduction and capital expenditure control
All these aspects combined, help to drive share price
performance and generate cash to reinvest for future
expanston and to distnbute via dividends to shareholders

Use of relative TSR to ensure our
management team are focused on
improving market share and gross margin
and reducing the cost base, which in
combination will improve operational
synergy/performance and share price
performance

Optirising shareholder value
through portfolio reshaping

Specific non-financial objectives around portfolio
reshaping, and ahignment of incenttve arrangements in
realising synergies and economies of scale

Actual and potential organic growth will be
reflected in our TSR performance

Mamntaining our leading market
position (where applicable) and
growing market share through
developing data based products
and services in existing markets

Specific non-financial objectives on shaping regulatory
change, embedding the use of growth metrics in the
business units and progressing mobile data

Marmntaining our leading market position
should flow through to our annual
performance and be reflected in
improvements in TSR

Identification of new markets
in which to expand our services
through value added products,
e g social telecoms and mobile
data

Stretching annual bonus targets require the exploration
of organic growth opportunities to supplement revenue
streams

Non-financial objectives supporting the expansion of our
services beyond existing geographical boundarnes

Balancing risk and reward

Deferral of 50% of any annwal bonus award into shares
for a year This reduces the risk of large payments where
an event occurs which has a significant effect on the
performance of the Group’s business for the financial
year in respect of the award or requires a restatement of
the Company's accounts

Claw back arrangements operate whereby the
deferred bonus will be subject to claw back during
the deferral peniod in the event of any fraud, erroror
misrepresentation by any person which gives niseto a
restatement of the Company’s financial accounts, or
In certam other circumstances at the discretion of the
Committee

High personal (at upper decile level)
shareholding requirements create greater
alignment with the shareholders and
reduce the potential for behaviours and
actions which are not beneficial for the
long term health of the organisation

Payment in shares is an additional claw
back where share price performance s
negative
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Proportionate split of total remuneration at target lavel versus maximum levet of performance
The balance between fixed and vanable elements of remuneration at a target level and a maxsmum [evel are shown in the charts below

The packages for all our Executive Directors are weighted i favour of performance related remuneration at both the target and maximum
performance levels Based on a target level of performance it 1s intended that around 60% of the package 1s performance related Based on
maximum performance the weighting of performance-related remuneration increases to around 70% to 75% of the remuneration package

Split of potential total target and maximum remuneration 2013/14  Spht of potential total target snd maximum remuneration 2013/14
Nick Cooper

Tony Rice

1 Fixed pay

2 Performance-
related annual
bonus

3 Performance-
related long-
term Incentives

Fixed

Target
{outer)

39%
27%

34%

Max
{inner)

27%
31%

42%

— Consists of base salary (£700k) benefits (£27 6k) and penston (25% of salary)

Target

— For the annual bonus, target s defined as 60% of maximum

— For the LTIP, target is defined as 55% of the face value of LTIP
{equrvalent to farr value estemate)

Maximum
— Full payout of annual bonus 1 150% of satary
-~ Fufl vesting of long-term incentive awards, 1 e 200% of salary

Split of potential total target and maximum remuneration 2013/14

Tim Pennington

1 Fixed pay

2 Performance-
related annual
bonus

3 Performance-
related long-
term Incentives

Fixed

Target
(outer)

38%
28%

34%

Max
{inner)

26%
32%

42%

— Cansists of base salary (E500k} benefits (E1 9k} and pension (25% of salary)

Target

— For the annual bonus target is defined as 60% of maximum

— For the LTIP target s defined as 55% of the face value of LTIP
(equivalent to fair value estimate)

Maximum
~Full payout of annual bonus 1e 150% of salary
— Full vesung of long-term incentive awards 1e 200% of salary

t Fixed pay

2 Performance-
related annual
bonus

3 Performance-
related long-
term incentives

Fixed

Target
(outer)

42%
30%

28%

Max
{inner)

30%
35%

35%

— Consists of base safary (£37 5k), benefits (£2 3k) and pension (25% of salary)

Target

— For the annual bonus target is defined as 60% of maximum

~ For the LTIP target 1s defined as 55% of the face value of LTIP
(equivalent to farr value estimate)

Maximum
-~ Full payout of annual bonus, 1 & 150% of salary
— Full vesting of long-term mncentive awards 1€ 150% of salary
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Considerations taken into account in determining
the Executive Directors’ remuneration

Impact of remuneration on rnisk

The Committee understands that an appropriate balance 1s required
between reward and risk and 1s committed to keeping this balance
under review to ensure the remuneration pohcy dovetails with the
nisk profile of the Company The Committee commissions an annual
independent assessment of nsk in relation to the remuneration
arrangements of semior executives to ensure fully informed decisions
can be made In this context Foliowing an assessment in 2012, the
Commuttee remains satisfied that the current remuneration policy 1s
appropriately aligned with the risk profile of the Company and that
the remuneration arrangements do not encourage excessive risk
taking

Pay of other employees

Pay and employment conditions of other employees elsewhere in the
Group (in particular in the UK) are taken into account when setting
the remuneration policy for Executive Directors The Committee is
provided with penodic updates on employee remuneration practices
and trends across the Group

Shareholder views

The Committee actively seeks to engage with shareholders and
values highly the contribution their views can make in the process of
formulating remuneration policy decisions The Committee sought
and considered feedback from shareholders prior to the 2012 AGM
on remuneration policy generally and, in particular, on a review of the
performance conditions in the LTIP Likewise, the Committee has also
sought feedback from shareholders prior to this year’s AGM on, in
particular, changes to the annual bonus and LTIP and their alignment
to Group strategy

Service contracts and letters of appointment

Executive Directors’ service contracts

The Committee’s policy is that Executive Directors’ service
contracts shoutd include a maximum notice period of one year
Executive Directors’ service contracts continue untd their normal
retirement date

Date of appointment Notice pencd
Nick Cooper 25 January 2010 Oneyear
Tim Penmington 25 January 2010 One year
Tony Rice 25 lanuary 2010 One year

The Executive Directors' service contracts provide that, in the event
of a change of control of the Company and a Director’s emplayment
being adversely changed, then he will receive a payment equal to
base salary for the notice period and a time pro-rated annual bonus
The contracts do not provide for any other fixed payments
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The Executive Directors’ service contracts contain no other
provisions for compensation payable on early termination In

the event of early termination, the Committee will, within legal
constraints, determne the approach to be taken according to the
circumstances of each individual case, taking full account of the
departing Executive Director’s cbligation to mitigate loss Except in
cases of early termination for cause, the Committee wilt take into
account the relevant Executive Director’s current salary, notice
period and contractual benefits when calculating any hability of the
Company The principal contractual benefits provided 1n addition to
salary are pension, healthcare and life insurance Annual bonuses and
long-term incentives are granted at the discretion of the Committee
and would therefore be dealt with in accordance with the rules of
the relevant scheme A significant proportion of each Executive
Director’s total remuneration 1s subject to performance conditions
and therefore would not be payable to the extent that the relevant
targets have not been met

Chatrman’s service contract

The Chairman's contract is effective from 25 January 2010 with 12
months' notice on either side or the requirement to stand for annual
re-election at the AGM There are no other contractual entitlements
on early termination or following a change of centrol

Non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment

The Non-executive Directors do not have service contracts with the
Company, but instead have letters of appointment Therr fees are
determined by the Board, within the imits set out in the Company's
Articles of Association, with Non-executive Directors abstaining
from any discussion or decision on their fees The Non-executive
Directors do not receive any Incentive payments or pension
provision

Non-executive Directors are appointed for an initial three year
term with the expectation that a further three year term will follow
After two three year terms, the continued appointment of any
Non-executive Director may be extended on an annual basis on
recommendation of the Nommation Commuittee Termenation of
the appointment may be earlier at the discretion of either party on
one month’s written notice None of the Non-executive Directors
I1s entitled to any compensation if their appoiniment 15 terminated
Appointments will be subject to re-election at the AGM in
accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

Annual fees payable to each Non-executive Director are disclosed
on page 66




Implementation report

Committee governance
The principal duties of the Committee are detailed below

— To recommend to the Board the policy for the remuneration of
the Chairman, Executive Directors and other senior executive
management

— To review the remuneration policy and consider its alignment with
strategy on an ongoing basis

— Toreview the design of all new share incentive plans, policy on
share incentive awards and performance conditions

— To deterrmine whether performance measures for incentive plans
have been satisfied

— To approve any amendments to the service contracts of the
Charrman and Executive Directors

—To manitor the Group's pension plan

In forming its recommendations, the Committee receives Input
and advice from the Executive Directors, the HR Director and New
Bridge Street who are the Committee’s iIndependent adviser The
outcomes of Committee meetings are reported to the Board

Terms of reference
The terms of referance set out the authority of the Committee to
carry out Its duties

The Committee undertook a review of its objectives and terms of
reference during the period and the full terms of reference can be
found on our website at www cwec com

Adwvisers to the Committee

New Bridge Street (NBS) provide advice on remuneration and share
plans both for Executive Directors and the wider sentor management
population, and were appointed by the Committee In addition, NBS
provide measurement of the Company's relative and absolute TSR
performance and benchmark Non-executive Directors’ and the
Chairman’s fee levels

NBS are signatories to the Remuneration Consultants Group Code
of Conduct and any advice provided by them is governed by that
code NBS's terms of engagement are avallable on request from the
Company Secretary NBS s a trading name of Aon Hewitt Limited
(an Aon plc company) which, other than acting as independent
consultant to the Committee, provided no further services to the
Company during the year

Remuneration Committee membership

Since 1 Aprid 2012, there have been a number of changes to the
mernbership of the Commmittee as reported in the table below Simon
Ball was appointed Chairman of the Committee effective 1 June
2012 With effect from the same date, Sir Richard Lapthorne ceased
to serve as a member of the Committee, and Alison Platt became
amember of the Committee on her appointment to the Board as a
Non-executive Director effective 1 June 2012

Membership and attendance at meetings

Siman Ball 0000 5/5
Mary Francis® 000 0/3
Mark Hamhin 20000 5/5
Sir Richard Lapthome o800 3/3
Alison Platt? o0 1/2
lan Tyler 00000 5/5

1 Mary Francis retired as Chair of the Committee on 1 June 2012 and then retwred
as amember of the Committee and of the Board on 30 June 2012
2 Ahson Platt was appointed to the Committee with effect from 1 June 2012

Meetings

The Comrmuttee held five scheduled meetings during the year ended
31 March 2013 Details of Committee membership and individual
attendance at the meetings by members are given in the table above

No person 1s present during any discussion relating to their own
remuneration

Performance graphs

The graph below shows the total shareholder return by 31 March
2013 for 2 £100 holding in the Company’s shares for the perod
from 22 March 2010 {the date shares in the Company were
admitted to the Official List), compared with £100 invested in the
FTSE Europe Telecoms Sector

Total shareholder return (TSR)
Valuein £ from 22 March 2010 to 31 March 2013
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Directors’ emoluments

The table below shows the aggregate emoluments earned by the Directors of Cable & Wireless Communications Plc during the period

1 Apnil 2012 to 31 March 2013

Total Total
2012/13 2011/12
statutory statutory
period peftod
Pension/ 1 April 2012 1 Apnl 2011
Salanes Total Valve of Benefits in cash toe 31 March  to 31 March
and fees cash bonuses* LTIP* kind? allowance! 2013 2012
£ E £ £ £ £ £
Chairman
Sir Richard Lapthorne 386,000 - - 10,674 60,500° 457,174 481527
Executive Directors
Nick Cooper 375,000 171,656 - 2.304 43,750 592,710 592,290
Tim Pennington 500,000 228875 - 1.868 75,000 805,743 883128
Tony Rice 700,000 294,175 - 27,640 175,000 1,196,815 1,306,651
Non-executwe Directors
Simon Ball 85,000 - - 542 - 85,542 85,443
lan Tyler® 81,666 - - 480 - 82,156 65,621
Mary Francis (from 1 April 2G12 to 30 June 2012) 21,250 - - - - 21,250 85,785
Mark Hamlin 65,000 - - 490 - 65,490 16,517
Alison Platt (from 1 June 2012 to 31 March 2013) 54,166 - - 490 - 54,656 -
Past Directors’ emoluments (for comparative purposes) - - - - - - 20,583
Total 2,268,082 694,706 - 44,498 354,250 3,361,536 3,537545
1 This column denotes the cash equivalent value of any LTIP awards vesting in 2012/13 The values are ml as no awards vestedin 2012/13
2 Benefitsinknd nclude Company provided life assurance professional advice car and chauffeur provision and rembursement of costs associated with travel accommodation and

relocation (as apphcable)

3 Company pension contributions in 20:12/13 have been paid to the Directars as either annual cash allowance and/or employer s pension contributions In addition to the pension
cash allowance listed above 1n 2012713 Nick Cooper and Tim Pennington waived £50 000 of their pension/ cash allowance as an equivalent amount was paid into the pension plan
by the Company on thei behalf An amount of £20 million (2071712 - £18 milion) 15 included in the net pensions deficit figure in note 27 to caver the cost of former Directors

pension entitlements

4 For 2012/13 Tony Rice Tim Pennington and Nick Cooper received bonuses of ESB8 350 £457,250 and £343 312 respectively Half of the bonus s pard in cash (as showninthe
table under total cash bonuses ) and the other half 1s deferred tnto shares for one year and subject to claw back at the discretion of the Commuttee These shares wilt count

towards each Director s shareholding requirement

~ o

Details of salary increases in 2012/13 and 2013/14

201213 2013/14
Basesalary  Base salary %
m sterling nsterling increase

Nick Cooper 375,000 375,000 Noincrease

Tim Pennington 500,000 500,000 Noincrease

Tony Rice 700,000 700,000 Noincrease

The salaries of Tony Rice and Tim Pennington will not be increased
from their 2010/11 levels for 2013/14 (and will remain the same
for the third year running) The salary of Nick Cooper will remain
unchanged from his 2012/13 level The next salary review will be
1 April 2014
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Sir Richard Lapthorne recewved a cash allowance of £60 500 from 1 May 2012 inthe financial year 2012713 iniieu of a company car whichwas previously under benefits in kind
lan Tyler received additional fees for his role as Chairman of the Audit Committee from 1 June 2012
The emoluments table 1s presented in sterling as salaries benefits and bonuses are patd in sterling

Details of pension and other benefits in 2012/13

Executive Directors choose to receive one of the following

a cash allowance of 25% of therr base salary, an employer’s pension
contribution at the rate of 25% of base salary or a combination of a
cash allowance and employer’s pension contribution with a combined
value of 25% of base salary The Director 1s not required to pay any
pension contributions The Company made contributions to the
pension plan on behalf of two Executive Directors, Nick Cooper and
Tim Pennington, totalling £100,0001n 2012/13

The Executive Directors participated in employee benefit
programmes including life, disability and health insurance plans

The value of these benefits for 2012/13 1s included n the Directors’
emoluments table above




Detals of variable pay earned in 2012/13

Annual bonus payments

Bonuses in 2012/13 for the Executive Directors were based 80%
on financial and 20% on personal performance targets 65% of the
financial performance was based on EBITDA and 35% on NCFbF The
EBITDA element was based on EBITDA targets for the four regional
businesses There was also a minimum EBITDA underpin for both the
EBITDA and NCFbF elements

An overview of our EBITDA performance and Group NCFbF
performance relative to the bonus targets 1s summarised in the table
below

NCFbF performance
relative to bonus targets

EBITDA performance
relative to bonus targets

Vesting of long term incentive awards in the year
No awards were subject to performance measurement periods
ending in the 2012713 financial year

The performance period for the June 2009 LTIP awards granted
under the Cable and Wireless Incentive Plan 2001 was aligned with
the financial year, with the performance period beginning on the
first day of the financial year in which the awards were made (i e
performance period ending 31 March 2012) The performance
condit:ons were not met for these awards and therefore the awards
lapsed in june 2012

The performance targets and levels of vesting for the 2009 awards
were

Total Shareholder Return (TSR) over

Carlbbean Below threshold - performance period 9% of award vesting

Panama Below threshold - 20% compound pa or higher 100%

M&I Mid range - Between 8% compeund p a and Straight-fine between
20% compound pa 25% and 100%

Macau Maximum of range -

CWC Group - Maximum of range Equalto 8% compound p 3 25%

EBITDA underpin EBITDA underpin achueved Less than 8% compound p 2 0%

Tony Rice’s personal targets for last year included delvery of a
premium disposal and progressing the Jamaica turnaround plan in
reaction to changes in the regulatory environment Tim Pennington's
personal targets for the last year included managing and delvening
one major portfolio disposal within the 2012/13 financial year and
embedding the use of return on mvestment metrics within the
business Nick Cooper's personal targets included developing a plan
for dual sourcing of exchange equipment and delivery af customer
relationship management and mobile data billing nitiatives These
objectives, the Executives’ averall personal performance and the
achievements delivered in the year were assessed by the Committee
with input from the Chairman and for Tim Pennington and Nick
Cooper, with input from the Chief Executive

Bonuses for 2012/13 are paying out at the level of 56% of maximum
opportunity for Tony Rice and 61% of maximum opportunity for

Tim Penmington and Mick Cooper The bonus payments represent

a combination of strong EBITDA performance for Macau and
Monaco & Islands which has flowed through to robust NCFbF

results, and solid performance against personal objectives The
Commuttee assessed these bonus levels in the context of the overall
performance of the individuals and the business in the year, the value
created from the disposals, and concluded that they fairly reflected
performance

In accordance with the rules of the Deferred Bonus Plan, as
summarnised in footnote 1 to the Policy table on page 54, half of
each gross bonus award for 2012/13 has been converted into shares
which are deferred for 12 months and subject to forfeiture during
that period

Vesting of deferred bonus in the year

On 31 May 2011 the first deferral of 50% of the bonus {(into
Cable & Wireless Communications Plc shares) was made under
the Company’s Deferred Bonus Plan The shares were potentially
subject to claw back as described in footnote 1 to the Policy table
onpage 54

For the awards granted in May 2011, the deferral perniod ended on
30 May 2012 and the shares vested in full on 30 May 2012

Prior year long term incentive awards not vesting in year

In June 2010 and 2011, performance share awards equal to 2 8
times base salary for Tony Rice and Tim Pennington and 2 O times
base salary for Nick Cooper were granted (under the previous
performance share plan) which vest on the third anniversary of grant
in June 2013 and June 2014 respectively

The June 2010 award 1s measured over the perod 4 June 2010 to
3 June 2013 The miimum performance targets have not thus far
been met and therefore the awards are forecast tolapse in full

The performance targets and levels of vesting for these awards are

Total Shareholder Return (TSR) over

performance perod 9% of award vesting
14% compound p a or higher 100%
Between 8% compound p a and Straight-line between
14% compound p a 0% and 100%
8% compound p a or lower 0%

For the purposes of these awards, TSR s defined consistently with
the definition as described in the footnote to the Policy table on
page 54

In addition to reviewing performance against the targets set out

in the above twao tables, the Committee will, within 12 months
following the end of each three year performance period, also
consider whether the underlying performance of the Group
warrants release of the shares It will reduce the vesting percentage
if appropniate In considering underlying performance, the
Committee may take account of {though not necessarily inisolation)
the following metrics revenue, EBITDA, operational spending, cost
of sales, capital expenditure and quantum and timing of cash flows

Details of historic awards granted to Executive Directors under the
LTIP are summarised in the tables on pages 63 to 64
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Long term incentive awards granted in the year
Detarls of awards made to Executive Directors under the Performance Share Plan 2011 (PSP 2011) in the year ended 31 March 2013
are as follows

Scheme Award level Face value Vesting penod Performance conditions

Chief Executive PSP2011 200% of salary  £1,400,000 Three year 50% compound annual growth in EPS of 5%
performance (25% of shares measured agamnst EPS ) to
period 10% (100% of the shares measured against
commencingon  EPS vest)

—_— 1 April 2012 50% cumulative growthin TSR against a

Chief Financial 200% of salary  £1,000,000 COMPparator group COMPFISINgG companies

Officer predominately from the European Telecoms

Corporate 150% of salary  £562,500 sector, median ranking (25% of the shares

S measured against TSR vest) to upper quartile

ervices
Drrector ranking (100% of the shares measured

against TSR vest)

Awards will vest on a straight line basis
between the above hmits

The comparator group for the 2012713 award 1s France Telecom BT Group, Telecom Itala KPN Kon Deutsche Telekom, Telefonica Belgacom Swisscom R, Telekom Austria, AT&T
and Portuga! Telecom

The number of shares awarded was calculated based on the average share price for the period 24 to 30 May 2012 (inclusive) which 1s the penod immediately after the 2011/12 full
year results and would ordinanly have been used to calculate the award price had the Company not been in an extended close period until January 2013

Directors’ shareholdings

Shares held at Shares held at
1 Aped 2012 or date 31 March2013
of appointment Shares acqured Shares disposed or date of leaving
Chairman
Sir Richard Lapthorne 8,500,000 - - 8,500,000
Executive Directors'234
Nick CooperS® 624,496 642,666 162,191 1,104,971
Tim Penrington 2,449,543 883,251 - 3,332,794
Tony Rice 20,501,928 4,259,333 - 24,761,261
Non-executive Directors
Simon Ball 362,029 44751 - 406,780
Mary Francis {retired 30 June 2012) 35123 - - 35123
Mark Hamhin 32,000 33,000 - 65,000
Alison Platt (appointed 1 June 2012) - 23,764 - 23,764
lan Tyler 4,000 - - 4,000

1 Inadditon as potential beneficianies from outstanding awards which may be satisfied by shares held by the Trust the Executwve Directors are deemed to have annterestin ail of
the ordinary shares held by the Trust whuch at 31 March 2043 amounted to 24 598 177 shares

2 Included in'the shares acquired duning the year are shares purchased under the Share Purchase Plan (as described on page 66) Matching Shares allocated under the Share
Purchase Plan are included if they have vested All unvested Matching Shares as at 31 March 2013 are notincluded Details are disclosed onpage 65 As at 21 May 2013 there
were the following increases in the interests of Directors and thewr connected persens as a result of the vesting of Matching Shares awarded under the Share Purchase Plan
Nick Cooper 2 492 Tim Penmington 2,491 and Tony Rice 2 492 shares

3 Included in the shares acquired durning the year are shares awarded under the Deferred Bonus Plan under which 50% of gross bonus awarded to Executive Directors ss paidn
shares deferred for one year These amounts are Nick Cooper 642 666 shares Tim Pennington 878 412 shares Tony Rice 1 259 333 shares A proportion of these deferred
shares may be sold at the end of the deferral period to meet tax obligations relating to thew acquisitionfvesting

4 Each of the Executive Drrectors wili receive 50% of therr total gross bonus payment for 2012713 in the form of shares deferred for one year and subject to claw back at the

discretion of the Committee Once awarded these shares will count towards each Director s shareholding requireiments A proportion of these deferred shares may be sold at the

end of the deferral period to meet tax obligations relating to therr acqusitton/vesting

Shares disposed of by Nick Cooper were ta cover tax obligations which arose as a result of shares vesting under the Oeferred Bonus Plan

v
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Directors’ share awards

Market price
ondate of
award of
Cable &
Wireless
Communt-  Shares under Shares lapsed Shares under
cations Plc award at Shares Shares cancelled or award at
Name and scheme Award date Vestingdate shares (pence)* 1 Aprl 20127 awarded vested forfeited 31 March 2013
Executive Directors
Nick Cooper
Performance Shares? 02/06/09 02/06/12 5100 461,584 - - (461,584) -
Performance Shares®s 07/08/09 02/06/12 4870 20,398 - - {20.398) -
Performance Shares™ 22/0110 02/06/12 5230 10,595 - - (10.599) -
Performance Shares® 12/08/10 02/06/12 6070 27,023 - - (27,023) -
Performance Shares™ 13/07/11 02/06/12 4995 15,794 - - {15,794) -
Performance SharesPs 12/08/11 02/06/12 3388 44,706 - - {44,706) -
Performance Shares® 12/01/12 02/06/12 3799 20,861 - - (20,861) ~
Performance Shares Q40610 Q4/06/13 6030 1160862 - - - 1,160,862
Performance Shares?s 12/08/10 04/06/13 6070 67,962 - - - 67,962
Performance Shares®® 13/01/11 04/06/13 4995 39,722 - - - 39,722
Performance Shares®s 12/08/11 04/06/13 3388 112,433 - - - 112,433
Performance Shares? 12/0t/12 04/06/13 3799 52,466 - - - 52,466
Performance Shares® 10/08/12 01/06/14 3254 - 121,045 - - 121,045
Performance Shares®s 11/01/13 04/06/13 3940 - 24192 - - 24,192
Performance Shares 02/06/11 01/06/14 4329 1,592,718 - - - 1,592,718
Performance Sharests 12/08/11 01/06/14 3388 154,260 - - - 154,260
Performance Shares®s 12/01/12 01/06/14 3799 71,984 - - - 71,984
Performance Shares?s 10/08/12 01/06/14 3254 - 166075 - - 166,075
Performance Shares®s 11/01/13 01/06/14 3940 - 33,192 - - 33,192
Performance Shares® 140113 14/01/16 3772 - 1,812,761 - - 1,812,761
3853368 2,157.265 - {600,961 5,409,672
Tim Pennington
Performance Shares* 02/06/09 02/06/12 5100 655,157 - - (655,151) -
Performance Shares™ 07/08/09 02/06/12 4870 28,953 - - (28,953) -
Performance Shares®s 22/01/10 02/06/12 5230 15,039 - - (15.039) -
Performance Shares®® 12/08/10 02/06/12 6070 38,355 - - {38,355) -
Performance Shares™ 13/01 /11 02/06/12 4995 22418 - - {(22,418) -
Performance Shares®s 12/08/11 02/06/12 3388 63,453 - - (63,453) -
Performance Shares®™ 12/0n N2 02/06/12 3799 29,610 - - (29,610) -
Performance Shares* 02/06/09 02/06/12 5100 1,725,527 - - (1,725,527) -
Performance Shares™ 07/08/09 02/06/12 4870 76,255 - - {76,255) -
Perfarmance Shares® 22/01/10 02/06/12 5230 39,609 - - (39,609) -
Performance Shares®s 12/08/10 02/06/12 6070 101,021 - - (101,021) -
Performance Shares™ 13/01/11 02/06/12 4995 59,044 - - (59,044) -
Performance Shares® 12/08/11 02/06/12 3388 167,123 - - (167,123) -
Performance Shares® 12/01/12 02/06/12 3799 77987 - - (77,987) -
Performance Shares 04/06/10 04/06/13 6285 27321724 - - - 2,321,724
Performance Shares®® 12/08/10 04/06/13 6070 135,925 - - - 135,925
Performance Shares?® 13/01 /111 04/06/13 4995 79,445 - - - 79,445
Performance Shares® 12/08/11 04/06/13 3388 224867 - - - 224,867
Performance Shares®® 12/01/12 04/06/13 3799 104,932 - - - 104,932
Performance Shares® 10/08/12 04/06/13 3254 - 242,090 - - 242,090
Performance Shares® 11/01/13 04/06/13 3940 - 48,384 - - 48,384
Performance Shares 02/06/11 01/06/14 4329 3,185437 - - - 3,185,437
Performance Shares® 12/08/11 02/06/14 3388 308,521 - - - 308,521
Performance Shares® 12/01/12 02/06/14 3799 143,969 - - - 143,969
Performance Shares® 10/08/12 01/06/14 3254 - 332,150 - - 332,150
Performance Shares® 1100143 01/06/14 3940 - 66,384 - - 66,384
Performance Shares® 14/01/13 14/01/16 3772 - 3,222,687 - - 3,222,687
9604365 3911695 - {3,099,545) 10,416,515
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Directors’ share awards continued

Market price

on date of

award of

Cable &

Wireless
Commum- Shares under Shares lapsed, Shares under
cations Plc award at Shares Shares cancelled or award at
Name and Scheme Award date Vestngdate shares (pence)! 1 Apnl 20127 awarded vested forfeited 31 March2013

Tony Rice

Performance Shares 02/06/09 02/06/12 5100 5,490,320 - - (5,480,320} -
Performance Shares®s 07/08/09 02/06/12 48 70 242,634 - - (242,634} -
Performance Shares™ 22/01/10 02/086/12 5230 126,029 - - (126,029) -
Performance SharesPs 12/08/10 02/06/12 6070 321,431 - - (321,431) -
Performance Shares™ 13/01/11 02/06/12 4995 187,868 - - (187.868) -
Performance Shares®* 12/08/11 02/06/12 3388 531,757 - - (531,757) -
Performance Shares®s 12/01/12 02/06/12 3799 248,141 - - {248,141} -
Performance Shares 04/06/10 04/06/13 6285 3,250,414 - - - 3,250,414
Performance Shares™ 12/08/10 04/06/13 6070 190,295 - - - 190,295
Performance Shares™ 13/01/11 04/06/13 49 95 111,223 - - - 111,223
Performance Shares® 12/08/11 04/06/13 3388 314,814 - - - 314,814
Performance Shares™ 12/01/12 04/06/13 3799 146,906 - - - 146,906
Performance Shares™ 10/08/13 04/06/13 3254 - 338926 - - 338,926
Performance SharesP® 11/01/13 04/06/13 3940 - 67,738 - - 67,738
Performance Shares 02/06/11 01/06/14 4329 4,459,613 - - - 4,459,613
Performance Shares®? 12/08/11 01/06/14 3388 431,929 - - - 431,929
Performance SharesP® 12/01/12 01/06/14 3799 201,557 - - - 201,557
Performance Shares®s 10/08/12 01/06/14 3254 - 465,011 - - 465,011
Performance Shares™ 11/0/13 01/06/14 3940 - 92,938 - - 92,038
Performance Shares® 14/01/13 14/01/16 3772 - 4511,762 - - 4,511,762
16,254,931 5,476,375 - (7148,180) 14,583,126

D5 Dividend Shares

1 The market price on the date of awards made prior to demerger has been adjusted in proportion to the market price value of Cable & Wireless Commurucations Pic to the

[N]

combined share price of Cable & Wireless Communications Plc and Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc over the five days following demerger This adjustment resulted i the market
price on the date of award for all awards being adjusted to 38% of thew oniginal value

The total number of shares comprised in each Performance Share award adjusted as a result of the demerger has been mncluded n the table as at 1 April 2070 notwithstanding the
fact that the equivalent value of these Performance Share awards was determined by reference to the average closing price of Cable & Wireless Communications Plc ordinary
shares and Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc ordinary shares over the five trading days commencing on the demerger effective date being 26 March 2010 and concluding on 1 Apni
2010 The adjusted awards were granted by the Trust on 13 May 2010

performance Is measured on the absolute TSR performance of Cable and Wireless plc up to demerger and the combined Cable & Wireless Commurnications Plc and Cable &
Wireless Worldwade plc thereafter

The award of 1 310 302 Performance Shares granted to Tim Penrington on 2 June 2009 was splt so that half the award 1s measured over TSR for Cable and Wireless plc prior to
demerger and the combined Cable & Wireless Communications Plc and Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc thereafter The remaining haif 1s measured over TSR for Cable & Wireless
Communications Plc Subseguent to demerger one half of the award was adjusted intne with note 2 above

The number of shares awarded under the PSP 2011 set out on pages 63 to 54 was calculated based on the average share price for the penod 24 to 30 May 2012 (inclusve) which
1s the peniod immediately after the 2011/12 full year results and would ordinanly have been used to calcutate the award price had the Company not been in an extended close
period until January 2013
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Share Purchase Plan awards

For the period 1 Apri! 2012 to 31 March 2013

Market price
ondate of
award of
Cable &
Wireless
Communica-  Market price Shares Shares under
tons Plc ondate under award Shares Shares lapsed, award at
Award Vestng shares of vesting at 1 Apnl Shares vested/  cancelled or 31 March
Name and scheme date date {pence) (pence) 2012 awarded released forfeited 2013
Executive Directors
Nick Cooper
Share Purchase Plan®® 12/5/10  12/5/13 6020 - 2,492 - - - 2,492
2,492 - - - 2,492
Tim Pennington
Share Purchase Plan*s 12/5/10  12/5/13 6020 - 2,491 - - - 2,491
Share Purchase Plan™s 9/6/10 9/6/13 5734 - 2 - - - 2
Share Purchase Plan™$ 12/4/12 12/4/15 3100 - - 4,839 - - 4,839
- 2,493 4,839 - - 7.332
Tony Rice
Share Purchase Plan™® 12/5/10 12/5/13 6020 - 2,492 - - - 2,492
- 2,492 - - - 2,492

MS Matching Shares

As at 21 May 2013, the Matching Shares awarded under the Share Purchase Plan on 12 May 2010 vested on 12 May 2013, therefore there
was an increase In the interests of Directors and their connected persons by a corresponding number of shares

Directors’ share options

Granted
Shares between Shares under
Date from Date of Exerase underoption 1 Apnl 2012 Lapsed option at
which first expiry phce at 1 April and 31 March cancelled or 31 March
Grant date exercisable of option {pence) 2012 2013 Exercised forfeited 2013
Tony Rice
Unapproved Share
Option Ptan' 30/03/06 21/05/09 29/03/13 11050 5,424,807 - - 5,424807 -
5,424,807 - - 5,424 807 -

1 Tony Rice agreed to delay the date on which options were to become first exercisable from March 2009 to 21 May 2009 This was to avoid options becoming exercisable duning a

probubited period

Notes

These were unapproved {non-tax relieved) grants made under the Cable & Wireless Share Option Plan 2001

Following the demerger these shares under option, were linked to an equal number of Cable & Wireless Worldwade plc shares andcannot be exercised separately The exercise price 15
the combined value of a Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc share and a Cable & Wireless Communications Plc share

No amounts were paid by Directors for the award of the options listed in the table above The closing mid-market price of an ordinary share in Cable & Wireless Commumications Ple
on 29 March 2013 was 41 94 pence and subsequent to the acquisition of Cable & Wireless Worldwide pic shares by Vodafone Group Pic on 27 July 2012, the value of the knked
Cable & Wireless Communications Pig share was 38 pence

The tughest closting mid-market pree of an ordinary share in Cable & Wireless Commumcations Pic duning the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 was 42 63 pence and the
lowest closing mid-market price was 27 28 pence
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Share Purchase Plan

Prier to 5 April 2012, Executive Directors were eligible to participate
tn the all-employee Cable & Wireless Communications Share
Purchase Plan (the Share Purchase Plan) on the same terms as other
employees With effect from 13 April 2012 no further shares were
avallable for award under the Cable & Wireless Communications
Share Purchase Plan

Dilution

The Committee ensures that at all times the number of new shares
which may be 1ssued under any share optton or share-based plans,
including all employee plans, does not exceed the dilution hmit of
10% of the Company’s 1ssued share capital over any 10 year rolling
period As at 31 March 2013, 7% of the 1ssued share capital was
availlable for 1ssue under our share-based plans In calculating this
figure, the Commuttee has taken into account historic awards of the
former Cable and Wireless plc shares made to current or former
employees of the Communications business and the adjustments to
the awards as a result of the demerger

Awards under the various share plans are funded by a mix of
purchased and newly-issued shares, as determined by the
Committee Newly-1ssued shares are subject to the dilution it
outlined above Purchased shares are held by the Trust, which 1s
subject to a holding imit of no more than 5% of the 1ssued ordinary
share capita! of the Company

Non-executive Directors’ Fees

The Chairman’s annual fee of £386,000, effective from his
appointment as Chairman of Cable and Wireless plc in January 2003,
was reviewed by the Commuttee in March 2013 and will remain
unchanged for 2013/14 The Chairman receives a cash allowance

of £5,500 per month in lieu of the provision of a car The Chairman
exercised his option in 2012 /13 to purchase his company car, detalls
of which are listed in the related party transaction note on page 122

The fee levels of the other Non-executive Directors were last
reviewed In March 2013 and no increases were approved for the
coming year
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The annual fees (which are based in sterling) payable to each Non-
executive Director for 2013/14 are shown In the table below

Appaintment Basefee Additional fees

date? insterling i sterhng
Simon Ball 1 May 2006 65,000 20,000
1an Tyler 1 January 2011 65,000 20,6007
Mark Hambin 1 January 2012 65,000 -
Alison Platt 1June 2012 65,000 -

1 Additional fee for role of Seruor Independent Director Deputy Charman and
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee from ¥ June 2012

2 Additionai fee for role as Charman of the Audit Committee from 1 June 2012

3 Appointment dates include any term as a Non-executive Director of Cable and
Wirelass plc

External directorships

The Company allows Executive Directors to hold external
directorships subject to agreement by the Chairman on a case by
case basis and to retain the fees received from those roles

Annual fees
n sterfing

Tony Rice
Non-executive Director of Spint Pub Company plc 55,000
Chairman of Alexander Mann Solutions 15,000

Audited information

The Group’s auditor, KPMG, has audited the information contained in
the tables headed Directors’ emoluments, Directors’ shareholdings,
Directors’ share awards, Share Purchase Plan awards and Directors'
share options

This report has been approved on behalf of the Board by

Simon Ball
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

21 May 2013




Statement of Directors’
responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual report and
the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with
apphicable laws and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Company
financial statements for each financial year Under that law, they are
required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted
by the European Union (EU) and applicable law Further, they have
elected to prepare the Company financial statements in accordance
with UK accounting standards and applicable law (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP))

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affarrs of the Group and the Company and of
therr profit or loss for that period

In preparing each of the Group and Company financial statements,
the Directors are required to

— Select suitable accounting policies and apply thermn consistently

— Make Judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent

— For the Group financial statements, state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU

— For the Company financial statements, state whether apphcable
UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the Company
financial statements

— Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unfess it
is Inappropriate to presume that the Group and Company will
continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s and the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Group and the Company and
enable them to ensure that therr financal statements comply with
the Compantes Act 2006 and, with regard to the Group financial
statemments, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They have general
respensibihty for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them
to safeguard the assets of the Group and the Company and for
taking reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud and other
wrregularities

Under apphcable law and regulations, the Directors are also
responsible for preparing a Directors’ report, Directors’
remuneration report and Corporate governance statement that
complies with that law and those regulations

The Directors are also required by the Disclosure and Transparency
Rules to include a report containing a fair review of the business and
a descrniption of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and the Company

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of
the corporate and financial information included on the Group and
Company's website, www cwec com Information published on the
Company’s website s accessible in many countries with different
legal requirements Legislationin the UK governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may dif fer from legislation
in other jurisdictions

Directors’ statement pursuant to the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed on
page 37, confirm that, to the best of each person’s knowledge
and belief

— The Group financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS
as adopted by the EU, give atrue and fair view of the assets,
llabilities, financial position and profit of the Group

— The Company financial statements, prepared in accordance with
UK GAAP give a true and farr view of the assets, iabilities, financia)
position and profit or loss of the Company

— The Annuai report includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Group and
Company, together with a description of the principal nsks and
uncertainties that they face

Disclosure of information to auditors

So far as the Directors are aware there Is no relevant audit
information (as defined in Section 418(3) of the Companies Act
2006) of which the auditor 1s unaware, and the Directors have taken
all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the auditor 1s aware of that information

By order of the Board

Clare Underwood
Company Secretary

21 May 2013
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We are Panama’s market
leader in mobile, fixed line
and broadband services
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Independent auditor’s report to the members
of Cable & Wireless Communications Plc

We have audited the financial statements of Cable & Wireless
Communications Pl for the year ended 31 March 2013 set out on
pages 71 to 133 The financial reporting framework that has been
apphed in the preparation of the Group financial statements 15
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS)

as adopted by the EU The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial statements
1s apphcable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice} This report is made solely to the Company’s
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the

Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them tn an auditor’s report and for no other purpese To the

fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of Drrectors’ responsibilities
set out on page 67, the Directors are responsible for the preparation

of the financial statements and for beng satisfied that they give a true

and farr view Our responsibility is to audit, and express an opiion on,
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's {APB's)
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s
provided on the Financial Reporting Council's website at www frc org
uk/auditscopeukprivate

Opinton on financial statements
In our opinion

— The financial statements qive a true and fair view of the state of
the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 31 March
2013 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended,

— The Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

— The Parent Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice,

— The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

70 Cable & Wireless Communications

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

— The part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006, and

~ The information given in the Directors’ report for the financial year
for which the financial statermnents are prepared 1s consistent with
the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Compamies Act 2006 we are required to report to youif, in
our opiron

— Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

— The Parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not In agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

— Certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration spectfied by law are
not made, or

— We have not recerved all the infermation and explanations we
require for cur audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

— The Directors’ statement, set out on page 46, in relation to going
concern,

— The part of the corporate governance statement in the Directors’
report relating to the Company’s compliance with the nine
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our
review, and

-— Certain elements of the re,
Directors’ remuneration

shareholders by the Board on

Peter Meehan (Senior Statutory
for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc
Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London 14 SGL

21 May 2013




Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2013

2012/13 2011/12*
Pre- Pre-
exceptional  Exceptlonal exceptional  Exceptional
items items’ Total items items’ Total
Continuing operations Note ussm Ussm usSm Us$m us$m us$m
Revenue 4 1,942 - 1,942 2,032 - 2,032
Operating costs before depreciation and amortisation 6 (1,353) {(50) (1,403) (1,442} (66} (1,508)
Depreciation 14 {221} (B6) (3e7) {228) {(232) (460)
Amortisation 13 (54) - (54) (49) (12) (61}
Other operating income 6 " - 11 2 - 2
Other operating expense 6 (7} - )] 3) - (13)
Group operating profit/(loss) 318 (136) 182 302 {310) (8)
Share of profits of joint ventures and associates 15 10 - 10 26 - 26
Total operating profit/(loss) 328 (136) 192 328 (310) 18
(Loss)/gain on sale of businesses 7 (16) - (16} 13 - 13
Finance income 7 1 - " 10 - 10
Finance expense 7 (152) - (152) (158) - (158)
Profit/(loss) before income tax 171 (136) 35 193 (310) (117
Income tax {expense)/credit B8 (61) 20 (a1) (59) 10 (49)
Profit/{loss) for the year from continuing operations 110 (116) (6) 134 (300) (166)
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 9 184 - 184 192 - 192
Profit/(loss) for the year 294 (116) 178 326 (300) 26
Profit/(loss) attnbutable to
Owners of the Parent Company 127 (108) 19 158 (235) (77}
Non-controlling interests 167 (8) 159 168 (65) 103
Profit/(loss) for the year 294 (116) 178 326 (300) 26
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to the owners of
the Parent Company during the year {cents per share)? 10
— basic 08 (31)
— diluted 08 3N
Loss per share from continuing operations attnbutable
to the owners of the Parent Company during the year
{cents per share) 10
— baste (34) (78)
— diluted (34) (78)
Earmings per share from discontinued operations
attributable to the owners of the Parent Company
during the year (cents per share) 10
— basic 42 47
— diluted 42 47
*The results of Islands sub-group and Macau has been presented in discontinued operations {(note 8)
1 Further detail on exceptional items 15 set out in note 6b and in the reevant note for eachstem
2 Includes discontinued operations
The notes on pages 77 to 127 are an ntegral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 March 2013

2012/13 2011/12
Note ussm usim
Profit for the year 178 26
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year
Actuanial losses in the value of defined benefit retirement plans 27 (38) {(72)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 5 {68)
Fair value gain on avalable-for-sale financial assets 16 4 5
Other comprehensive expense for the year (29) (135)
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 1 2
Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of tax (28) (133)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 150 (107)
Total comprehensive {expense)/income attributable to
Owners of the Parent Company (10} (186)
Non-controlling interests 160 79

The notes on pages 77 to 127 are anintegral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2013

31 March 31 March

2013 2012
Note us$m US$m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangtble assets 13 485 528
Property, plant and equipment 14 1,367 1,786
Investments In jomnt ventures and associates 15 253 253
Available-for-sale financial assets 16 S8 55
Other receivables 17 66 55
Deferred tax assets 25 30 5
Retirement benefit assets 27 28 40
2,287 2,722
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 17 484 602
Inventories 18 31 103
Cash and cash equivalents 12 152 312
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 20 - 18
667 1,035
Assets held for sale 9 716 -
1,383 1.035
Total assets 3,670 3,757
Liabihties
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 21 622 832
Borrowings 22 86 450
Financial labihities at far value 23 258 251
Provisions 26 85 61
Current tax habilities 142 203
1,193 1,807
Lizbilities held for sale 9 235 -
1,428 1,807
Net current liabilities {45) (772)
Non-current habihities
Trade and other payables 21 27 N
Borrowtngs 22 1,717 1,247
Deferred tax habilities 25 29 30
Provisions 26 32 37
Retirement benefit obligations 27 185 189
1,990 1534
Net assets 252 416
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to the owners of the Parent Company
Share capital 28 133 133
Share premium a7 a7
Reserves (479) (307
(249) 7
Non-controlling interests 501 493
Total equity 252 416

The notes on pages 77 te 127 are an integral part of these financial state

ts These financial statements on pages 71 to 127 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 21 May 2013 and signed on its behalf by

[ AN~ -
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2013

Foreign
currency
translation Capnaland Non-
Share  and hedging other Retained controlling
Share capital premium reserve reserves earnings Total interests  Total equity
uS$m US$m ussm Us$m us$m ussm UsS$m Ussm

Balance at 1 April 2011 133 97 108 3516 (3,488) 366 445 811
{t.oss}/profit for the year - - - - 77N 77 103 26
Net actuanal losses recognised
(net of tax) - - - - (67) (67) 3) 70}
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - {47) - - an 2N {68)
Fair value movements in
available-for-sale financial assets - - - 5 - 5 - 5
Total comprehensive (expense)/income - - {47) (144) {186) 79 (107)
for the year
Own shares purchased - - - - (66} (66} - (66)
Equity share-based payments - - - - 11 11 - 11
Dnadends - - - - (202} (202) - (202)
Transfers to retained earnings - - - {200) 200 - - -
Total dividends and other transactions - - - (200} (57) (257) - (257)
with Cable & Wireless Communications
Plc shareholders
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - (166) (166)
Purchase of non-controling interest - - - - - - 135 135
Total dividends and other transactions - - - - - - (31 (31)
with non-controlling interests
Balance at 31 March 2012 133 a7 61 3in (3,689) n 433 416
Profit for the year - - - - 19 19 159 178
Net actuanial losses recognised
(net of tax) - - - - (34) (34) (3) (37)
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - 1 - - 1 4 5
Fair value movements in
avallable-for-sale financial assets - - - - 4 - 4
Total comprehensive Income/{expense) - - 1 4 (15) {(10) 160 150
for the year
Equity share-based payments - - - - 4 4 - 4
Dividends - - - - (166) (166) - (166)
Transfers to retained earnings - - (30} (4) 34 - - -
Total dividends and other transactions - - (30) (4) (128) (162) - (162)
with Cable & Wireless Communications
Plc shareholders
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - (152) (152)
Total dividends and other transactions - - - - - - {152) (152)
with non-controlling interests
Balance at 31 March 2013 133 97 32 3.3 (3,832) (249) 501 252

The netes on pages 77 to 127 are an integral part of these financial statements

74 Cable & Wireless Communications




Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2013

2012/13 2011/12*

Note Ussm us§m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated ~ continuing cperations (page 76} 540 483
Cash generated — discontinued operations 302 332
Income taxes paid ~ continuing operations (11 (70)
Income taxes patd — discontinued operations (28) (20)
Net cash from operating activities 703 725
Cash flows from investing activities
Finance income 7 7
Other income - 1
Dwidends recewed 6 4
Decrease In available-for-sale financial assets 10 -
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 3
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (236) (231)
Purchase of intangible assets (16) (53}
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiartes and joint ventures (net of cash disposed) (6) 27
Acguisition of subsidianes (net of cashreceved) (33) (165)
Net cash used in continuing operations (264) {407)
Discontinued operations (85) {(102)
Net cash used in investing activities (349) {509)
Net cash flow before financing activities 354 216
Cash flows from financing activities
Dvidends paid to the owners of the Parent Company (166) (204)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (73) (76)
Repayments of borrowings (760} (583)
Finance costs {156) {119)
Proceeds from borrowings 882 895
Purchase of own shares - (70)
Net cash used in continuing operations {273) (157)
Discontinued operations (93) (109)
Net cash used in financing activities (366) (266)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents - continuing operations (108) (151)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - discontinued operations 96 0
Cash and cash equivatents at 1 April 19 312 379
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents {3) 7
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 9,19 297 312

* The results of islands sub-group and Macau has been presented in discontinued eperations (note 9)

The notes on pages 77 to 127 are anintegral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2013

The reconciliation of loss for the year to net cash generated was as follows

2012/13 2011/12¢
Continuing operations Note ussm uUsSs$m
Loss for the year (6) (166)

Adjustments for

Tax expense 8 4 49
Depreciation 14 221 228
Amortisation 13 54 49
Impairment and accelerated depreciation 13,14 86 244
Loss/(gan) on sale of businesses 7 16 (13)
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment - 1
Finance income 7 {(11) (10)
Finance expense 7 152 158
Other incorne and expenses (10) 6
Increase/{decrease) in provisions 21 (1)
Employee benefits (5) m
Defined benefit pension scherme other contributions (7) (7
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures and associates 15 10y (26)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 542 511
Changes in working capital (excluding effects of acquisstion and disposal of subsidiaries)

Decrease/f(increase) in inventories 2 (12}
Decrease in trade and other recevables 16 18
Decrease In payables (20) {34)
Cash generated from continuing operations 540 483

*The results of Islands sub-group and Macau has been presented in discontinued operations (note 9)

The notes on pages 77 to 127 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2013

1 General information

Cable & Wireless Communications Ple (the Company or the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries (together Cable & Wireless Communications
Group or the Group) I1s an internattonal telecommunications company mcorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom Following the
agreement to dispose of interests In Macau and the sale of its islands businesses, the Group operates through three business units being the
Caribbean, Panama and Monaco

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

2 1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Cable & Wireless Communications Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the European Union (EU) as they apply to the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2013

These conschdated financial statements are presented in US dollars (US$) and rounded to the nearest milion They have been prepared on the
historical cost basts except for certain financral instruments held at fair value Non-current assets and disposal groups are stated at the lower of
their carrying amount and far value less costs to sell

The Divectors have prepared the accounts oh a gaing concern basis (see page 46 of the Directors’ and carporate governance report for
further detall)

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, ncome and expenses These estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are considered to be reascnable under the
arcumstances They form the basis of judgements about the carrying values of assets and labilties that are not readily available from other
sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a continuing basis Revisians to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in
which the estimate 15 revised and in any future periods affected Critical judgements and areas where the use of estimates 1s significant are
discussed in note 3

The accounting policies have been apphed consistently by Group entities

Basis of consolidation |
The consolidated financial statements comprise a consolidation of the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries and include the Group's I
share of the results and net assets of its joint ventures and associates The results of the Group’s main trading subsidiaries, joint ventures and

associates have been prepared to align with the Group’s reporting date |

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by and forming part of the Group Control exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity in order to obtain benefits from ils activities In assessing control, the exstence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable are considered Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group effectively takes control
untit the date that control ceases Accounting policies of subsidiaries are aligned with the policies adopted by the Group ta ensure consistency

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group comparies are eliminated on consolidation
Unreahsed losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred

Joint ventures and associates
Jont ventures are entities over which the Group exercises joint control Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence
Investments in joint ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are imitially recagnised at cost

The Group's share of 1ts joint ventures’ and associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised through profit or loss Its share of
post-acquisition movements In reserves is recognised in equity The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted aganst the carrying
arnount of the investment

When the Group’s share of losses in ajoint venture and/or assaciate exceeds its Investment (including any other unsecured long-term
receivables), the Group does not recognise further losses unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2013

2 2 Application of recently 1ssued International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The Group considered the implications of the following amendments to IFRS during the year ended 31 March 2013

— Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures

— Amendment to IFRS 1 First Time Adoption

— Amendment to |AS 12 income Taxes

The above were first effective for the Group In the year beginning 1 Apnl 2012 and have been adopted by the Group for 2012/13 They did not
have a material impact on the Group

New and amended standards and interpretations endorsed by the EU, adopted by the Group for 2013/14

Title Effective date Descnption and impact on the Group
Amendment to IAS 19 Annual penods beginning on or after 1 January There will be an impact on the Group results due to the
Employee benefits 2013 change m calculating the income statement charge Interest

cost and expected return on plan assets will be replaced with
a net amount calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net defined benefit liabibty

Had the Group applied the new standard from 1 April 2012,
Group profit before tax from continuing operations would
have been US$B milhon lower

There are no other new or amended standards that are considered to have a matenial impact on the Group

New and amended standards and interpretations, not yet effective and not adopted by the Group

Title Effective date Description and impact onthe Group
IFRS 9 Financial nstruments  Annuat periods beginning on or after 1 January IFRS 9 replaces parts of IAS 39 Financial instruments
2015, however the standard has yet to be Recognition and Measurement that relate to the
endorsed by the EU which 1s lkely to delay classihcation and measurement of financial instruments
implementation There will be an impact on the Group results due to revised

classification categories although further changes to the
standard are likely The Group will consider the effect of the
revised standard once it has been endorsed by the EU

In addition, a number of new standards have been released but are not yet effective The Group 1s currently considering the effect of these
revised standards but they are not expected to have a material impact
2 3 Foreign currencies

a) Functional currency
Amounts included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary ecenomic
environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency)

b} foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transaction
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting frem the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and habilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised through profit or loss

¢} Foreign operations
The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the Group's presentation currency of
US dollars are translated as follows

1) Assets and habilities are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date,
1} Income and expenses are translated at rates closely approximating the rate at the date of the transactions, and

n1) Resulting exchange differences are recogmised in the foreign currency translation reserve
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Goodwill and fair value adjustments anising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and habiliies of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate On disposal of a foreign entity, accumulated exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the same
period in which the gain or loss on disposal i1s recognised

Exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net Investment in foreign entities are taken to shareholders’ equity Where investments
are matched in whole or in part by foreign currency loans, the exchange differences anising on the retranslation of such loans are also recorded
as movements in the Group's translation reserves and any excess taken to profit or loss

There are no Group entities operating in a hypennfiationary economy

The princtpal exchange rates used in the preparation of these accounts are as follows

2012/13 2011712
£ USS
Average 06330 06260
Year end 06562 06263
€ Us$
Average 07786 07225
Year end 07694 07506

2 4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and tmpairment losses The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes labour and overhead costs arising directly from the construction or acquisition of an item of property, plant and equipment
Plant and equipment represents the Group’s network infrastructure assets

The estimated costs of dismantling and removing assets, typically cell sites and network equipment, and restoring land on which they are
located are included in the cost of property, plant and equipment The corresponding obligation is recognised as a provision in accordance with
IAS 37 Provisions, Contngent Liabiities and Contingent Assets

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the cost can be measured rehably All other subsequent costs (primarily repairs and
maintenance) are charged to profit or loss as incurred

Depreciation s not recogmised on freehold land or assets under construction Depreciation is provided to write-off the cost of property, plant
and equipment, on a straight ine basis over the estimated usefu lives of the assets as follows

Lives
Cables up to 20 years
Network equipment 3to25years
Ducting 40 years
Freehold buldings 40 years
Leasehold bulldings up to 40 years or term of lease If less

Asset useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date An asset’s carrying amount 1s written down to its
recoverable amount if the carrying amount is greater than its recoverable amount through sale or use

2 5 Intangible assets

a) Goodwil

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits that arise from acquired assets that are not capable of being indivmdually identified and
separately recogrused

The goodwill recorded in the Group's statement of financial position 1s calculated using two different methods, depending on the acquisition
date as aresult of changes in accounting standards

All business combinations that occurred since 31 March 2010 are accounted for using the acquisition method in accordance with IFRS 3
Business Combinations Revised Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the far value of the Group's share of the
identifiable net assets acquired All transaction costs are expensed as incurred

All other business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations (2004)
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the farr value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired
Costs attributable to these combinations are included in the cost of acquisition
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2013

2.5 Intangble assets continued
Goodwill s not amortised and 1s tested annually for impawrment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses Goodwillis allocated to
cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing

b) Otherintangible assets

Costs that are directly associated with the purchase and implementation of identifiable and umique software products by the Group are
recogrused as intangible assets Expenditures that enhance and extend the benefits of computer software programs beyond therr onginal
specifications and lives are recogrused as a capital improvement and added to the eriginal cost of the software

Intangible assets relating to customer contracts, customer relationships and hcences obtained as part of the Group's business combinations are
recorded imitially at therr farr values

Other intangible assets that do not have indefinite useful lives are amortised on a straight line basis over their respective lives which are usually
based on contractual terms Otherintangible assets are stated at cost less amortisation

Lives
Software 3to 5 years
Licences 25 years or less If the licence term s shorter
Customer contracts and relationships 4 to 10 years

2 6 Financial instruments

Fmancral assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categones cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recejvables, inancial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets, and held-to-maturity investments The classification depends on the
purpose for which the assets are held The Group does not currently classify any assets as held-to-matunty investments

Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date
for financial assets other than those held at farr value through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and at bank, short-term deposits, money market funds and government securities They are
tughly liquid monetary investments that are readily canvertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to aninsignificant risk of changes in
value The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position s considered to approximate fair value Bank
overdrafts are included within borrowings and classified in current labilities on the statement of financial position

Trade and other recevables

Trade and other recevables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
They arise when the Graup provides money, goods or services directly to a third party withno intention of trading the recesvable Trade and
other receivables are presented in current assets in the statement of financial position, except for those with matunties greater than one year
after the reporting date

Receivables are recognised iniially at the value of the Invoice sent to the customer and subsequently at the amounts considered recoverable
(amortised cost)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that are either held for trading or those designated upon imtial recognition
A financial asset is classified in this category If acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term orif so designated by
management These financial assets are recogrised initially at fair value Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised through prafit er loss

Derwvative financial instruments

Dervative financial instruments are initially recogrised at fair value on the date a derivative contract s entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at therr farr value at each reporting date The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative 1s
designated as a hedging instrument, and If so, the rature of the item being hedged Gains and losses on dervative instruments that are not
designated as hedge instruments are recognised rmmediately through profit or loss
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Available-for-sole financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-denvative financial assets that are erither designated in this category upon imitial recognition or not
classified in any of the other categones They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment
within one year of the reporting date and such assets recogmised n this category by the Group include UK and Bahamian Government gilts
Purchases and disposals of avallable-for-sale financial assets are recognised at far value Subsequent changes in fair value, other than
impairment losses and foreign currency differences, are recognised in other comprehensive Income and presented in the fair value reserve
(within Capital and Other reserves) in equity When an asset 1s derecognised the gain or loss accumulated in equity 1s reclassified through profit
orloss

Financial labiities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities into the following categonies trade and other payables, borrowings, and financial liabilities at fair value

Management determines the classification of its financial liabilites at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting
date for inancial labities other than those held at fair value

Borrowings

Borrowings are recogmised initially at fair value net of directly attributable transaction costs incurred and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost Any difference between the proceeds received {net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised through profit
or loss over the perod of the borrowings using the effective interest method The financial liabilities recognised in this category include secured
andunsecured bonds and facilities and other loans held by the Group and are presented in berrowings incurrent liabilitres in the statement of
financial position untess the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least one year after the reporting date

Financial abiities ot fair volue

This category inctudes a puttable mstrument on non-controlling interests relating to the acquisition of Monaco Telecom (the Monaco Tetecom
put option), together with derivative financial instruments These financial liabiities are recognised initially at fair value Subsequent changes in
fair value are recogmised through profit or loss except for changes in the far value of the Monaco Telecom put option

The fair value of the Monaco Telecom put option is based on the present value of the redemption amount, calculated using discounted cash
flow techniques, as If the puttable instrument had been exercised at the reporting date Movements in the fair value of the hability are
recognised as adjustments to goodwill n accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations {2004), with the unwind of the discount on the farr
value calculation being recognised through profit or loss in finance expenses

2 7 Impairment of assets

Financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there i1s objective evidence that a financial asset not carned at far value through profit or
loss or a group of those financial assets i1s impaired

An impairment allowance s established for trade receivables when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the recewvables

Non-financial assets

Assets that have indefinite useful lives are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for imparment All other non-current assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances idicate that the carrying amount may not be fully recoverable For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for wiich there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units)

The Group determines any Impairment by comparing the carrying values of each of the Group’s assets (or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs) to their recoverable amounts, which 15 the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell andits value in use Fair value represents
market value in an active market Value in use 15 determined by discounting future cash flows ansing from the asset Future cash flows are
determined with reference to the Group's own projections using pre-tax discount rates

tmpairment reviews Invalve management making assumptions and estimates, which are highly jJudgemental and susceptible to change

2 B Inventortes

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost is the price paid less any rebates, trade discounts or subsidies 1t also
includes delivery charges and import duties, but does not include value added taxes or advertising and administration costs Costis based on
the first-n, first-out (FIFO) principle For inventortes held for resale, net realisable value 15 determined as the estimated selling price inthe
ordinary course of business less costs to sell Provision is made for obsolete and slow-maoving mventories as required
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2 9 Share capital
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, stand-alone options or the repurchase of shares are recognised in equity

210 Leases
All Group feases are operating leases Payments made under operating leases, net of lease Incentives or premiums received, are charged
through profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease

2 11 Non-current assets and disposal groups heid for sale

When the value of non-current assets is expected to be recovered principally through sale rather than through continutng usage, they are
avallable for immed.ate sale in thewr present condition and a sale 1s highly probable, they are classified as assets held for sale With the exception
of deferred tax assets, assets ansing from employee benefits and financial Instruments, the assets held for sale are stated at the lower of therr
carrymg amount and fair value less costs to sell

Disposal groups are groups of assets and liabilities to be disposed of together as a group in a single transaction They are recognised as held for
sale at the reporting date and are separately disclosed as current assets and liabiities on the statement of financial position Any amortisation
and depreciation ceases when classified as held for sale

Measurement differences anising between the carrying amount and farr value less cost of disposal are treated as imparrment charges and
separately disclosed

The Islands sub-group and the Macau segment have been dlassified at year end as disposal groups held for sale See note 9 for details

212 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group where the operations and cash flows are clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group
and which

— Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,

— Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or

- 15 a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Classsfication as a discontinued operation occurs on disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale

When an aperation 1s classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative income statement and cash flow statement are re-presented as If
the operation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative year

Thelslands sub-group and the Macau segment have been classified as discontinued operations See note 9 for details

213 Employee benefits

Defined contribution pensions

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions to a third party The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have beenpaid The contributions are recognised as operating costs as they are incurred through profit or
loss

Defined benefit obligations

A defined benefit plan s a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation These schemes are generally funded through payments to
Insurance compantes or Trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuanal calculations

The asset or hability recognised in the statement of finanoial position in respect of each defined benefit pension plan represents the fair value of
plan assets less the present value of the defined benefit obligations at the reporting date Assets are only recogmised to the extent that the
present value of the economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan exceed
the fair value of the plan assets ess the present value of the defined benefit abligations Defined benefit obligations for each scheme are
calculated annually by independent actuaries

The Group recogmises actuarial gains and losses, arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions, in the period in
which they occur in the statement of comprehensive income Past service costs are recognised immediately through profit or loss unless the
changes to the pension plan are conditional on the employee remartning in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period) In these
cases, the past service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period

Current service costs and any past service costs, together with the unwinding of the discount on plan liabilities less the expected return on plan
assets, are included within aperating costs through profit or loss
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Share-based compensation

The Group operates various equity-settled, share-based compensation plans The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of options over shares in the Company I1s recognised as an operating cost through profit or loss over the vesting period The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period 15 determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted, which excludes the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions (for example service, profitability and cash flow targets) Non-market vesting conditions are included in
estimates about the number of options that are expected to vest At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
aptions that are expected to vest

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment i1s terminated before the normal retirement date or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits The Group recognises termination benefits within other provisions when it 1
demonstrably commutted to the action leading to the employee’s termination

Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability in the statement of financial position in relation to bonuses payable to employees where contractually obliged or
where there 15 a past practice that has created a constructive obligation

214 Tax

Tax on the profit or loss for the year compnises current and deferred tax Tax 1s recogrised through profitor loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recogrised directly in ather comprehensive income and equity, in which case it s recogmised in other comprehensive income or
equity, respectively

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years

Deferred tax s provided in full, using the hability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and habilities and
therr carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, except where the difference arises from

— The imitial recogmition of goodwill, or

— The mitial recognition of an asset or habibty in a transaction other than a business combination, affecting neither accounting nor taxable
profit

Deferred tax 15 calcutated using tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the temporary differences reverse, based on rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it s prabable that future taxable profit will be avalable against which the temporary
differences can be utihsed

Deferred tax 15 provided on temporary differences arnising on investments in subsidianies and interests injoint ventures and associates, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference 1s controlled by the Group and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future

215 Prowisions

Prowisions are habilities of uncertain timing or amount They are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it s mare likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obiigation and the amount can be
reliably estimated

Provisions are presented in the statement of financial position at the present value of the estimated future outflows expected to be required to
settle the obligation Provision charges and reversals are recagnised through profit or loss Discount unwinding 1s recognised as a finance expense

216 Revenue recogmtion

Group revenue, which excludes discounts, value added tax and similar sales taxes, represents the amount recevable in respect of services and
goods prowided to customers It includes sales to joint ventures and associates but does not include sales by joint ventures and associates or
sales between Group companies Revenue 1s recognised only when payment 1s probable

Revenue from services 1s recogmsed as the services are provided In respect of services invoiced in advance, amounts are deferred until
prowvision of the service

Amounts payable by and to other telecommunications operators are recognised as the services are provided Charges are negotiated separately
and are subject to continual review Revenue generated through the provision of these services s accounted for gross of any amounts payable
to other telecommunications operators for interconnect fees
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2 16 Revenue recognition continued

Revenue from mobile, broadband, TV and fixed line products comprises amounts charged to customers in respect of monthly access charges,
arrtime and usage, messaging and other telecommunications services This includes data services and informatton provision and revenue from
the sale of equipment, including handsets

Monthly access charges from mobile, broadband. TV and fixed !ine products are invoiced and recorded as part of a periodic billing cycle Airtime,
either from contract customers as part of the invoiced amount or from prepaid customers through the sale of prepaid cards, 1s recorded in the
penod in which the customer uses the service Unbilled revenue resutting from services provided to contract customers from the billing cycle
date to the end of each period s accrued Unearned monthly access charges relating to pertods after each accounting period are deferred

The Group earns revenue from the transnussion of content and traffic on its network orignated by third-party providers Third-party dealers
and partners are also used to faciitate the sale and provision of some services and equipment seld by the Group We assess whether revenue
should be recorded gross as principal or net as agent, based on the features of such arrangements including the following factors

— Whether the Group holds itself out as an agent,

— Whether the Group has latitude for establishing the price, either directly or indirectly, for example by providing additional serwvices,
— Provision of customer remedies,

— Whether the Group has the primary responsibility for providing the services to the customer or for fulfiling the order, and

— Assumption of credit risk

Revenue from sales of telecommunications equipment 1s recognised upon delivery to the customer

The total consideration on arrangements with multiple revenue generating activities (generally the sale of telecoms equipment and ongoing
service) 15 allocated to those components that are capable of operating independently, based on the estimated fair value of the components
The fair value of each component 1s determined by amounts charged when sold separately and by reference to sales of equivalent products and
services by third parties

Revenue arising from the prowvision of ather services, including maintenance contracts, s recogmsed over the periods in which the service s
provided

Customer acquisition costs including dealer commussiens and similar payments are expensed as incurred

217 Exceptional items
Exceptional items are matenal items within profit or loss that derive from individual events that fall within the ordinary activities of the Group
that are identified as exceptional items by virtue of their size, nature or incidence

218 Transactions with holders of non-controfling interests

Transactions to acquire or dispose of ownership interests in the Group’s subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions Inthese cases, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-contrelling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
the Group’s relative interest in the subsidiary Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received 1s recognised directly in equity attributable to the owners of the Parent Company

3 Critical accounting estimates and jJudgements

A number of estimates and assumptions have been made relating to the reporting of results of operations and the financial condition of the
Group Resuits may differ ssgmficantly from those estimates under different assumptions and conditrons The Directors consider that the
following discussion addresses the Group's most ¢nitical accounting estimates These particular policies require subjective and complex
assessments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are uncertam

31 Valuation of assets for purchase accounting

Where the Group undertakes business combinations, the cost of acquisition 1s allocated to identifiable net assets and contingent habilities
acquired and assumed by reference to their estimated fair values at the time of acquisitton The rematning amount 1s recorded as goodwill Any
value assigned to the identifiable assets 1s determined by reference to an active market, independent appraisal or estimate by management
based on cash flow projections The latter situation includes estimates regarding expectations of the econormic useful lives of the products and
technology acquired
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3 2 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group assigns usefut lives and residual values to property, plant and equipment based on perniodic studies of actual asset lives and the
intended use for those assets Changes in circumstances such as technological advances (for example from one generation of mobile
technology to the next), prospective economic utilisation and physical condition of the assets concerned could result in the actual useful lives
differing from initial estimates Where the Group determines that the useful ife of property, plant and equipment should be shortened, it
depreciates the net book value in excess of the residual value over the revised remaiung useful hfe, thereby increasing depreciation expense
Any change tn an asset's ife s reflected in the Group's financial statements when the change in estimate 1s determined

3 3 Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Directors assess property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (excluding goodwill) for imparment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value 15 less than its recoverable amount Factors that are considered important and that could trigger
an mparment review include the following

— Obsolescence or physical damage,

— Significant changes in technology and regulatory environments,

— Swnificant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results,

— Significant changes in the use of the assets or the strategy of the overall business,

— Significant negative industry or economuc trends, and

— Significant decline in the market capitalisation relative to net book value for a sustained period

tn addition, the Directors test goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite life at least annually for impairment

The identification of iImpairment indicators, the estimation of future cash flows and the determination of the recoverable amount for assets or
cash-generating units requires significant consideration Note 12 sets out the assumptions and estimates used during these assessments

3 4 Receivables allowance

Theimpairment aliowance for trade receivables reflects the Group's estimates of losses arising from the failure or inabiity of the Group's
customers to make required payments The allowance 1s based on the ageing of customer accounts, custorner creditworthiness and the Group's
historical write-off expenience Changes to the allowance may be required If the financial condition of the Group's custormers Improves or
deteriorates Animprovement in financial condition may result in lower actual write-offs Historically, changes to the estimate of losses have not
been matenal to the Group’s financial position and results

|
|
35 Tax !
The calculation of the Group's total tax charge involves a degree of estimation in respect of certain items where the tax treatment cannct be
finally deterrmined untd a resolution has been reached with the relevant tax autherity or, If necessary, through a formal legal process The final
resolution of some of these itemns may give rise to matenal income statement and/or cash flow variances

The resolution of 1ssues 1s not always within the control of the Group and is often dependent on the efficency of the administrative and legal
processes in the relevant tax junsdictions in which the Group operates Issues can, and often do, take many years to resolve Payments in
respect of tax liabiities for an accounting period result from payments on account and on the final resolution of openitems As a result, there
can be substantial differences between the tax charge through profit or loss and tax payments made

3 6 Provisions

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash outflows by a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the nisks specific to the liability These provisions are estimates for which the amount and timing of actual cash flows are
dependent on future events
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37 Pensions

The Group provides several defined benefit pension schemes for its employees The asset or hiability recognised in the statement of financial
position in respect of defined benefit penston plans represents the fair value of plan assets less the present value of the defined benefit
obligations at the reporting date The expected cost of providing these defined benefit pensions will depend on an assessment of such factors
as

— The bfe expectancy of the members,

— The length of service,

— The rate of salary progression,

— The rate of return earned on assets in the future,

— The rate used to discount future pension liabilities, and
— Future inflation rates

The assumptions used by the Group are set out In note 27 and are estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions which may
not necessarily be borne out in practice but are comparable to the median estimates in this regard used by FTSE 250 companies Changes to
these assumptions could materially affect the defined benefit schermes” liabilities and assets

3 8 Fair value estimation

The fair value of non-derivative financial instruments traded in active markets (such as avallable-for-sale secunities) 1s based on quoted market
prices at the reporting date The quoted market price used for traded financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price The appropriate
quoted market price for traded financial liabilities 1s the current offer price The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined
using forward exchange market rates at the reporting date

The fair value of non-dervative financial instruments that are not traded in an active market 1s determined by using valuation techniques The
Group uses a variety of methods which include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing medels which reflect the speaific instrument

The nominal value of receivables (less estimated impairments) and payables are assumed to approximate to their fair values The fair value of
financial habilities measured at amortised cost 1s estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate
that 15 avaitable to the Group for similar financial instruments Discounted cash flows are used to determine the fair value for the majority of
remaining financial instruments

The fatr value of derivative financial instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts 1s determined using forward exchange market
rates at the reporting date

3 9 Revenue recognition

Judgement 1s required in assessing the application of revenue recognition principles and the specific guidance in respect of Group revenue This
includes the allocation of revenue between multiple deliverables, such as the sale value of telecommunications equipment and ongoing service,
where such items are sold as part of a bundled package Seenote 216

4 Revenue

Accounting policy detalled innote 2 16 »

2012/13 201712

Continuing operations ussm ussm
Sales of telecommunications services and related operations 1,875 1,974
Sales of telecommunications equipment and accessories 67 58
Total revenue 1,942 2,032
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5 Segment information

Cable & Wireless Communications Group 1s an international telecommunications service provider It operates integrated telecommunications
compantes offering mobile, broadband, TV, fixed line and enterprise services to residential and business customers It had three principal
operations which have been identified as the Group's reportable segments, being the Canbbean, Panama and Monaco During the year ended
31 March 2013, the Group announced that agreements had been reached for the sale of the Monace & islands and the Macau segments The
Islands sub-group and Macau segment have been classified as discontinued operations Monaco does not meet the cnteria for discontinued
operations and remains an operating segment of the Group See note 2 for more information

The Group also has a London corporate centre that does not meet the defimition of an operating segment as it does not earn revenue fromits
activittes This function pnimarily acts as a portfolio manager and operational support provider for the reportable segments

The operating segment result from contiuing operations for the two years ended 31 March 2013 are presented below and the prior year
results have been re-presented for the Islands sub-group and Macau disposals The non-operating London corporate centre 15 also disclosed
within ‘other and ehminations’ in order to reconcile the reportable segment results to the Group results

The Board (the ctvef operating decision maker of the Group) considers the performance of each of these operations in assessing the
performance of the Group and making decisions about the allocation of resources Accordingly, these are the operating segments disclosed
There are no other operating segments identified by the Board The operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Board

Other and

Continuing operations Canbbean Panams Monaco  eliminations® Total

Year ended 31 March 2013 Ussm ussm usém us$m UsSm
Revenue 1,120 586 236 - 1,942
Cost of sales (268) {189) 97) 1) {555)
Gross margin 852 397 139 (1 1,387
Pre-exceptional operating costs (578) {158) (64} 2 (798)
EBITDA? 274 239 75 1 589
Depreciation and amortisation (155) (85) (27} (8) (275)
Net other cperating (expense)/income 2) - - 6 4
Exceptional operating costs (136) - - - (136)
Group operating {loss)/profit (19) 154 48 ()] 182
Share of profit after tax of joint ventures and associates - - - 10 10
Total operating (loss)/profit 19 154 48 9 192
Net other non-operating expense - - (12) (4) (16)
Net finance expense 29 (65)] 1 {162) (141)
Profit before income tax 10 145 37 (157) 35
Income tax 1 (42) 3 2) (41}
Profit for the year from continuing operations 1n 103 40 {(160) (6}
Income taxes paid® (23) (81) n (6) (111)

1 Other and ehminations includes London corporate centre expenses, elminations for inter-segment transactions and the results of our joint ventures and associates
{with the exception of our joint venture in Afghanistan which s managed and reported within Monaco)

2 EBITDA 5 used inmanagement reporting as it 15 considered by management to be a key financial metric it is defined as eamings before interest tax, depreciation and amortisatien
net other operating and non-operating income/{expense) and exceptional iterms (note 37)

3 Income taxes paxd represents cash tax paid during the year by consohdated subsidharies
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5 Segment information continued

Other and

Continuing operations Canbbean Panama Monace  eliminations’ Total

Year ended 31 March 2012 ussm uUs$m ussm ussm ussm
Revenue 1172 601 267 (8) 2,032
Cost of sales 27 (199) (120) 4 (592)
Gross margsn B95 402 147 (4 1,440
Pre-exceptional operating costs ®11) {146} (88) (5} (850)
EBITDA? 284 256 59 (9} 590
Depreciation and amortisation {170) (71) (28) (8) 277)
Net other operating expense (11) - - - (in
Exceptional operating costs (283) (9) (§1:)] - (310)
Group operating (loss)/profit (180) 176 13 {(17) (8)
Share of profit after tax of joint ventures and associates - - 8 18 26
Total operating (loss)/profit (180) 176 4l 1 18
Net other non-operating income - - - 13 13
Net finance expense (21) 7 (15) (105) (148)
(Loss)/profit before income tax (201) 169 6 91 (117
Income tax (18) (50) 4 13 (49)
(Loss)/profit for the year from continwing operations 217 119 10 (78) (166)
Income taxes paid® (25) (32) (4) 9) (70)

1 Otherand eltminations includes London expenses eliminations for nter-segment transactions and the results of our jomt ventures and assocuates (with the exception of our joint
venture in Afghanistan, which 1s managed and reported within Manaco)

2 EBITDAIs used inmanagement reporting as It 1s considered by management to be a key financial metric It s defined as earnings before interest tax depreciation and amortisation
net other operating and non-operating iIncome/expense and exceptional items {note 37}

3 Income taxes pawd represents cash tax pard duning the year by consolidated subsidianes

There are no differences in the measurement of the reportable segments’ results and the Group's results

There is no significant trading between the segments Transactions between the segments are on commercial terms similar to those offered to
external customers

There are no differences in the measurement of the reportable segments’ assets and hablities and the Group’s assets and liabilities
Furthermore, there are no asymmetnical allocations to reportable segments

Entity-wide disclosures for continuing operations
The revenue from external customers are analysed by product betow

2012/13 200712

usSm Us$m
Mobile 911 910
Broadband and TV 196 198
Fixed voice 437 483
Enterpnise, data and other 398 441
Total 1,942 2,032
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Revenue for continuing operatrons from externai customers can be classified by country as follows

2012/13 2011112

uss$m us$m

United Kingdom {country of domicile) - -
Bahamas 362 352
Jamaica 211 236
Panama 586 601
Monaco 236 268
All other countries and eliminations 547 575
Total 1,942 2,032

Revenue has been allocated to a country based on the location in which the telecommunications services were provided

The Group does not have any customers from which revenue exceeds 10% of Group revenue

Non-current assets in continuing operations {other than financial Instruments, deferred tax assets and defined benefit pension assets) are

classified by country as follows

At 31 March At 31 March

2013 2012

ussm us$m
Un:ited Kingdom {country of dormicile} 17 16
Bahamas 371 361
Jamaica 121 111
Panama 554 539
Monaco 410 382
All other countnies and ehminations (includes non-operating assets and habilities) 698 772
Tota! 2,171 2,181

6 Operating costs and other operating income and expenses
6a Operating costs

An analysis of the operating costs from continuing operations incurred by the Group is presented below, classified by the nature of the cost

2012113 2011712
Pre- Exceptional Pre-  Exceptional
exceptional items Total  exceptional items Total
Conunuing operations ussm ussm Ussm Ustm Us$m us$m
Outpayments and direct costs 555 - 555 592 - 592
Employee and other staff expensas 312 50 362 365 66 431
Operating lease rentals
— Networks 17 - 17 16 - 16
— Property 23 - 23 24 - 24
Other administrative expenses 234 - 234 240 - 240
Network costs 127 - 127 126 - 126
Property and utiity costs 85 - 85 79 - 79
Operating costs befere depreciation and amortisation 1,353 50 1,403 1,442 66 1,508
Depreciation of praperty, plant and equipment 221 86 307 228 232 460
Amortisation of intangible assets 54 - 54 49 12 61
Operating costs 1,628 136 1,764 1,719 310 2,029
Operating costs are stated net of credits or charges ansing from the release or establishment of accruals
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6b Exceptional items
Accounting policy detalled in note 2 17 »

Exceptional losses totalled US$136 million compnising restructuring costs and asset imparment charges in the Canbbean (2011/12 -
US$310 million)

Exceptional items within operating costs before depreaation and amortisation are disclosed below while further information in respect of
exceptional impairment charges can be found in note 12

In 2012713, exceptional staff costs of US$50 milion comprise redundancy and restructuring costs in the Caribbean In 2011/32, exceptional
staff costs of US$66 milhon include US$9 mithon in relation to a restructuring pragramme i Panama and US$57 milhon m the Caribbean which
predominantly relates to the post acquisition restructuring plan in the Bahamas Telecormmumications Company (BTC)

6¢ Employee and other staff expenses

Accounting pohicy detailledinnote 2 13 »

The pre-exceptronal employee and other staff expenses for continuing operations are set out below

2012/13 2011/12
UsSm Ustm
Wages and salaries 299 353
Social security costs 22 11
Share-based payments 2 4
Pension costs
— defined benefit plans ) -
— defined contnbution plans 1" 10
Temporary labour and recruitment 17 29
344 407
Less Staff costs capitalised (32) 42)
Staff costs 312 365
Exceptional employee and other staff expenses (note 6b) 50 66
Total staff costs for continuing operations 362 431
Tota! staff costs in respect of discontinued operations in 2012/13 was US$76 millon (2011/12 — US$72 million)
The average number of persons, including Executive Directors, employed by the Group during the year was
2012/13 201132
London 130 146
Caribbean 3,618 3948
Panama 1,478 1,598
Monaco 323 412
Total 5,549 6,104

The average number of employees in discontinued operations in 2012/13 was 2,180 (2011/12 ~ 2,111)
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Directers’ and key management remuneration
Key management are represented by Directors only as those that have authonity and responsibility for managenial decisions affecting the future
development and business prospects of the Cable & Wireless Communications Group

Included within employee costs is key management remuneration relating to continuing operations as follows

2012/13 2011/12

usSm ussm

Salaries and other short-term employment benefits 58 65
Post-employment benefits 06 05
Total Directors’ remuneration’ 64 70
Share-based payments 30 10
Total key management remuneration 94 80

1 Please refer to the Directors remuneratwon report on pages 51 to 66 for further information on aggregate Directors emoluments of US$6 4 mithon {£4 1 mitlion)} (2011112 -
Ws$7 mithon {£4 4 milon)) The Directors remuneration report is presented in sterling as safanies benefits and bonuses are paid in sterling

6d Other operating income and expense

In 2012/13, other operating income of US$11 milion includes US$8 million of foreign exchange translation gains on our UK defined benefit
penston schemes, US$1 mithon of gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment and US$2 nullion of compensation received from

a supplier

In 2011/12, other operating income primanty ncluded gans on disposal of property, plant and equipment

In 2012/13, other operating expenses of US$7 million inctudes US$2 million of transaction costs relating to the proposed disposal of Monaco
Telecom {note 9), US$4 million of hurnicane rectification costs and US$1 milhion of losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment

In 2011/12, other operating expenses of US$13 million included US$ 7 million of stamp duty on the Bahamas acquisition, US$5 million of costs
incurred following Hurricane Irene and U$$1 million of tosses on disposal of property, plant and equipment

6e Auditor’'s remuneration

2012/13 201712
ussm ussm
Audtt services

Statutery audit services - in respect of the Group's accounts 25 24
Audit of the Group's annual accounts 25 24

Amounts receivable by auditors and their associates
Statutory audit services — in respect of other statutory accounts 18 15
Audit related regulatory reporting o8 06
51 45
Tax services — compliance 01 01
Tax services — advisory 02 -
Services related to corporate finance actvities 09 02
Other services {including other assurance services) - 02
63 50

Auditor's remuneration for audit and other services in respect of discontinued operations in 2012/13 was US$1 6 miflion (2011/12 -
U530 B milhon) This amount 1s included in the table above

Fees pard to KPMG Audit plc for audit and other services to the Company are included in the table above and are not disclosed inits individual
accounts as the Group accounts are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis
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7 Finance income/expense and other non-operating expenses

7a Gains and losses on sale of businesses

During the year, the Group disposed of its African enterprise subsidiary, Afinis Communications SA The disposal took place on 3 August 2012
for consideratien of US$3 millon resulting in a loss of U5$16 mullion on disposal Afnis Communications SA was classified within the Monaco
reportable segment

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group disposed of its 50% interest in Telecom Vanuatu Limited, which was classified within the
‘other’ reportable segment The disposal tock place on 12 October 2011 for total consideration of US$5 million (excluding transaction costs)
resulting in a gain on disposal of US$3 mullion

The Group also disposed of its 49% interest in Fip International Telecoms Lirmited, which was classified within the other’ reportable segment
The disposal took place on 15 March 2012 for total consideration of US$10 million (excluding transaction costs) resulting in a gain on disposal
of US$3 milkon

Afurther gain of US$7 million was recogmsed in the year ended 31 March 2012 in relation to adjustments to working capital and additional
conbingent consideration on the sale of Cable & Wireless (Bermuda) Holdings and its subsidianies The sale of Cable & Wireless (Bermuda)
Holdings had completed durnng the year ended 31 March 2011

None of the businesses disposed constitute a discontinued operation in accordance with iFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations due to therr size

7b Finance income and expense

Accounting pohcydetailedinnote2 6 »

2012/13 201/12

Continuing operations ussm US$m
Finance income
Interest on cash and deposits 6 6
Investment income 1 1
Fareign exchange gains 3 -
Gams on derivative contracts 1 3
Total finance income 11 10
Finance expense
Interest on bank loans 37 10
Interest on bonds 103 93
Unwinding of discounts on provisions 2 1
Unwinding of discount on Monaco put option lability - 19
Foreign exchange losses - 4
Losses on derivative contracts 12 -
Capitalised finance transaction costs written off - 6

154 163

Less Interest capitalised (3] (5)
Total finance expense 152 158

Tax relief of US$ million s available on interest capitalised in the year ended 31 March 2013 (2011/12 -~ US$2 million} Interest has been
capitahsed within property, plant and equipment at a rate of 3 7% (2011/12 — 4 0%) on qualfying capital expenditure

92 Cable & Wireless Communications




8 Income tax expense

Accouniing policy detailedinnote 2 14 »

2012713 2011112
Us$m ussm
Current tax charge for continuing operations
UK tax at 24% (2011/12 - 26%) 3 6
Double tax relief (3) (6)
Overseas tax 62 80
Adjustmenits relating to prior years 3 (23)
Total current tax charge for continuing operations 65 57
Deferred tax (credit)/charge for continuing operations
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences (25) (6)
Adjustmenits relating to prior years 1 (2)
Total deferred tax credit for continuing operations (24) (8)
Total tax charge for continuing operations 41 49
Income tax charge relating to discontinued operations (note 9) 31 29
Total income tax charge 72 78
The Group's effective tax rate differs from the UK statutory tax rate as follows
2012113 201112
Continuing Discontinued Total Continuing  Duscontinued Total
us§m ussm ussm ussm ussm Us$m
Profit before income tax before exceptional items 171 215 386 193 221 414
Exceptional charges (136) - {136} (310) - (310)
Profit before income tax 35 215 250 (117 221 104
Income tax charge/(credit) at UK statutory tax rate 24% 8 52 60 (30) 57 27
(2011/12 - 26%)
Effect of overseas tax rates (13) (19 (32) (13) (21} (34)
Effect of accounting for joint ventures and associates (2} - (2) - - -
Effect of withholding tax and intra-Group dwidends 18 - 18 27 - 27
Net effect of income not taxable (24) 2 (22) {39) {3) {42)
Effect of changes in unrecognised deferred tax assets 50 (4) 46 129 (3) 126
Adjustments relating to prior years 4 - 4 (25) m (26)
Total income tax charge 41 3 72 49 29 78
Income tax credit on exceptronal items (20} - (20) (10) - (10)
Pre-exceptional income tax charge 61 n 92 59 29 88
Pre-exceptional effective tax rate on profit 357% 23 8% 306% 21 3%
Effective tax rate on profit 117 1% 28 8% (41 9)% 750%

For the analysis of the Group’s deferred tax assets and babilities at the reporting date, including factors affecting the future tax rates, see

note 25

Annual report 2012/13

a3



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2013

9 Discontinued operations
Accounting policy detailed innote 2 11 and 2 12 »
Year ended 31 March 2013

1} Monaco &Islands
At a general meeting on 9 January 2013, shareholders of the Group approved the sale of the Monaco & Islands operating segment to Batelco
international Group Holding Limited (Batelco) The significant aspects of this transaction are described below

— We entered into an agreement to sell the Islands sub-group, (Including the Group's interests in operations in the Maldives, the Channel
Islands and Isle of Man, South Atlantic, Diego Garcia and the Seychelles), for US$580 million on a cash and debt-free basis The sale of the
Islands sub-group, with the exception of the Seychelles for which regulatory approval has not yet been obtained, was completed post-year
end on 3 April 2013 {note 38),

— We also agreed to sell a 25% interest in Compagnie Monegasque de Communication SAM (CMC), the holding company of the Group’s
interests in Monaco Telecom, for US$100 million The sale was completed on 3 April 2013,

— As part of the transaction we have an option to sell the remaining 75% of CMC shares to Batelco for US$345 million subject to regulatory
approval from the Princtpality of Monaco, and

— On 3 April 2013, we 1ssued Batelco with a put option over the 25% of CMC shares (the CMC put option) The CMC put option enables
Batelco to require the Group to repurchase the 25% CMC shareholding for US$100 miflion in the event that the regulatory approval from
the Princpality of Monaco 1s not granted within 12 months of 3 April 2013 Batelco can exeraise this put option between 18 and 19 months
from 3 April 2013

The approval required from the Principality of Monaco means that Monaco does not meet the definition of a disposal group held for sale and
does not meet the critera to be classified as a discontinued operation as at 31 March 2013 The results of Monaco Telecom are now disclosed
separately in their own operating segment

The Islands sub-group has been classified as a disposal group held for sale and also as a discontinued operation as at 31 March 2013, as 1t
represents a separate major geographical area of operations The comparative consolidated income statement and cash flow statement have
been restated The results of the Islands sub-group were previcusly recorded i the Monaco & Islands operating segment

u) Macau

At a general meeting on 28 February 2013, shareholders of the Group approved the sale of the Macau operating segment for US$750 miflion
to CITIC Telecom International Holdings Limited This saleis expected to take place following receipt of the necessary legal and regulatory
approvals

The Macau operating segment has been classtfied as a disposal group held for sale and also as a discontinued operationas at 31 March 2013, as
it represents a separate major geographical area of operations The comparative consolidated Income statement and cash flow statement have
beenrestated The results of Macau were previously recorded in the Macau operating segment

The results of all discontinued operations are shown below

Total

Islands discontinued

sub-group Macau  operations

Year ended 31 March 2013 ussm UsSm Ussm

Revenue 321 624 945
Expenses (243) (479) (722)

Profit before tax 78 145 223
Tax {(14) a7 (31)

Profit after tax 64 128 192

Gain/(loss) recognised on the remeasurement of the assets less costs to sell - - -

Profit for the year 64 128 192
Disposat costs (8)

184
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Total

Istands discontinued
sub-group Macay operations
Year ended 31 March 2012 Ustm Ussm US$m
Revenue 319 524 843
Expenses (231) (391) (622)
Profit before tax 88 133 21
Tax (13) (18) (29)
Profit for the year 75 117 192
The financial posttion of the Islands sub-group and of Macau as at 31 March 2013 were as follows
Disposal
Islands groups held
sub-group Macau for sale
As at 31 March 2013 USSm ussm US$m
Assets
Intangible assets 64 1 65
Property, plant and equipment 259 113 372
Investrments I joint ventures and associates 5 - 5
Deferred tax assets 1 1 2
Retirement beneht assets 1 - 1
Trade and other recevables 57 47 104
Inventories 8 14 22
Cash and cash equivalents 57 88 145
Assets held for sale 452 264 716
Liabihties
Trade and other payables 80 94 174
Borrowings 2 - 2
Provistons 9 1 10
Current tax habilities 12 22 34
Deferred tax hiabilities 4 - 4
Retirement benefit obligations - 11 11
Liabilities held for sale 107 128 235
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10 Earmings per share
Basic earnings per ordinary share 1s based on the profit/{loss) for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding

2012/13 2011112

usSm US$m
Profit/{loss) for the financial year attributable to equity shareholders of the Parent Company 19 77)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue (miflions) 2,494 2,506
Dilutive effect of share options (rilhons) - -
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue used to 2,494 2,506
calculate diluted earnings per share {millions)
Basic earnings/{loss) per share (cents per share) 08 31N
Diuted earmngs/(loss) per share {cents per share) 08 (31
Basic loss per share (cents per share) for continuing operations (34) (78)
Diluted loss per share (cents per share) for continuing operations (3 4) (7 8)
Basic earnings per share (cents per share) for discontinued operations 42 47
Diluted earnings per share (cents per share} for discontinued operations 42 47
11 Dividends declared and paid

2012/13 2011712

ussm Us$m
Final dividend in respect of the prior year 133 136
Interim dividend in respect of the current year 33 66
Total dividend paid 166 202

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group declared and paid a final dvidend of US5 33 cents per share in respect of the year ended
31 March 2012 {2011/12 — US5 33 cents per share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2011) The Group dectared and paid aninterim
dividend of US1 33 cents per share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2013 {2011/12 - US2 67 cents per share in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2012)

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2013, the Directors have proposed a final dividend of US2 67 cents per share (US$6 7 million)
(2011712 - USS 33 cents per share), for approval by shareholders at the AGM to be held on 25 July 2013 These financial statements do not
reflect the propased dividend, which will be accounted for in shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of retained earmings in the year ended
31 March 2014

The Cable & Wireless Communications Share Ownership Trust (the Trust) waived its nght to dividends on the shares held in the Trust, with the
exception of those shares held for Directors under the deferred annual bonus plan
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12 Impairment review

Accounting policy detalledinnote 27 »

Goodwill

A review of the carrying value of goodwill has been performed as at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 In performing this review, the
recoverable amount has been determined by reference to the higher of the fair value less casts to sell and the value in use of related businesses
The key assumptions used by the Group in the calculation of value in use for its goodwill batances are the discount rate, revenue growth,
operating cost margin and the level of capital expenditure required to maintatn the network at its current level

The Group’s significant goodwilt balances are discussed below

Carrying value at

Continuing operations Reporting 31March 2013 Impalrment
Year ended 31 March 2013 seqgment UsSm Growthrate Pre-tax discount rate required
Monaco Telecom group’ Monaco 246 Between 0% and 2 5% Between 8 0%and 23 0% -
The Bahamas Telecommunications Company’  Carnbbean 63 0% 93% -
Carrying value at
Centinuing operations Reporting 31 March 2012 Pre-tax  impawrment
Year ended 31 March 2012 segment ussm Growth rate discount rate required
Monaco Telecom group' Monaco 205 Between(%and 2 5% Between 9 0% and 24 0% -
The Bahamas Telecommunications Company®  Caribbean 63 0% 94% -
Afinis® Monaco - 0% 171% US$9m

1 Monaco Telecom group
Three relevant cash-generating units (CGUs) were identified for the purpose of assessing the carrying value of Monaco Telecom (dormestic including the cable television business
international business and other services)

2 The Bahamas Telecommunications Company — BTC
One relevant CGU has been identified for the purpose of assessing the carrying value of the BTC business

3 Afinis
The Group s interests in Afinis were disposed during 2012/13 One relevant CGL was identified for the purpose of assessing the carrying value of the business At 31 March 2012
the goodwill was fully impaired resulting in a charge of US$9 milion This was due to a decrease in the value in use triggered by a change in the strategic direction of the business

The value in use was determined for each CGU by discounting management forecasts of future cash flows (based on the approved five year
business plan extrapolated at long-term growth rates) at pre-tax discount rates dependent on the risk-adjusted cost of capital of the different
parts of the business Management forecasts take account of the historical trading expertence of the relevant business

Sensitivity

The value in use s sensitive to a number of Input assumpticns, I particular relating to net cash flow and discount rate While the Group does not
consider these scenarios to be reasonably possible, the value in use of the various CGUs In aggregate weuld not support the carrying value of
the goodwill f

— Monaco Telecom group - net cash flows decreased by more than US$22 million per year or the discount rate increased by more than 8%
above the pre-tax discount rate

— The Bahamas Telecommunications Company — net cash flows decreased by more than U5$31 mullion per year or the discount rate increased
by more than 9% above the pre-tax discount rate

Property, plant and equipment and other intangibles

Following a difficult year of trading and in the midst of challenging economic conditions, the Directors considered the performance of a number of
our smaller island markets in the Eastern Caribbean region and the impact on the carrying value of property, pfant and equipment As a result of
the review an mpairment charge of US$86 millon has been recorded across the islands noted below Incduded within the charge of US$86 million
was a further charge in respect of the Group's business in Turks & Caicos as the performance of this business did not improve as anticipated

The recoverable amount was assessed based upen value In use which was determined by discounting future cash flows (based on the approved
five year business plan at a pre-tax discount rate) The calculation is sensitive to changes in the discount rate, terminal growth rate and
underiying trading
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12 Impairment review continued

Continuing operations CGUs Pre-tax Impairment 2012/13
Year ended 31 March 2013 Reporting segment identsfied discount rate ussm

Anguilla Caribbean One 10 6%
Land and buildings 4
Plant ond equipment 8
12

Brittsh Virgin Islands Carbbean One 93%
Plant and equipment 10
10

Dominica Caribbean One 14 4%
Plont and equipment 7
7

Montserrat Canbbean One 15 6%
Land ond buildings 1
Plont and equipment 2
3

St Lucia Caribbean One 14 4%
Plant and equipment 22
22

St Vincent Caribbean Cne 14 9%
Plant and equipment 15
15

Turks 8 Caicos Caribbean One 106%
Land and bulldings 5
Plant and equipment 12
17
Total 86

There were a number of nsks for our Jamaica business during 2011/12, ncluding the need for change in the regulatory environment and the
importance of business improvement strategies such as our Jamarca ‘win back’ activity Asat 31 March 2012, progress in these areas had not been
as anticipated In light of this, a review of the carrying value of fixed assets was conducted and animpairment charge of US$184 million recorded

Business performance tn Turks & Calcos was below expectations concrding with a period of economic downturn in the Islands Having
constdered the carrying value of plant and equipment an imparrment charge of US$12 mion was recorded as at 31 March 2012

At 31 March 2012, in addition to the Afinis goodwill impairment disclosed above, other intangible assets of US$2 million and plant and

equipment of US$7 mithon were unpaired

Continuing operations Gl Pre-tax Impairment 2011/12
Year ended 31 March 2012 Reporting segment identified discount rate usim

Cable & Wireless Jamaica Canbbean One 110%
Lond and burldings 32
Plont and equipment 151
Intangible assets 1
184

Turks & Caicos Canbbean One 114%
Plant and equipment 12
12

Afinis Monaco One 171%
Plant and equipment 7
intang:ble assets 2
9
Total 205
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Other

There were no other events or changes in circumstances during the year to indicate that the carrying value of property, plant and equipment
and other intangible assets had been impaired

13 Intangible assets

Accounting policy detalled innote 25 »

Licences and Customer
operatlng centracts and

Goodwill Software  agreements relationships Other Total
ussm ussm us$m us§m us$m Us$m

Cost
At 1 April 2011 218 187 181 51 72 709
Business combinations 107 - - 31 1 139
Additions - 49 1 - 3 53
Transfer between categonies - 1 m - - -
Disposals - (1} - (3} (3} (7)
Exchange differences 7 4 (8) (8) (6) (35)
At 31 March 2012 308 240 173 YAl 67 859
Additions 47 1 - - 7 65
Transfer from tangible assets - 27 - - - 27
Transfer between categones - (6} m n 8 -
Disposals (18) (1) 3 (6} (2} (30
Exchange differences (7 (5) (4} - (2) (18)
Transfer to assets held for sale 21) (29) (5) (33) an (105)
At 31 March 2013 309 237 160 3 61 798
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 Apnl 2011 12 137 68 10 49 276
Charge for the year' - 32 11 6 9 S8
Impairment 9 1 1 - 1 12
Drsposals - 1 - (3) (3) )]
Transfer between categores - 2 (2} - - -
Exchange differences (2) - (3) 2) m (8)
At 31 March 2012 19 1M 75 11 55 331
Charge for the year' - 36 10 10 7 63
Disposals (18) m (3 (6) (2) (30}
Transfer between categones - 5 (1 4 (8) -
Exchange differences (4D 4 2) {1n (3) 1)
Transfer to assets held for sale - (25) @ (1) - (40)
At 31 March 2013 - 182 75 7 49 313
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 309 55 85 24 12 485
At 31 March 2012 289 69 a8 60 12 528

1 The charge for the year includes US$9 millen (2011712 - US$9 milhon} in relation to discontinued operations
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13 Intangible assets continued
Goodwill balances are allocated to the following cash-generating units

Dhiveh:
Raajeyge
Monaco Gulhun PLC
a1C! Telecom? Ahnis’  (Dhiraagu)? Total
ussm ussm us$m Ussm usém
At 1 April 2011 - 172 9 25 206
Business combinations (note 31} 63 44 - - 107
Exchange differences - (1) - (4} a5
Impairment - - (2 - (9)
At 31 March 2012 63 205 - 21 289
Business combinations (note 31) - 47 - - 47
Exchange dhfferences - (6} - - (6)
Transfer to assets held for sale - - - (21) (21)
At 31 March 2013 63 246 - - 309
1 Reporting segment Canbbean
2 Reporting segment Monaco
3 Reporting segment Dhscontinued cperations
14 Property, plant and equipment
Accounting policy detarledinnote2 4 »
2012/13 2011112
Assets Assets
Land and Plant and under Land and Plant and under
buildings  equipment construction Total buitdings equipment  construction Total
UssSm uss$m us$m UsSm Ussm ussm USs$m usgm
Cost
At 1 April 501 4,471 320 5,292 416 4,162 254 4,832
Business combinations - - - - 40 142 70 252
Additions 1 43 332 376 - 1 355 356
Movements in asset retirement obligations 2 1 - 3 (2) 1 - Q0
Disposals 3 (44) o (48) - (65) - (65)
Transfers tointangible assets - (4) (23} 27) - - - -
Transfers between categories 29 375 (404) - 52 298 (350) -
Exchange differences 7 (73) 4)) 91} (5) (68) 9 (82)
Transfers to assets held for sale (86) (917) (35 (1,038) - - - -
At 31 March 427 3,852 188 4,467 501 4,471 320 5,292
Depreciation
At 1 April 234 3,272 - 3,506 180 2,895 - 3,075
Charge for the year’ 18 278 - 296 16 314 - 330
Impairment 10 76 - 86 32 170 - 202
Disposals - {41) - (41} - (60) - (60)
Transfers between categories - - - - 8 (8) - -
Exchange differences {13) (68) - (81} {2) (39) - 41)
Transfers to assets held for sale {46) (620) - (666) - - - -
At 31 March 203 2,897 - 3,100 234 3.272 - 3,506
Net book value at 31 March 224 955 188 1,367 267 1,199 320 1.786

1 Includes exceptional accelerated depreciation of US$nil (2011712 - US$30mitlion) Refer to note 6b for further nformation The charge includes 95%75 millon retating to
discontinued operations (2011712 - Us$72 milhon) Refer to note 9 for more sinformation
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The Group held no assets under finance leases at 31 March 2013 or 31 March 2012

Additions during the year incfude interest and own work capitalised during the construction of certamn assets of US$2 million (2011712 -
US$5 milhon) and U5$38 million (2011712 ~ U5$48 million) respectively Of these amounts US$nil (2011712 — US$nil) and US$6 million

(2011712 - US$6 million) respectively, relate to discontinued operations (note 9)

15 Investments in joint ventures and associates

Accounting policy detailed in note 2 1 »

2012/13 2011712
UsSSm Ussm
Gross carrying amount
At 1 April
- Cost 78 78
- Share of post-acquisition reserves 223 224
301 302
Share of profit after tax 10 26
Dividends paid to Group companies {6) (€]
Additions - 5
Disposals - (22)
Loan from Group companies - (4
Other movements 1 (2)
Transfers to assets held for sale (5) -
At 31 March 301 301
impairment allowance
At 1 April {48) (59)
Disposals - 1
At 31 March (48) (48)
Net carrying amount at 31 March 253 253
The Group’s total interest in 1ts joint ventures and associates is presented below
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
usSm ussm
Non-current assets 423 309
Current assets 103 120
Current habtlities (152) (79)
Non-current habilities (121) 97
Share of net assets 253 253
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15 Investments in joint ventures and associates continued

2092/13 2011/12

Ussm US$m
Revenue 347 370
Operating costs (326) (338)
Operating profit 21 32
Net financing costs (5) 3
Share of profit before tax 16 29
Income tax (6) (3)
Dwidends paid to Group companies (6) 4
Share of retained profit 4 22

There are no significant restrictions on joint ventures’ and associates’ ability to transfer funds to the Group The joint ventures and associates
have no significant contingent habilities to which the Group 1s exposed, nor has the Group any significant contingent liabilities i relation to its
interests in joint ventures and associates The Group's joint ventures and associates have not discontinued any operations during the year ended
31 March 2013 (2011/12 — none}

16 Availlable-for-sale financial assets

Accounting policy detailed nnote 2 6 »

2012/13 2011/12

Ussm Ussm

At 1 April 58 3

Business combinations - 20

Fair value gain recorded in other comprehensive income 4 5
Exchange differences ) m

At 31 March 58 55

Available-for-sale financial assets consist of UK and Bahamtan Government bonds These assets were measured at fair value based on
observable market data The maximum exposure to credit risk for available-for-sale financial assets is equal to their carrying value
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17 Trade and other receivables

Accounting policy detailed in note 2 6 »

31 March 3 March

2013 2012

ussm ussm
Gross trade receivables 320 387
Impairment allowance (78) ©1)
Net trade receivables 242 296
Other receivables 67 66
Prepayments and accrued income 156 236
Taxation and social secunity recevables 17 2
Amounts recesvable from joint ventures and associates 2 2
Trade and other receivables - current 484 602
Other receivables 46 34
Prepayments and accrued income 20 21
Other receivables — non-current 66 55
Total trade and other recewables 550 657

The maximum exposure to crecht risk for receivables s equal to their carrying valure There 1s no material difference between the carrying value
and fair value of trade and other receivables presented

Concentrations of credit nsks with respect to trade receivables are small as the Group customer base 1s large and unrelated Recervables
predominantly relate to retail customers, governments and corporate entities as well as other telecommunications operators

Credit nisk procedures vary depending on the size or type of customer These procedures include such activities as credit checks, payment
history analysis and credit approval limits Based on these procedures, management assessed the credit quality of those receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired as low nisk There have been no significant changes to the composition of receivables counterparties within the
Group that indicate this would change in the future During the periods presented there was a continued economic weakness 1n many of the
markets n which the Group operated This would indicate an increased credit risk on recelvables that are neither past due nor impaired
However, management assessed this risk and, after providing valuation allowance where necessary, continued to support the assessment of
credit quality as low risk

An ageing analysis of the current ‘trade recevables’ and current ‘other recevables’ that are not imparred is as follows (excludes prepayments
and accrued income, taxation and social security and amounts receivable fram joint ventures and associates)

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

ussm ussm
Not yet due 42 145
Overdue 30 days or less 118 100
Overdue 31 to 60 days 43 40
Overdue 61 to 90 days 21 32
Overdue 91 days to 180 days 28 27
Overdue 181 days or more 57 18
Current trade recevables’ and current ‘other receivables’ 309 362

Based on historic default rates, the Group belteves that no imparrment allowance Is necessary in respect of trade and other receivables not past
due or past due by up to 30 days Due to the nature of the telecommunications industry, balances refating to interconnection with other
carners often have lengthy settlement periods Generally, Interconnection agreements with major carriers result in both recervables and
payables balances with the same counterparty Industry practice is that receivable and payable amounts relating to interconnection revenue
and costs for a defined period are agreed between counterparties and settled on a net basis
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17 Trade and other receivables continued
An analysis of movements in the trade receivables imparment allowance during the year is as follows

2012/13 2011712
usSm ussm
At 1 April 91 67
Bad debts wnitten off (34) {(32)
Increase in allowance 29 39
Business combmnations - 20
Exchange differences - (3)
Transfers to assets held for sale (8) -
At 31 March 78 91

th a small number of the Group’s operations it 1s customary and practice to collect security deposits from customers as collateral These are
recorded as lizbilities within other payables ‘

18 Inventories |
Accounting policy detaitled Innote 2 8 »

Inventories represent equipment, cable capacity, consumables and accessones held for sale

Inventories of US$31 milhon {31 March 2012 — US$103 million) are presented net, after recording an allowance of US$9 million (31 March
2012 - US$14 milhon) made against slow moving or obsolete tems

The cost of equipment, cable capacity, consumables and accessories held for sale that were expensed within operating costs n 2012/13 was
US$126 mullion (2011/12 — US$119 million) Cable capacity previously held within inventory was capitalised during the year following a
reassessment of how the Group intends to utilise that capacity in future periods

Inventories of the Group are not pledged as security or collateral against any of the Group's borrowings

19 Cash and cash equivalents

Accounungpolicy detailled innote2 6 »

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

Ussm US$m

Cash at bank and in hand 130 188
Short-term bank deposits 22 124
Cash and cash equivalents 152 312

Short-term bank deposits consist primarnily of money market deposits, which can be readly converted to cash at short notice The effective
interest rate on short-term bank deposits at 31 March 2013 was 2 41% (31 March 2012 - 1 39%) At 31 March 2013, these deposits had an
average maturity of 25 days (31 March 2012 - nine days)

The maximum exposure to credit risk for cash and cash equwalents is equal to the carrying value of those financial nstruments
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20 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Accounting policy detailled innote 2 6 »

2012113 2011712
Derivative Dervative
cww financilal cww financial
shares Instruments Total shares  instruments Total
ussm ussm ussm us§m ussm us$m
At 1 April 10 8 18 20 13 33
Delivery of shares to employees - - - (M - m
Shares sold an - an (2) - (2)
Fair value movement 1 - 1 )] - 7
Movement in derivative financial assets - (8) (8) - {5) (S)
At 31 March - - - 10 8 18
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — current - - - 10 8 18

On demerger, shares in the Cable & Wireless Communications Share Ownership Trust (the Trust) were converted from 43 milion Cable and
Wireless plc shares to 42 million Cable & Wireless Commumications Plc shares and 43 million Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc shares The Cable
& Wireless Woridwide plc shares held by the Trust were reclassified at demerger as financial assets at far value through profit or loss as they
represent shares in an unrelated listed company All remairing shares were disposed during the year

Derivative financial instruments

At 31 March 2012, the Group had foreign exchange swap contracts to sell US$324 million in hedging future sterling obligations regarding
the coupon and redemption of the £200 millron bond which matured in August 2012 The Group did not apply hedge accounting to these
contracts and as such they were revalued to fair value through profit or foss At 31 March 2012, the farr value of these contracts was an
asset of US$8 milion

21 Trade and other payables

31 march 31 March

2013 2012

ussm US$m
Trade payables 160 190
Other tax and social security costs 21 21
Accruals 330 428
Ceferred income 39 88
Other payables 72 105
Trade and other payables - current 622 832
Accruals - 4
Deferred income 24 26
Other payables 3 !
Trade and other payables — non-current 27 N
Total trade and other payables 649 863

There 1s no matenal difference between the carrying value and farr value of trade and other payables presented For liquidity risk exposure
analysis purposes, the carrying amount of trade and other payables 1s the same as the contractual cash flows, with the contractual maturities of
these financial habilities all due in less than one year
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22 Borrowings

Accounting policydetalled innote2 6 »

31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Interest Carrying Interest Carrying
rate value Fair value rate value Far value
Type Secunty % ussm us$m % ussm ussm
2020US5$400 mithon secured bond  Fixed Share pledges 8750 391 4531 8750 390 425
over Group
assets
2019 £200 mullien bond Fixed Unsecured 8625 224 2551 8625 234 234"
2017 US$500 mihon secured bond ~ Fixed Share pledges 7750 493 533 7750 492 523*
over Group
assets
2016 US$600C million facility Floating  Unsecured 2550 360°% 3601 - - -
2012 £200 million bond Fixed Unsecured - - - 8750 317 3257
US dollar and currencies linked tothe  Fixedand  Unsecured 3929 296 296° 3898 269 2697
S doltar loans and facilities (various  floating
dates to 2038)
US dollar loan notes Floating Unsecured 8 060 37 372 - - -
Overdrafts Floating  Unsecured - 2 22 - 5 5?
Total borrowings 1,803 1,707
Borrowings ~ current 86 460
Borrowings ~ non-current 1717 1,247

1 This value was determined by reference to market values obtained from third parties
2 The carrying amount approximates to farr value

3 On19 October 2011 the Group entered into five-year borrowing arrangements for US$600 million of revotving credit facilibes with amatunity date of October 2016 As at
31 March 2013, the Group had U5$240 million undrawn facilities available (31 March 2012 - US$600 millien undrawn) These facilities meur commitment fees at market rates

prevailing when the facilitres were arranged
The agreements for the facilities entered into during the year contain financial and other covenants which are standard to these types of
arrangements

For liquidity nisk exposure analysis purposes, the following are the contractual matunties of loans {including the expected interest payable
rates prevalling at the reporting date)

at

31 March 31 March

2013 2012
ussm Us$m
Borrowings

Due in less than one year 199 593
Due inmore than one year but not more than two years 196 140
Due in more than two years but not more than five years 1,254 872
Due in more than five years 749 787
2,398 2,392

Less future finance charges cnloans (595) (685)
Total borrowings 1,803 1,707

it is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis above could occur significantly earlier or at sigrificantly different
amounts

Interest was payable on borrowings falling due after more than five years at rates of between O 0% and 8 8% (2011/12 -~ 0 0% and 8 B%
respectively)
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Reconciliation of net funds

Funds are defined as cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits Debt is defined as bonds, loans and overdrafts

Analysis of changes in net funds

Transferred At
At 1 April Bond Exchange Dsscontnued to held for 31 Mzrch
2012 Cashflow amortisation Transfers  differences operations sale 2013
us$m ussm us$m ussm Usim ussm ussm UsSm
Cash at bank and in hand 188 (5) - - - (8) (45) 130
Short-term deposits 124 (8} - - (3) 9 (100) 22
Total funds 312 (13) - - {3) 1 (145) 152
Debt due within one year (460) 399 (2} (43) 9 g 2 (86)
Debt due after more than cne year (1,247} (521) (2} 43 10 - - (1.717)
Total debt Q707N (122 {4) - 19 9 2 (1,803)
Total net (debt)/funds (1,395) {135) (4) - 16 10 (143) (1,651)
23 Financral iabilities at fair value
Accounting policy detailed innote 2 6 »
At 31 March 2013 At 31 March 2012
Current Total Current Total
UsSm Ussm ussm us$m
Monaco Telecom put option — | 258 258 250 250
Interest rate swap - 1l - - 1 1
Total financial labelities at fair value 258 258 251 251

t Monaco Telecom put option

A put option is held by the non-controlling sharehalder of Monaco Telecom, the Principality of Monaco (the Principality) This put optionis
measured at fair value and is calculated using discounted cash flow techniques, using inputs that are not based on publicly abservable market
data The liability for the put option represents 45% of the market value of Monaco Telecom The key assumptions used in valuing the put
option liability are the Monaco Telecom five year operating plan (in particular revenue performance) and discount rates of between 8% and
23% for the distinct operating businesses with Monaco Telecom (2011/12 — 9% and 24%) A movement in the discount rate of 1% would result
in an increase or decrease m the liability of US$28 million (2011/12 — US$25 miflion) In deterrmining the fair value of the liability, consideration
has been given to the terms of the proposed disposal to Batelco Group as cuthned in note 9

Ajthough the Group considers there to be only aremote likelihood of the Manaco Telecom put eption being exercised, IAS 32 Financial
Instruments Presentationrequires the present value of the amount payable to be recognised as a liability regardless of the probability of
exercise, as this 1s not within the Group's control As this put option was issued as part of a business combination, accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 3 Busmess Combinations (2004), any change in remeasuring the dervative to fair value is recorded as an adjustment to goodwill

(note 31)
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23 Financal habilities at fair value continued
A reconciliation of the movements in the value of the Monaco Telecom put option 15 as follows

2012713 2011/12
ussm Ustm
At 1 April 250 216
Decrease as a result of dividends paid to the Principaity {33) (17)
Changes in fair value recognised as an adjustment to goodwll 47 44
Increase in fair value of put option due to discount unwinding recogrised as a finance expense - 19
Foreign exchange movements recogrised in the foreign currency reserve in equity (6) 12)
At 31 March 258 250

n Interest rate swap

At acquisttion on 6 April 2011, the Bahamas Telecommunications Company held an interest rate swap to economically hedge the interest rate
risks associated with a loan from a consortium of banks led by Citibank N A The effect of the swap is to convert the floating rate loan at US
three months LIBOR plus 1 35% into a fixed rate loan at 4 59% per annum

As at 31 March 2012, the interest rate swap had a negative fair value of US$1 milhion The hedge did not quakfy for hedge accounting,
therefore the decrease in far value of US$1 million was recognised in the conschdated income statement The mterest rate swap matured on
15 February 2013 The increase in fair value of US$1 milhon 1s recogrised in the consolidated income statement

24 Financral instruments at farr value
The Lable below analyses financial nstruments carned at fair value by valuation method The different levels are defined as follows

Level 1 — Fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habtlities

Level 2 ~ Fair values measured using inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability either
directly (from prices) or indwectly (derived from prices)

Leve! 3 — Fair values measured using inputs for the asset or hability that are not based onobservable market data

At 31 March 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Note Ussm ussm ussSm ussm
Financial assets measured at far value
UK and Bahamian Government bonds 16 58 - - 58
Total financial assets at fair value 58 - - 58
Financial habiities measured at fair value
Monaco Telecom put option 23 - - 258 258
Total finanaal hablities at fawr value - - 258 258

At 31 March 2012

Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Note Ustm uUS$m ussm us$m
Financial assets measured at far value
UK and Baharmian Government bonds 16 55 - - 55
Cable & Wireless Worldwide pic shares at far value through profit or loss 20 10 - - 10
Derivative Instruments 20 - 8 - 8
Total financial assets at fair value 65 8 - 73
Financial kabilities measured at farr value
Interest rate swap 23 - 1 - 1
Put option relating to Monaco Telecom 23 - - 250 250
Total financial labilities at fair value - 1 250 251
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25 Deferred tax

Accounting policy detailedmnote 2 14 »

The movemnents in deferred tax assets and habilities during the year are as follows

Capital
allowances on financial
non-current position
assets Tax losses Pensions Other offset Total
ussm uss$m ussm Uss$m US$m us$m
Deferred tax assets 19 43 3 15 (76) 4
Deferred tax habilities {78} - (13) (23) 76 (38}
At 1 April 2011 (59) 43 {10) 8 - (34)
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss' 65 41) {2) (14) - 8
Tax charged to other cormprehensive ncome - - 2 - - 2
Exchange differences 1 2) 1 {n - n
At 31 March 2012 7 - 9 (23) - (25)
Deferred tax assets 33 - 4 2 (34) 5
Deferred tax habilities (26) - (13 (25) 34 (30}
At 1 April 2012 7 - (9 (23) - (25)
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss’ (33) 21 2 35 - 25
Transfers to assets held for sale 5 {1 (1 (M - 2
Exchange differences (1) 1) 2 (4} - m
At 31 March 2013 (22) 19 {6) 10 - 1
Deferred tax assets 15 19 3 10 a7 30
Deferred tax hiabihties (37) - {9) - 17 (29)
At 31 March 2013 (22) 19 (6) 10 - 1
1 Including US$1 million credit in relation to discontinued operattons (2011/12 - US$ail)
Deferred tax assets have not been recogrised in respect of the following temporary differences
Capial
allowances
avallable on
non-current
assets Tax losses Pensions Other Total
ussm usim ussm ussm us$m
At 31 March 2013 184 5,983 175 46 6,388
At 31 March 2012 207 6,169 1M 83 6,630
Tax losses (recogmised and unrecognised) exprre as follows
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
us$m uUs$m
Within 1 year - -
Within 3 years 7 -
Within 5 years 7 -
Within 10 years 41 38
After more than 10 years - -
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25 Peferred tax continued
Other tax losses are not subject to expiry

The US$5,983 million {31 March 2012 — LUS$6,169 million) tax losses include UK capital losses of US$5,006 million (31 March 2012 —
US$5,248 million)

Deferred tax 1s not provided on unremitted earnings of subsidiaries and joint ventures and associates where the Group controls the timing of
rermittance and it1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in substdianes, branches and joint ventures and associates for which deferred tax liabiities have not
been recognised 1s US$198 million (31 March 2012 ~ US$296 milion) These temporary differences relate to unremitted earnings

The Budget on 20 March 2013 announced a further reduction to the UK corporation tax rate to 20% from 1 Aprd 2015 This change had not

been substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and therefore 1s not recognised in these financial statemments

26 Provisions

Accounting policy detailed innote 2 15 »

Network
and asset
Redundancy  retirement Legaland
Property costs  obligations other Tetal
usém ussm ussm ussm Ussm
At 1 April 2012 S 7 35 51 98
Additional provisions - 23 3 5 61
Amounts used (3} (24} - (1) (28)
Unused amounts released - 4))] (2) (2) (5)
Effect of discounting - - 1 2 3
Exchange differences - 1 m - @)
Transfers to assets held for sale - - (8} (2) (10
At 31 March 2013 2 34 28 53 117
Provisions - current 2 34 S 44 85
Provisions — non-current - - 23 9 32
Netwaork
and asset
Redundancy retirement Legal and
Property costs obligations other Total
ustm uUs$m ussm US$m ussm
At 1 April 2011 7 6 28 53 924
Business combinations - - 10 - 10
Additional provisions - 56 1 14 7
Amounts used 2) (55} (3) a2 (72)
Unused amounts released - - 1 (3 {4)
Effect of discounting - - 2 - 2
Exchange differences - - 2 (1) (3)
At 31 March 2012 5 7 35 51 98
Provisions — current 5 7 5 44 61
Provisions — non-current - - 30 7 37

The net expense recognised through profit or loss fram movements in provisions relating to discontinued operations at 31 March 2013 was

USEnl (31 March 2012 - net release of US$2 million}
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Property

Provision has been made for dilapidation costs and for the lower of the best estimate of the unavoidable lease payments or cost of exit m
respect of vacant properties Unavordable lease payments represent the difference between the rentals due and any income expected to be
denved from the vacant properties being sublet The provision 1s expected to be used over the shorter of the period to exit and the lease
contract hfe

Redundancy
Provision has been made for the total employee related costs of redundancies announced prior to the reporting date Amounts provided for and
spent during the penods presented pnmarily relate to regional transformation activities The provision is expected to be used within one year

Network and asset retirement obhgations
Provision has been made for the best estimate of the unavoidable costs associated with redundant leased network capacity The proviston is
expected to be used over the shorter of the period to exit and the lease contract kfe

Provision has also been made for the best estimate of the asset retirement obligaticn associated wrth office sites, technical sites, mobile cell
sites, dornestic and sub-sea cabling Ths provision 1s expected to be used at the end of the life of the related asset on which the obligation anises

Legal and other
Legal and other provisions include amounts relating to specific legal claims against the Group together with amounts in respect of certain
employee benefits and sales taxes Legal proceedings are further discussed in note 34

27 Retirement benefits obligations
Accounting policy detailedinnote 2 13 »

The Group operates penston schemes for its current and former UK and overseas employees These schemes include both defined benefit
schemes, where retirement benefits are based on employees’ remuneration and length of service, and defined contribution schemnes, where
retrement benefits reflect the accumulated value of agreed contributions paid by, and in respect of, employees Contributions to the defined
benefit schemes are made in accordance with the recommendations of ndependent actuaries who value the schemes

Defined benefit schemes

Cable & Wireless Communications operates the Cable & Wireless Superannuation Fund (CWSF) This plan provides defined benefit and defined
contributton arrangements for current and former employees of the Group The CWSF has been dosed to new defined benefit members snce
1998

Additionally, the Group operates unfunded defined benefit arrangements in the UK These primanly relate to pension provisions for former
Directors and ather senior employees in respect of their earnings in excess of the previous Inland Revenue salary cap The Group operates other
defined benefit pension schemes in Macau, Jamaica, Barbados and Guernsey

Funding valuation — Cable & Wireless Superannuation Fund
The latest trienmal actuarial valuation of the CWSF was carned out by independent actuaries Towers Watson Limited as at 31 March 2010

The March 2010 actuaria! valuation showed that based on long-term financial assumptions the contribution rate required to meet the future
benefit accrual was 38 4% of pensionable earnings {33 4% employer's and 5 0% employee’s) This contribution rate will be reviewed when the
next trienmial valuation is carnied out, at 31 March 2013 The terms of the CWSF Trust Deed also allow the Trustee or the Company to call for a
valuation at any time

Cable & Wirefess Communications paid a total contnbution of US$2 mitlion tn 2012713 (2011/12 — US$2 million), to the CWSF A deficit
recovery funding plan was also agreed with the Trustees during March 2011 as part of the March 2010 actuanial valuation with the aim that
the deficit would be ehminated by April 2016 The payments under this agreement will fall withun the following ranges July 2014 - £205
milhon to £30 4 mifhion (US$31 2 million to US$46 3 million), Juty 2015 - £211 million to £31 3 mithon {US$32 2 million to US$47 7 midlion),
and April 2016 — £21 9 million to £32 5 milhon (US$33 4 million to US$49 S mullion) These contnbutions are based on best estimated
investment returns and are subject to the outcome of the next full valuation due in March 2013

During 2008, the CWSF Trustee agreed an insurance buy-in of the UK pensioner liabilities with Prudential Insurance The buy-in involved the
purchase of a bulk annuity policy by the CWSF under which Prudential Insurance assumed responsibility for the benefits payable to the CWSF's
UK pensioners These pensioner liabilities and the matching annurty policy remain within the CWSF On 19 December 2011, a further 233
pensioners, those having commenced with pensions in payment since the oniginal annuity, were brought within the bulk annuity policy for anet
cost of £57 million (US$88 rillion), which was funded from gilts held by the CWSF
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27 Retirement benefits obligations continued

Contingent funding agreement

The Group 1s party to a contingent funding agreement with the CWSF Trustee, under which the Trustee can call for aletter of credit or cash
escrow Ih certain circumstances, such as the breach by the Group of certain financial covenants, the incurrence by the Group of secured debt
above an agreed level or the failure to maintain available commitments under the revolving credit facilities of at least US$150 miflion

Following the Group's issue of the 2020 bonds in January 2012 (note 22), and the consequential increase in the Group’s available secured
borrowings, letters of credit totalling £100 million (US$152 million) (2011712 — US$160 million) as of 31 March 2013 have been issued in
favour of the CWSF Trustee under the Contingent Funding Agreement The letters of credit wili remain in place pursuant to the terms of the
Contingent Funding Agreement (which may be until the deficit of the CWSF 1s fully funded)

IAS 19 Employee Benefits valuation ~ Cable & Wireless Superannuation Fund and other schemes

The IAS 19 valuations of the major defined benefit pension schemes and medical plans operated by the Group have beenupdated to 31 March
2013 by qualfiedindependent actuaries Lane, Clark & Peacock LLP prepared the valuation for the CWSF and the UK unfunded arrangements
Towers Watson Limited reviewed the IAS 19 valuations prepared for all remaining schemes

The main financial assumptions applied in the valuations and an analysis of schemes’ assets are as follows

31 March2013

31 March 2012

CWSF Other schemes CWSF Other schemes
Assets  Assumption Assets  Assumption Assets  Assumption Assets  Assumption
ussm % usém % ustm Us$m
RPI inflation assumption 33 47 32 43
CPlinflation assumption 23 - 22 -
Salary increases 3g 53 37 49
Pension increases 21-32 27 20-31 32
Discount rate ~ CWSF 42 - 49 -
Discount rate — CWSF uninsured liability 45 - 49 -
Discount rate — other schermnes - 80 - 72
Long-term expected rate of return on plan
assets
— Annuity policies 1,297 40 - - 1,225 49 - -
- Equities 320 79 32 85 323 78 98 79
- Bonds and gtlts 141 29 120 61 101 32 166 50
— Property 3 64 37 81 - - 40 76
— Cash and swaps 10 30 33 60 14 33 36 53
1,771 222 1,663 340

Assumptions used are best estimates from a range of possible actuarial assumptions, which may not necessarly be barne out in practice
The assumptions shown above for other schemes represent a weighted average of the assumptions used for the individual schemes

The assumptions regarding current mortality rates in retirement were set having regard to the actual experience of the CWSF's pensioners
and dependants over the three years ended 31 March 2010 In addition, allowance was made for future mortality improvements in line with
mediumn cohort projections of the 1992 mortality series tables published by the Institute and Faculty of Actuanies, subject to a mumimum
annual rate of improvement of 1 5% These are the mortality rates used for calculating the statement of finanaial position for the year ended
31 March 2013

The mortality rates used for the figure in the Income statement for the year ended 31 March 2013 are the same as those which were used for
calculating the statement of financial position for the year ended 31 March 2012

Based on these assumptions, the life expectancies of pensioners aged 60 are as follows

On On on

31 March 31 March 31 March

2013 2023 2033

(years) (years) {years)

Male pensioners and dependants 280 296 312
Female pensioners 267 282 297
Female dependants 326 342 358
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A one year increase in the ife expectancy assumptions would have increased the CWSF liabilities by approximately US$51 mullion as at

31 March 2013 The corresponding increase in the value of assets due to the change in the estimated value of the annuity policy would be
U5$39 millon A O 25% pa decrease in the discount rate used to value the scheme habilities would have increased the habilities by around
US$77 mullon The corresponding increase in the value of assets due to the change inthe estmated value of the annuity policy would be
US$43 milkon A O 25% pa change in the assumed rate of salary increases would have changed the liabiities by a negligible amount

Excluding the annuities, which are measured at the value of the obligation to which they relate, the overall expected rate of return for each
pension scheme 1s a weighted average of the expected asset return for each asset class The expected asset return for each asset class has
been set as a best estimate of the long-term return that will be achieved for the particular asset class in the country in question having regard
to investment yields on the measurement date

Using the projected unit method for the valuation of liabilities, the current service cost is expected to increase when expressed as a percentage
of pensionable payroll as the members of the scheme approach retirement

The assets and liabilities of the defined benefit pension schemes and post-retirement medical plans operated by the Group were as follows

31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Other Other

CWSF schemes Total CWSF schemes Total

us$m ussm ussm us$m Us$m Us$m

Total farr value of plan assets 1,771 222 1,993 1,663 340 2,003
Present value of funded obligations (1,872) (188) (2,060) {1,766} {306) (2072)
Excess of (habihties)/assets of funded obligations (101) 34 (67) (103} 34 (69)
Present value of unfunded abligations - (46) (46) - (45) (45)
impact of the mimmum funding requirement (30) - (30) (26} - (26)
Effect of asset ceting - (16) (16) - (9 9)

Exchange differences 1 1 2 - - -
Net deficit (130) (27) {157} (129) {20) (149)
Defined benefit pension plans in deficit (130) (55} (185) (129) {60 (189)

Defined benefit pension plans in surplus - 28 28 - 40 40
Net deficit (130) 27 (157) (129) (20) (149)

Included within these hiabilties 15 an amount of US$30 mullion (2011/12 - US$29 million) to cover the cost of former Directors’ pension
entitlements

The deficit recovery funding plan agreed with the Trustees of the CWSF during 2010/11 constitutes a minimal funding requirement An
adjustment to the deficit in the CWSF to account for the minimum funding requirement has been calculated n accordance with IFRIC 14
The hmuts on o Defined Benefit Asset, Mimmunm Funding Requirements and their Interaction The adjustment to the deficit, which 1s recorded
in other comprehensive Income, was US$30 millen as at 31 March 2013 (2011/12 - US$26 million)

When defined beneft funds have an IAS 19 surplus, they are recorded at the lower of that surplus and the future economic benefits avatlable in
the form of a cash refund or a reduction in future contributions Any adjustment to the surplus 1s recorded in other comprehensive Income The
effect of these adjustments, described as asset ceiling adjustments, were US$16 million as at 31 March 2013 (31 March 2012 — US$9 million)
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27 Retirement benefits obligations continued

The amounts recognised in the Income statement were as follows

2012/13 2011/12
Other Other

CWSF schemes Totat CWSF schemes Total

us$m us$m ussm us$m Us$m ussm
Current service cost @ (3) (5) (2} (8} (10)
Past service credit 10 - 10 4 - 4
Interest cost 83) {15) (98) (88) (20) (108)
Expected return on plan assets 86 14 100 92 22 114
Gains on curtaiiment - 2 2 - - -
Total net credit/(charge) 11 2) 9 6 {(6) -
Charge related te discontinued operations - {3) 3) - - -
Total net credit/(charge} 11 (5) 6 6 (6} -

The actual return on plan assets was a gamn of US$297 millon (2011/12 - gain of US$162 million)

The total amount recognised in other comprehensive incorme cumulatively to 31 March 2013 s aloss of US$705 milion (2011/12 - loss of

US$667 milhon)

In 2012/13, net actuarial losses amounting to US$27 milhion (2011/12 - losses of US$113 million) have been recognised in other
comprehensive Income A loss of US$7 million was recognised due to changes in the asset ceiling (2011712 — gain of US$7 million} Aloss of
US$4 rmlhion was recogrised in other comprehensive income in respect of mimmum funding requirements (2011/12 — gain of US$34 million)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit pension obligations are as follows

2012/13 2011712
Other Other

CWSF schemes Total CWSF schemes Total

USSm Ussm usSm ussm us$m US$m
At 1 April (1,766) (351) (2117) {1,619} (322) (1,941}
Current service cost (2) 7 (9) (2) ® (0)
Past service credit 10 - 10 4 - 4
Interest cost (83) (20) (103) (88) (200 (108)
Actuarial losses recognised in other comprehensive income (204) (23) 227) (148) (13) (161}
Employee contributions - (4) (4) - (5) (5)
Gains on curtallment - 2 2 - - -
Benefits paid 86 1 a7 84 13 97
Exchange differences 87 18 105 3 4 7
Transfers to assets held for sale - 140 140 - - -
At 31 March (1,872) (234) (2,106) (1,766) (35%) (2117)
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Changes in the faw value of defined benefit assets are as follows

2012/%3 2011712
Other Other

CWS5F schemes Total CWSF schemes Tatal

usSm ussm US$m ussm UsEm us$m

At Apni 1,663 340 2,003 1,598 328 1,926

Expected return 86 20 106 92 22 114

Actuarnal gains/{losses) recognised in other comprehensive income 188 12 200 58 (10} 48

Contributions by employer 2 10 12 2 12 14

Employee contributtons - 4 4 - 5 5
Benefits paid (86} {11) (97) (84) (13} (87)
Exchange differences {82) (23) 105) {3 (4) )]

Transfers to assets held for sale - {130) {130) - - -

At 31 March 1,771 222 1,993 1.663 340 2,003

Experience gains on plan assets and labities at the end of the penods presented were as follows

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Other Other Other

CWSF schemes CWSF schemes CWSF schemes

us$m usSm US$m US$m USs$m ussm

Plan assets 1,771 222 1,663 340 1,598 328
Defined benefit obhigations (1,872} (234) (1,766) (351} (1.619) (322)

Effect of mmimum funding requirement 30) - (26) - (57) -

Exchange differences 1 - - - 3 ~

(Defiait)/surplus excluding the effects of the asset ceiling (130) (12} (129) (11) 81) 6
Experience gains/(losses) on plan assets 188 8 58 10 27 (7}

Expenence (losses)/gans on plan liabihties - N {22) (4) (23) 5

31 March 2010

31 March 2009

Other Other
CWSF schemes CWSF schemes
ussm ussm us$m ussm
Plan assets 1,312 307 2407 403
Defined benefit obligations (1.477) 317 (2.453) (428)
Deficit excluding the effects of the asset ceiling (165) (10 (46) (25)
Experience gains/{losses) on plan assets 521 24 (946} (81)
Experience (losses)/gains on plan habilities 27 (4) 35 2
The best estimate of contributions to the defined benefit schemes for 2013/14 15
Other
CWSF* schemes Total
ussm Ussm UssSm
Employer contributions* 2 4 6
Employee contributions - 3 3

* Based on an employer contribution rate of 33 4% of pensionable earnings plus contributtons due under the agreed recovery plan and the estimated PPF levy payable inthe year

ended 31 March 2013
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28 Equity

Accounting policy detailledmnote2 9 »

Share capital
Number of
shares
Issued called-up and fully paid shares of US5 cents each (000} WSsm
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 2,665,612 133

The aggregate nonmmnal value of the shares allotted in the year was US$ml (2011712 - US$nul)

Included within the number of shares disclosed in the table above are treasury shares and shares held by The Cable & Wireless Communications
Share Qwnership Trust (the Trust)

No treasury shares of Cable & Wireless Communications Plc were cancelled dunng the periods presented

Share buy-back

On 21 July 2010, the Group’s shareholders approved a resolution at the AGM for the Group to purchase up to 262 million ardinary shares This
authority to buy-back these shares expired at the condusion of the Company’s AGM on 22 July 2011 Under the resolution, during the year

ended 31 March 2012, the Company purchased 94,726,873 ordinary shares at an average price of 43 pence per share (US70 cents per share),
with a nominal value of US$5 miflion, for consideration of US$66 mithon Consideration included stamp duty and commussion of US$0 4 million

At 31 March 2013 a total of 137,488,873 shares were classified as treasury shares (31 March 2012 - 137,488,873) This represented 5% of
called-up share capital at the beginning of the year (2011/12 — 5%)

The nominal value and market value of treasury shares held at 31 March 2013 was US$7 milion {2011/12 — US$7 milkon) and US$88 million
(2011712 — US$71 millon) respectively Disclosures inrespect of the shares held by the Trust are included in note 29

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Associztion, each share {other than those held in treasury) entitles the holder to one vote at
General Meetings of Cable & Wireless Communications Ple The Company’s shareholders can declare dividends by passing an ordinary
resolution but the payment cannot exceed the amount recommended by the Directors There are no restrictions on the repayment of capital
cther than those imposed by law For further information refer to pages 44 to 45 of the Directors’ and corporate governance report

There were no allotments of ardinary shares of US5 cents made during the year (2011/12 - no allotments)
Capital management

The Group defines capital as equity, borrowings (note 22) and cash and cash equivalents (note 19} The Group does not have any externally
imposed requirements for managing capital, other than those imposed by Company Law

The Group Is currently undertaking a change n its geographteal focus with steps taken during 2012/13 through the agreement to sell the
majonty of the Monaco & Islands operating segment and the Macau operating segment

The Board's objective Is to maintain a capital structure that supports the Group's strategic objectives, including but not hmited ta reshaping the
portfolio through mergers and acquisitions tn doing so the Board seeks to

— Manage funding and hquidity nisk

— Optimise shareholder return, and

— Mantain credit ratings

This strategy s unchanged from the prior year

Funding and hquidity nsk are reviewed reqularly by the Board and managed in accordance with the pelicies described i note 36

The Articles of Association of the Company permit aggregate borrowing up to the higher of three times the adjusted capital and reserves of the
Group or US$3 bilhon

The Group ensures that sufficient funds and distributable reserves are held to allow payments of projected dividends to shareholders and it
intends to target a sustainable and progressive dividend that reflects the underlying cash generation and growth outlook of the business This
process 1s managed through the Group’s budget and longer-term forecasting process
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Subsequent to year end the Group received total cash proceeds of US$601 million in respect of the Islands sub-group disposal {note 38)
representing consideration of US$570 million plus US$31 million of the proportionate share of net cashin the disposed businesses attributable
to Cable & Wireless Communications Proceeds have been used to repay drawn bank facilities, including the revolving credit faciity of

US$360 mllion (note 22} and other facilities of US$25 million In kne with the Board's objectives, remaining proceeds will be used for investment
opportunities In the absence of suitable investment opportunities, the remaining proceeds will be used to de-leverage the balance sheet

Both the US doflar secured bonds of US$400 million and US$500 millkon maturing respectively in 2020 and 2017 maintained a credit rating of
Ba2 with Moody's and BB with Standard and Poor’s The unsecured sterling bond repayable In 2019 also maintained its credit rating with
Standard and Poor’s of B+

Foreign currency translation and hedging reserve

The foreign currency translation and hedging reserve contains exchange differences on the translation of subsidiaries with a functional currency
different to the presentation currency of the Group 1t also includes cumulative exchange differences anising on the translation of hedqing
Instruments

Capital and Other reserves

In 2012/13, Other reserves included a capital redemption reserve of U5$152 million (2011/12 - US$152 million), a revatuation reserve of
US$30 million (2011/12 — US$30 mullion), 2 farr value reserve of U$$20 million (2011/12 — US$16 millior), a special reserve of US$2,137
million (2011712 - US$2,137 milton} and a capital reserve of US$987 million (2011/12 - US$987 mullion), less a reserve relating to
transactions with non-controlling interests of US$5 millon {2011/12 - US$1 milhon)

The special reserve relates to the cancellation of the share premium account of Cable & Wireless Limited {formerly Cable and Wireless ple) in
February 2004 tt will reduce from time to time by the amount of any increase in the paid-up share capital and share premium account of Cable
& Wireless Limited after 20 February 2004 resulting from the 1ssue of new shares for cash or ather new censideration or upon a capitalisation
of distributable reserves

On 26 March 2010, a court-approved capital reduction became effective which had the effect of creating a capital reserve of US$1,931 million
which may be released, in whole or in part, to distributable reserves of the Company at the discretion (and upon the resolution) of the Board of
Directors or a duly constituted committee of the Board of Directors

During 2011/12, the Board approved the release of US$200 million from the capital reserve to distributable reserves

29 Share-based payments
Accounting policy detalled in note 2 13 »

Share option schemes

The Group does not currently have any outstanding share option awards over Its own shares (2011/12 - ml) There are 1,246,303 outstanding
share opticn awards relating to options granted by Cable and Wireless plc to senior employees (2011/12 - 7,710,684 outstanding options)
These options were onginally granted over Cable and Wireless plc shares at exercise prices between 101 to 154 pence Afl options have vested
in full Subsequent ta the demerger, these options have been redesignated as an option over a stapled unit of one share in Cable & Wireless
Communications Ple and one share in Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc (an unrelated company} The share price of Cable & Wireless
Communications Plc at 31 March 2013 and the final share price of Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc prior to its takeover by Vodafone Group
were such that the obligation for these stapled unit options was US$nil (at 31 March 2012 - US$ni)

During the year, no options were exercised (2011/12 - no options were exercised) 6,464,381 options lapsed during the year (2011/12 -
5,995,089)

Other equity instrument awards
Performance shares
Executive Directors and other senior executives can receve awards of performance shares at mil cost

The vesting of outstanding performance shares granted in June 2010 and 2011 are subject to Cable & Wireless Communications Pic absolute
TSR performance conditions (see performance conditions for share-based award on page 59) For the performance shares granted in January
2013, performance 1s based on a combination of refative TSR against a bespoke comparator group and Earnings per Share (EPS) performance
measures A dmdend award supplement operates on all these awards Dividends that would have been paid on the performance shares which
vest will be regarded as having been retnvested in additional shares at the notional date of distribution

Restricted Share Plan

Restricted shares are awarded to senior management and selected other employees, prmarily as  retention or a recruitment tool Generally,
restricted shares vest over periods of one to three years from grant date
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29 Share-based payments continued

Cable & Wireless Communications Share Purchase Plan

The Company also offered its employees, who are chargeable to income tax under Section 15 Income Tax (Earnings and Pensions) Act 2003,
the opportunity to participate in the Cable & Wireless Communications Share Purchase Plan which 1s a HMRC-approved share incentive plan
Under the Share Purchase Plan, employees could contribute up to £1,500 or 10% of salary each tax year (whichever is the lower), to buy
partnership shares in the Company, and the Company offered a matching award of one share for each partnership share purchased From

13 Apnil 2012, the Share Purchase Planis no longer offered The existing shares will remain in the plan until such time as they would ordinanly
vest in accordance with plan rules

The Cable & Wireless Communications Share Ownership Trust

The Cable & Wireless Communications Share Qwnership Trust (the Trust) 1s a discretionary trust, which was funded by loans from Cable and
Wireless ple {now Cable & Wireless Limited} to acquire shares in Cable and Wireless plc Subsequent to the demerger, the shares held by the
Trust were converted into one share in Cable & Wireless Communications Plc and one share in Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc for every share
in Cable and Wireless plc held

At 31 March 2013, the Trust held 34,598,177 shares in Cable & Wireless Communications Plc (of which 2,780,411 are shares awarded to the
Executive Directors under the Deferred Bonus Plan and which carry dividend rights) with a market value of US$22 milhion The remaining shares
in Cable & Wireless Worldwide pic were sold during the year (2011/12 - 37,524,230 shares in Cable & Wireless Communications Plc and
15,398,747 shares in Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc with a market value of U5$28 million)

Share awards
The equity nstruments granted during the year can be summansed as follows

Awards of Awards of
Cable & Wireless Communlcations Plc Cable & Wireless Communications Plc
shares granted during 2012/13 shares granted dunng 2011/12
Weighted Weighted
average features average Features
falr value incorporated fair value Incorporated
Award Shares (pence/share) inschemes Shares {pence/share) in schemes
Restricted shares 260,400 42 - - - -
Restricted shares {LTIP)* - - - 9,108,032 44 -
Share purchase plan scheme (matching shares) 24,095 31 - 129,822 41 -
TSR
conditions
and EPS
performance
Performance shares 13,706,646 27 measures 9,237,768 17  TSRconditions

1 Restricted shares {LTIP} represents the cash LTIP amount, recogrused through profit or loss in prior periods which have been converted into restricted shares during the yearn
respect of senior employees and reclassified to equity

Only the performance share grants made during 2012/13 and 2011/12 have performance cnteria attached A far value exercise was
completed at 31 March 2013 for grants made during 2012/13 using the Monte Carlo method

The Monte Carlo pricing model assumptions used in the pricing of the performance share grants 1n 2012/13 and 2011/12 were

2012/13 2011112
Weighted average share price (pence per share) 3770 43129
Dividend yield 00% 50%
Expected volatility 347% 340%
Risk-free interest rates 045% 126%
Expected life n years 30 30

The total expense during the year related to equity settled share-based payments was U3$4 rmulfion (2011/12 ~ US$4 million)
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A summary of the outstanding share awards at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 are as follows

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Welghted Weighted

average average

Numberof  remalning life Number of remaining life

shares (rounded to shares {rounded to

Award outstanding nearest year) outstanding nearest year)
Restricted shares 471,297 2 739,176 1
Restricted shares (LTIP) 6,909,542 1 8,165,822 1
Share purchase plan scheme (matching shares) 278,446 - 3,385,093 -
Performance shares 29,677,414 2 24901564 1

30 Commitments, guarantees and contingent liabilities
Commitments
Capital commitments at the end of the financral year for the continuing Group relating to the purchase of plant and equipment of US

$59 mulhon

(2011712 - U5$93 milion) No provision has been made for these commitments US$11 milhon (31 March 2012 - US$9 million) of these

commitments relate to the Group’s share of the capital commutrnents of its joint ventures and associates Capital commitments at 3
2012 included US$21 million in respect of discontinued operations

1 March

in addition, the Group has a number of operating commitrments arising in the ordinary course of the Group's business The most significant of
these relate to network operating and maintenance costs In the event of default of another party, the Group may be hable to additional

contributions under the terms of the agreements

The Group leases land and buildings and networks under various lease agreements The leases have varying terms, escalations, ctauses and

renewal nghts

The operating lease expenditure related to the year ended 31 March 2013 s disclosed in note 6a The aggregate future minimurn lease

payments under operating leases are

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

ussm ussm

No later than one year 30 39
L.ater than one year but not later than five years 84 Q2
Later than five years 18 39
Total minimum operating lease payments 141 170

The aggregate future mimmum lease payments under operating leases at 31 March 2012 contamed US$49 million in respect of discontinued

operations

Guarantees and contingent habilities
Guarantees at the end of the year for which no provision has been made in the financial statements are as follows

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

ussm US$m

Trading guarantees 57 47
Other guarantees 475 199
Tota! guarantees 532 246

Trading guarantees

Trading guarantees principally comprise performance bonds for contracts concluded in the normal course of business, guaranteeing that the
Group will meet its obligations to complete projects in accordance with the cantractual terms and conditions The nature of contracts ncludes
projects, service level agreements, installation of equipment, surveys purchase of equipment and transportation of materials The guarantees

contain a clause that they will be terminated on final acceptance of work to be done under the contract
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30 Commitments, guarantees and contingent habilities continued

Other guarantees

Other guarantees include guarantees for financial obligations principally in respect of property, other leases and letters of credit, and includes
guarantees in respect of the demerged business of Cable & Wireless Worldwide The Group s party to a contingent funding agreement with the
Cable & Wireless Superannuation Fund (CWSF) Trustee, under which the Trustee can call for a letter of credit or cash escrow in certain
circumstances, such as the breach by the Group of certain financial covenants, the incurrence by the Group of secured debt above an agreed
level or the faillure to maintamn avallable commitments under the revolving credit facilities of at least US$150 million

Followng the Group’s 1ssue of the 2020 bonds i January 2012 (note 22), and the consequential ncrease in the Group's avallable secured
borrowings, letters of credit totafling £100 million (US$152 miflion) (2011712 — US$160 million) as of 31 March 2013 have been issued in
favour of the CWSF Trustee under the Contingent Funding Agreement The letters of credit will remain i place pursuant to the terms of the
Contingent Funding Agreement (which may be until the deficit of the CWSF 1s fully funded)

In addition, the Group, as 1s considered standard practice in such agreements, has given guarantees and indemnities in relation to a number of
disposals of subsidiary undertakings Consistent with this practice, the Group has given guarantees and indemnities in respect of its disposal of
the majority of the Monaco & Islands business Generally, liability has been capped at no more than the value of the sales proceeds, although
some uncapped indemnities have been given The Group also gives warranties and indemnities in relation to certain agreements mcluding
facility sharing agreements Some of these agreements do not contain irability caps

The Group has provided guarantees of US$1 million (2011/12 — US$2 nilion) to third parties inrespect of trading contracts between third
parties and the Cable & Wireless Worldwide Group The Cable & Wireless Worldwide Group (a wholly owned subsidiary of Vodafone Group Plc)
has agreed a fee schedule for the benefit of these guarantees To date, the Group has not been required to make any payments in respect of its
obligations under these trading guarantees

Contingent hiabilities

Under the Separation Agreement, Cable & Wireless Communications and Cable & Wireless Worldwide agree to provide each other with certam
customary indemnities on areciprocal basis in respect of habilities which the Group may incur but which relate exclusively to the Cable &
Wireless Worldwide Group and vice versa and In respect of an agreed proportion of lrabilities which do not relate exclusively to one Group or the
other

Whilst Pender, the Group's former insurance operation, ceased to underwrite new business from April 2003, it has in the past written policies in
favour of the Group and third parties Potentially significant insurance claims have been made against Pender under certain of these third party
policies, which have also given rise to uncertainties and potential disputes with remnsurers Significant progress has been made in resolving these
claims Details of these insurance claims and potential claims are not disclosed as such disclosure may be prejudicial to the outcome of such
claims (note 34)

Whilst the Group has ceased participation in the Merchant Navy Officers Pension Fund (MNOPF), it may be liable for contributions to fund a
portion of any funding deficits which may occur in the future The Group has made arrangements with MNOPF to pay invotces totalling £17
million, plus interest, relating to the actuarial valuations made by the MNOPF trustee as at 31 March 2003, 2006 and 2009, by instalments
over the next seven years It 15 possible that the MNOPF trustee may nvoice us in the future for additional amounts to the extent that there s
an actuarially determined funding deficit It 1s not possible to quantify the amount of any potential additional funding hiability at this time

31 Business combinations and acquisitions of non-controlling interests
Accounting policy detalled innote2 1 »

Continuing operations

The Bahamas Telecommunications Company

On 6 April 2011, the Group acquired 51% of the share capital of the Bahamas Telecommunications Company (BTC) from the Government of
tha Commonwealth of The Bahamas BTC s the exclusive mobile operator in The Bahamas as well as a leading prowider of fixed ine and
broadband services It is complementary to the Group's Caribbean business, LIME, which s the leading full service telecommunications provider
n the region

The cash consideration patd by the Group was US$204 mihon Goodwill of US$63 million was recogmsed on acquisition The net cash outflow
on acquisstion was US$148 million
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The Directors have made an assessment of the fair values of the assets and liabilities as at the acquisition date

Provisional Final fair

fair value at value at

Fair value 30 Septermber 31 March

Book value  adjustments 2011 Adustments 2012

usim ussm ustm USEm UsSm

Property, plant and equipment B4 129 255 3) 252

Customer cantracts and relationships - 3] 31 - 31

Trademarks - 1 1 - 1

Available-for-sale financial assets 20 - 20 - 20

Trade and other receivables 56 ) 47 10 S7

Inventories 13 (5) 8 - . B

Cash and cash equivalents 59 - 59 3) 56
Trade and other payables (93) {(10) (103) - {103)
Financial habihties at fair value through profit or foss 2 - 2) - 1#3)
Prowisions - (5) (5} (5) (10)
Borrowings (34) - (34) - {34)

Total 403 {(126) 277 1) 276

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of BTC included the value of expected synergies resulting from the integration into the existing business and
other intangible assets that did not meet the recognition criteria set out In 1AS 38 Intangible Assets as they were unable to be separately
identified Acquisition costs related to BTC of US$ 7 million were recorded in other operating expenses in 2011/12 A non-controlling interest of
U5$135 million has been recagnised in the 2011/12 accounts as at acquisition date measured at cost

In 2011/12, from the date of its acquisition on 6 April 2011, BTC contributed US$352 mullion to Group revenue, US$91 million to Group EBITDA
and U$$13 million to Group profit after tax There is no material difference in the results of BTC included in these accounts since acquisition on
6 April 2011 and the results of BTC for the full year from 1 April 2011

Maonaco Telecom
Goodwill in connection with the Group's investment in Monaco Telecom SAM Increased by US$41 million during the year (2011/12 - US$33
millien) The goodwill balance increased as aresult of exchange differences and changes in the fair value of the Monaco Telecom put option

As part of the acquisition of Monaco Telecom a put option was issued {(note 23) Changes in the fair value of this put option are treated as
contingent consideration and adjusted against goodwill The cash outflow in respect of contingent consideration, being the dividend paid to the
Principality as the non-controliing shareholder of Monaco Telecom, was U$$33 millkon (2011/12 — US$17 million)

2012/13 2011/12

Goodwill Ussm ussm
At 1 Apnil 208 172
Increase as a result of changes i the fair value of Monaco put option 47 44
Exchange differences (6) (11}
At 31 March 246 205
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32 Related party transactions

Transactions with joint ventures and associates

All trade transactions with joint ventures and associates arise in the narmal course of business and primarily relate to fees for use of the Group's
products and services, network and access charges Group subsidiaries had transactions with Telecommunications Services of Trinidad and
Tobago Ltd during the year The transactions were in relation to the sale and purchase of mobile services In respect of these transactions,
US5$3 million has been reported within revenue and US$2 million in cost of sales (2011/12 - US$3 million and US$1 mullion respectively)

During 2011/12 the Group nvested US$5 million in Seychelles Cable System Limited which 1s classified as an associate within discontinued
operations {note 9}

The Group received dividends of US$6 million from joint ventures and associates (2011/12 — US$4 million) At 31 March 2013, joint ventures
and associates owed US$2 million (31 March 2012 ~ US$2 million} in respect of trading balances

There were no other material trade transactions with joint ventures and associates during the year

Transactions with key management personnel

At 31 March 2011, two Directers held bonds issued by Cable & Wireless Limited and Cable and Wireless International Finance BV witha
nominal value of US$4,211,156 (£2,630,000) (purchased in pnior periods) Both Directors sold thewr entire holding during the year ended

31 March 2012 The interest earned on these bonds prior to disposal during the year ended 31 March 2012 was U5$55,426 which was fully
settled A profit of US$790,719 was realised upon the sale of the bonds

A Director's spouse held bonds issued by Cable and Wireless international Finance BV These bonds had a nominal value at 31 March 2013 of
US$731,472 (£480,000) (31 March 2012 - U5$766,416 (£480,000)) The interest earned on those bonds during the year was US$65,404
of which US$1,037 remained unpaid at 31 March 2013 (2011/12 ~ US$66 132 of whichUS$903 remained unpaid at 31 March 2012}

A Director’s spouse held bonds 1ssued by Cable & Wireless Limited The Director retired duning the year These bonds had a nominal value at
31 March 2012 of US$15,967 (£10,000) The interest earned on those bonds during the year until retirement was US$344 which has been
pard in full (2011712 — U5$1,398 of which US$901 remamned unpaid at 31 March 2012)

During the pror year, two children of a Director purchased bonds 1ssued by Cable and Wireless International Finance BV These bonds had a
nominal value at 31 March 2013 of US$761,950 {£500,000) (31 March 2012 - U5$798,350 (£500,000)) The interest earned on those
bonds during the year was US$58,128 of which US$1,080 remained unpaid at 31 March 2013 (2011/12 — U5$25,410 of which US$940
remaned unpaid at 31 March 2012)

During the year a Director purchased a car from the Company for market value

Director and key management remuneration 1s disclosed in note 6¢

Transactions with other related parties

There are no controlling shareholders of the Group There have been no material transactions with the shareholders of the Group i
Pensions contributions to Group schemes are disclosed in note 27

Other than the parties disclosed above, the Group has no other material related parties

33 Licences and operating agreements

In all countries in which it operates, the Group holds licences to operate or operating agreements These licences and operating agreements
take a vaniety of forms and thew terms, nights and obligations vary significantly The Group assumes that it will renew these icences and
operating agreements as they expire Previous tustory indicates this1s the most hikely outcome

The Group s currently in the process of renewing its hcences and operating agreements in Antigua & Barbuda and Montserrat

The Group does not have any concession agreements with governments that fall within the scape of IFRIC 12 Service Concession
Arrangements

On demerger of the Cable & Wireless Worldwide business, the Cable & Wireless brand was transferred to a joint venture entity owned by, and
for the continueng use of, the Cable & Wireless Communications and Cable & Wireless Worldwide Groups As part of this transfer, Cable &
Wireless Communications received a royalty-free licence, granting rights to use the Cable & Wireless brand in all of the Group’s junsdictions
with the exception of Macau and North and West Africa, which are branded differently Further, the Group retains a licence to use the Cable &
Wireless logo globally These licence arrangements remain in force despite Vadafone Group Plc’s acquisition of Cable & Wireless Worldwide
Group In July 2012

There were no other significant changes to the terms of the hicences held by the Group's subsidiaries or operating agreements with ;
governments during the periods presented
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34 Legal proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, the Greup 1s involved in itigation proceedings, regulatory claims, investigations and reviews The facts and
circumstances relating to particular cases are evaluated in determining whether it 1s more likely than not that there will be a future outflow of
funds and, once estabhshed, whether a provision relating to a specific case 1s necessary or sufficient Accordingly, significant management
Judgement relating to provisions and contingent labikities 1s required since the outcorme of litigation ss difficult to predict The Group does not
expect the ultimate resolution of the actions to which 1t 1s a party to have a significant adverse impact on the financia! posttion of the Group

35 Subsidiaries and joint ventures and associates

Accounting policy detalledinnote 21 »

The Group comprises a large number of companies and it 1s not practicat to include all of them in thus fist The st therefore only includes those
companies whose results or financial position, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the financial statements

Owmnership of
ordinary shares Country of Area of
Continuing operatrons % incorparation aperation
Substdiartes
The Bahamas Telecommunications Company Ltd* 51 The Bahamas The Bahamas
Cable & Wireless Jamaica Ltd 82 Jamaica Jamaica
Cable & Wireless Panama, SA’ 49 Panama Panama
Cable & Wireless (Barbados) Ltd 81 Barbados Barbados
Cable and Wireless (West Indies) Ltd 100 England Caribbean
Monaco Telecom SAM? 49 Monaco Monaco
Cable & Wireless L1d 100 England England
Sable International Finance Ltd 100 Cayman England
Cable and Wireless International Finance BV 100 Netherlands England
Joint ventures and associates
Cable & Wireless Trade Mark Management Ltd 50 England N/A
Telecommumications Services of Trirudad and Tobago Ltd? 49 Trintdad and Tobago Trimidad and Tobago

1 The Cabla & Wireless Communicaticns Group regards this company as a subsidiary because it controls the majonty of the Board of Directors through a shareheolders agreement
2 This companyts audited by a firm other than KPMG Audit ple and its international member firms

3 The Cable & Wireless Communications Group helds an economic Interest of 55% in Monaco Telecom SAM via a contractuat arrangement: See below for further discussion

4 From 6 Apnl 2011

On 18 June 2004, the Group acquired 55% of Monaco Telecomn, a Monaco-based telecommunications service prowider, from Vivendi Universal
Simultaneousty with the acquisition, Cable & Wireless Communications transferred legal ownership of 6% of the shares of Monaco Telecom to
an unrelated third party The Group contractually retained voting and economic rights in the shares as part of the arrangement In addition, the
6% interest 1s subject to certain put and call options that, together with the retained voting and economic rights, previde full management
contro! of Manaco Telecom to the Group

The Group has also entered into a shareholders’ agreement with the Principality of Monaco (Principahity) that contains, among other provisions,
mutual pre-emption rights on transfer of shares and certain other bmited nights in favour of the Principality The Principality has a put option
entitling it to put its 45% shareholding in Monaco Telecom to the Group in one or several instalments until 30 April 2019 The exeraise price
under the put option 1s fair market value, taking into account the nature of the minonity stake in Monace Telecom {note 23)

Full details of all subsidiary undertakings, joint ventures and associates and trade investments will be attached to the Company’s next Annual
Return, to be filed with the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales
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36 Fmancial risk management

Treasury policy

The Group's activities expose it to a vanety of financial nsks market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and hquidity
risk The Group's overall nsk management programme seeks to minimise potenhial adverse effects onthe Group's financial perfermance Day to
day management of treasury activities 1s delegated to the Group's treasury function (Treasury), within specified financial mits for each type of
transaction and counterparty

To the extent that subsidiaries undertake treasury transactions, these are governed by Group policies and delegated authorities Materal
subsidiary positions are monitored by Treasury Where appropriate, transactions are reported to the Board All subsidianes are required to
report details of their cash and debt positions to Treasury on a monthly basis

The key responsibilities of Treasury include funding, investment of surplus cash and the management of interest rate and foreign currency nsk
The majonty of the Group’s cash resources (including facihities) and berrowings are managed centrally by Treasury

The Group may use denvatives mcluding forward foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps, cross-currency swaps and options, where
appropriate, In the management of its foreign currency and interest rate exposures The use of these instruments is in accordance with
strategres agreed from time to time by Treasury and subject to policies approved by the Board Dervatives are not used for trading or
speculative purposes and derivative transactions and positions are monitored and reported by Treasury on a regular basis and are subject to
policies adopted by the Board

Exchange rate risk

The Group trades in many countries and a proportion of its revenue 1s generated in currencies other than US dollars The Group 1s exposed to
movements A exchange rates in relation to non-doflar currency payments (including external dividends, the London corporate centre costs and
pensions), dividend income from foreign currency denominated subsidiaries, reported profits of foreign currency denominated subsicharies and
the net asset carrying value of non-US dollar nvestments Exchange risk 1s managed centrally by the London corporate centre on a matching
cash flow basis inciuding forecast foreign currency cash repatriation inflows from subsidianies and forecast foreign currency payments

See note 2 3 for key exchange rates used

Where appropriate, the Group manages Its exposure to movements in exchange rates onanet basis and uses forward foreign exchange
contracts and other dervative and financial instruments to reduce the exposures created where currencies do not naturally offset in the short
term The Group will undertake hedges to mmimise the exposire to individual transactions that create sigmificant foreign exchange exposures
for the Group where appropriate Where cost-effective and possible, foreign subsidiaries are financed in their doemestic currency to mmnimise
the impact of translation of foreign currency denominated borrowings

As part of the overall policy of managing the exposure ansing from foreign exchange mavements relating to the net carrying value of overseas
investments, the Group may, from time to time, elect to match certan foreign currency liabilities aganst the carrying value of foreign
investments

The reported profits of the Group are translated at average rates of exchange prevalling during the year Overseas earnings are predosninately
1nUS dollars or currencies linked to the US dollar However the Group also has overseas earmings In other currencies

The Group s exposed to foreign currency risk n refation to financial instruments which are not in the functional currency of the entity that
holds them In broad terms, based on financial assets and iabilities as at 31 March 2013 the mpact of a unilateral 10% weakening of the US
dollar would have been ta decrease profit from continuing operations by approximately US$36 million {at 31 March 2012 ~ US$30 mllion)

Interest rate risk

The Group Is exposed to mavements in Interest rates on its surplus cash balances and vaniable rate loans afthough there 15 a degree of offset
between the two Treasury may seek to reduce volatility by fixing a proportion of this interest rate exposure whilst taking account of prevailing
market conditions as appropriate

At 31 March 2013, 64% (31 March 2012 - 86%) of the Group's loans were at a fixed rate A reduction in interest rates would have an
unfavourable impact upon the farr value of the Group’s fixed rate loans However, no debt s held for trading purposes and it1s intended that it
will be kept in place until matunity As a result, there 1s no exposure to fair value loss on fixed rate borrowings and, as such, its effect has not
been modelled

Aone percentage point increase In interest rates will have a US$2 million (2011712 — US$3 million) impact on the income receved from the
surptus cash balances of the Group and a US$6 million (2011/12 - US$2 milton} impact on the floating rate loans of the Group The impact on
equity 1s imited to the impact on profit or loss
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Credit nsk

Cash deposits and similar financial instruments give rise to credit risk, which represents the loss that would be recognised If a counterparty
failed to perform as contracted The carrying amount of the financial assets of the Group represents the maximum credit exposure of the
Group Management seeks to reduce this credit nisk by ensuring the counterparties to all but a small proportion of the Group’s financial
instruments are the core relationship banks These banks are awarded a maximum credit limit based onratings by Standard & Poor's and
Moody's, the level of the banks’ credit default swap (CDS) and its associated level of tier one capital The credit limit assigned to counterparties

1s monitored on a continuing basis These imits reflect exposure for the Group as a whole to any one counterparty in a range of U5$25 mullion to
UsS$100 million

The Group Treasury policy approved by the Board contain himits on exposure and prescribes the types of instrument used for investment of
funds Credit risk onrecevables is discussed innote 17

Liquidity risk

The Group ensures that the operating units manage their own operational iquidity supported by the London corporate centre, which manages
its own iquidity to meet its financial obhigations of servicing and repaying external debt, external dividends, London costs and strategic
iniiatives The principal source of hquidity for the London corporate centre 15 repatnation cash inflows from the operating units supported by
bank finance, bond 1ssuances and asset disposals

At 31 March 2013, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of US$152 milion These amounts are highly hquid and are a significant component
of the Group's overall hquidity and capital resources, which also includes the undrawn revolving credit fachties of US$240 milkon

Liquidhty forecasts are produced on a regular basis to ensure the utiisation of current facilities is optimised, to ensure covenant comphance and
that medium-term hiquidity 1s maintained and for the purpose of identifying long-term strategic funding requirements The Directors also
regularly assess the balance of capital and debt funding of the Group

Approximately 15% of the Group’s cash is invested in short-term bank deposits and money market funds (2011/12 — 40%)

Certain foreign subsidiaries operate in jurisdictions which rmay restrict the ability to repatriate cash to the Group from tirne to time Where
restrictions are severe, local cash balances are excluded from cash and cash equivalents

37 Reconciiation of non-GAAP measures
Reconcihiation of operating profit to EBITDA

2012713 2011712
Contiuing operations Ussm ussm
Total operating profit 192 18
Depreciation and amortisation 275 277
Net other operating (income)/expense 4) 1
Share of profit after tax of joint ventures and associates (10} (26)
Exceptional items 136 310
EBITDA 589 590

The Group yses EBITDA as a key performance measure as it reflects the underlying aperational performance of the businesses EBITDA1s not a
measure defined under IFRS It s calculated as earmings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation, net other operating and non-
operating income and expense and exceptional items
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37 Reconciliation of non-GAAP measures continued
Reconciliation of basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) to Adjusted EPS

Continuing Group Total Group
2012/13 01112 2012/13 2011/12
US cents US cents US cents UScents
Loss per share attributable to owners of the Parent Company 34) (78) 08 31
Exceptional items! 43 94 43 94
Amortisation of acquired intangibles’ 03 04 04 05
Transactton costs and loss/(gain) on disposal of businesses 07 03 11 ©3)
Adjusted EPS attributable to owners of the Parent Company 19¢ 17c 66c 65¢
Weighted average number of shares (million} 2,494 2,506 2,494 2506

1 Excluding amounts attnbutable to non-controlling interests
Adjusted EPS 1s before exceptional items, transaction costs, loss/gain on disposal of businesses and amortisation of acquired intangibles

Reconciliation of Return on Invested Capital (ROIC)

201213 2011112

Continuing operaucns Us$m us$m
Total pre-exceptional operating profit 328 328
Average total assets 3,714 3,702
Average current habihities (1,618) (1.522)
Average invested capital 2,096 2,180
Average adjusted invested capital’ 1,801 1,779
Return on Invested Capital 18 2% 184%

1 Average adjusted invested capial for continung operations is after deducting deferred tax assets, retirement benefit assets the goodwill batance attributable to the Monaco
Tetecom put option (less the current portion of the related put option financial liabxhity) interest bearing assets total assets and current labilives for discontinued operations and
adding back interest bearing cusrent habilities

The Group uses ROIC to measure the effectiveness of cur capital investments

ROIC 1s not a measure defined under IFRS We define ROIC as total operating profit before exceptional items divided by average adjusted
invested capital

ROIC 15 calculated on the basis of continuing operations During the period, the Group has contmued to refine its use of ROIC and we now
calculate it on the basis of average, rather than opening, Invested capital and on a pre-tax basts Prior year figures have been re-presented on
the same basis
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38 Events after the reporting period
Accounts approval
These accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 May 2013 and authorised for 1ssue

Monaco & Islands disposal
On 3 Apnl 2013, the Group completed the sale of the majonty of the Islands sub-group to Batelco Group (Batelco) as part of a transaction
described innote 9

Following recerpt of the required consents and approvals the Group completed the sale of its businesses in the Maldives, the Channel Islands,
tsle of Man, South Atlantic and Diego Garcia Regulatory approval for the transfer of CWC's business in the Seychelles has not yet been
obtamned

Batelco also acqurred a 25% shareholding in Compagnie Monegasque de Communication SAM (CMC), the holding company of the Group's
interest in Monaco Telecom As described in note 9, a put option over the 25% shareholding in CMC was also issued to Batelco on 3 Apnl 2013
The CMC put option enables Batelco to require the Group to repurchase the 25% CMUC shareholding for US$100 million in the event that the
requlatory approval from the Principality of Monaco s not granted within 12 months of 3 April 2013 Batelco can exercise this put option
between 18 and 19 months from 3 April 2013 The Group will account for the put option as a financial lability using the anticipated acquisition
method, as If it had been exercised

On 3 Apnl 2013, the Group received total cash proceeds of US$601 million in respect of these transactions This represents consideration of
$470 million for the Islands sub-group plus $31 million of net cash in the disposed businesses attributable to CWC, together with US$100
million in respect of the 25% shareholdings in CMC

In April 2013, the cash proceeds were used by the Group to repay 5$360 milion of the revaolving credit facility (note 22} and U5%$25 milion of
other borrowings

Strategic alllance with Columbus Networks
On 13 May 2013, the Group announced it had entered into a strategic alliance with Columbus Networks Ltd ('Columbus') to develop its
international wholesale capaaity business

The allance will initially operate by providing Joint sales and marketing services for each of CWC's and Colurnbus’ internatioral wholesale
capacity services Columbus has a 72 5% majority share in, and management control of, the formal arrangement and CWC has a 27 5% share

Thealliance will be broadened within the next two years with Columbus and CWC contributing their sub-sea and related assets into a new
company with the same respective shareholdings, subject to obtaiung regulatory approvals and certam other conditions being met Untid then,
Columbus and CWC will retain camplete ownership and control of their respective existing networks

The transaction is not expected to have a matenal impact on the Group's earmings Group assets subject to the joint venture arrangement had a
book value of US$108 million, and recorded aloss before tax of US$1 million in the year to 31 March 2013
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Company balance sheet
as at 31 March 2013

31 March 31 March
2013 2012
Note UsSSm UsSs$m
Fixed assets investments
Investments in subsidianes 6 6,097 6,093
Current liabihties
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 7 4,470 4,305
Net current liabilities (4,470)  (4,305)
Net assets 1,627 1,788
Camital and reserves
Called-up share capital 8 133 133
Share premurmn 9 97 97
Reserves 9 1,397 1,558
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,627 1,788

The notes on pages 130 to 133 are an Integrat part of the financial statements of the Company

The financial statements of the Company on pages 128 to 133 were approved by the Board of Director;

behalf by éJ) ‘ A o

Tony Rice Chief Executiv Tim Pennington Chief Financial Officer

Cable & Wireless Communications Plc Registered number — 07130199
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Reconciliation of movements in equity
shareholders’ funds for the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2013

2012/13 201112
ussm ussm
Profit/(loss) for the year 1 @
Equity share-based payments 4 4
Own shares purchased - (66)
Dwvidends (166) (202)
Decrease in equity shareholders’ funds {161} {266)
Opening equity shareholders’ funds 1,788 2,054
Closing equity shareholders’ funds 1,627 1,788
The notes on pages 130 to 133 are an integral part of the financial statements of the Company
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2013

1 Statement of accounting poltcies

11 Basis of preparation

The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards applicable under generally accepted
accounting principles in the United Kingdom and the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 They have been prepared on the historical cost
basis where appropriate

These financial statements set out the position of the Company and not the Cable & Wireless Communications Group (the Group) which it
heads The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the
Company's financial statements

The Company 1s exermpt under FRS 29 Financial Instruments Disclosures from the requirement to provide its own financial instruments
disclosures on the grounds that they are included in publicly avallable consolidated financial statements which include disclosures that comply
with the IFRS equivalent standard

The financial statemenits are presented in US dollars (US$), as this 1s the functional currency of the Company at 31 March 2013, and reunded to
the nearest millicn

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assurnptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting pernod Actual results could differ from these estimates

FRS 18 Accounting Policies requires that a description of the impact of any change in estimation techniques should be provided where the
change has a materialimpact on the reported results for the year

1 2 Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the balance sheet at historical cost less any impairments recogrised Impairment reviews are carried
out whenever events or changes in circumstances Indicate that the carrying amount of the investment may not be fully recoverable
Impawrments are determined by comparing the carrying value of the investment in the subsidiary to its recoverable amount, being the mgher of
the subsidiary’s far value less costs to sell and its value Inuse Fair value represents market value in an active market Value in use 1s determined
by discounting future cash flows anising from the subsidiary with reference to the Group's own projections using pre-tax discount rates which
represent the estimated weighted average cost of capital for the Company Impairments are recogrised in profit or loss

1 3 Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following categones financiat assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and recewvables,
held-to-maturity nvestrents and avarlable-for-sale financial assets The classification depends on the purpose for which the assets are held
The Company currently does not hold or classify any financial assets under these categores The basis of determining farr values 1s set out in
nete14

Managernent determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition in accordance with FRS 26 Finoncial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date for financial assets other than those held at fair value
through profit or loss

Recogmition and measurement
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Company has transferred substantsally ali rnisks and rewards of ownership

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets s
impaired

1 4 Fair vatue estimation

The nominat value (less estimated impairments) of receivables and payables are assumed to approximate therr fair values The fair value of
financral habilities 1s estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is avallable to the
Company for similar financial instruments Discounted cash flows are used to determine the fair value for the majonity of remaining financial
instruments
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15 Tax
The charge for tax 1s based on the result fer the year and takes into account tax deferred due to timing differences between the treatment of
certain items for tax and accounting purposes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that they are regarded as recoverable Deferred tax assets are regarded as recoverable to the
extent that on the basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which
the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted

Except where otherwise required by accounting standards, full provision without discounting s made for all timing differences that have anisen
but not reversed at the balance sheet date

16 Dwidends
Dividends are recognised through equity on the earlier of their approvat by the Company's shareholders or their payment

17 Share-based compensation

The Group operates various equity-settled, share-based compensation plans The farr value of the employee services received in exchange for

the grant of the options 1s recognised as an expense in the subsidiary companies over the vesting period The total amount to be expensed over \
the vesting period 15 determined by reference to the fair value of the optrons granted, which excludes the impact of any non-market vesting

conditions (for example, service, profitability and sales growth targets) Non-market vesting conditions are inclucded in estimates about the

number of options that are expected to vest At each reporting date, the Group revises Its estimates of the number of options that are

expected to vest It recognises the impact of the revision of original non-market estimates, if any, in the profit and loss, and a corresponding

adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting pernod

The proceeds receved net of any directly attnbutable transaction costs are credited to share capital and share premium when the options are
exercised The Company recognises an additional investment in subsidiaries equivalent to the equity instruments granted, being a capital
contrtbution to those subsidianies

2 Company's profit and loss account

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006 and has nat presented its own
profit and loss account The profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 amounted to US$1 million (2011712 - US$2 mullion less)

3 Remuneration of Directors

information covering Directors' remuneration 1s disclosed in note 6¢ to the consolidated financial statements Interests in shares, share options
and penston benefits are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 51 to 66 and have been borne by a subsidiary company

4 Staff numbers and costs

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Company (including Directors) during the year was ml (2011/12 - nil) Their costs for
the year ended 31 March 2013 were US$nil (2011712 - USS$nIl)

5 Share-based payments

Accounting policy detailed innote 1 7 » !

The details of share option schemes and other share-based plans are disclosed in note 29 to the consalidated financial statements

The total additional investment in subsidianies relating to equity settled share-based payments was US$4 million (2011/12 - US$4 million)
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6 Fixed asset investments

Accounting policy detalledinnote 1 2 »

Subsidiary
undertakings
us$m
Cost

At 1 Apnil 2011 6,089
Capital contribution {note 5) 4
At 1 Apnl 2012 6,093
Capital contribution (note 5} 4
At 31 March 2013 6,097

Net book value
At 31 March 2013 6,097
At 31 March 2012 6,093

7 Creditors

31 March 31 March
2013 2012
uUs$m ustm

Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings

4,470 4305

Total creditors

4,470 4,305

There 15 no matenal difference between the carrying amount and fair value of creditors at 31 March 2013

8 Called-up share capital

Number of
shares
Issued calfed-up and fully paid shares of US5 cents each (000) uS$m
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 2,665,612 133
9 Share capital and reserves
Profit
Share Share Other and loss
capital premium reserve account Total
Ussm uUssm ussm ussm Ussm
At 3 April 2012 133 97 987 571 1,788
Profit for the year - - - 1 1
Equity share-based payments - - - 4 4
Diidends - - - (166) (166)
At 31 March 2013 133 97 987 410 1,627

The other reserve relates to the cancellation of the B shares and the capital reduction occurnng on the demerger of the Cable & Wireless
Worldwide business The other reserve may be treated as realised profit, subject to the resolution of the Directors
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Share buy-back
Share buy-back information s detailed in note 28 to the consolidated financial staternents

At 31 March 2013, a total of 137,488,873 shares were classified as treasury shares (31 March 2012 ~ 137,488,873) This represented 5% of
called-up share capital at the beginning of the year (2011/12 - 5%)

10 Related party transactions

Under FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures, the Company is exempt from the requirement to disclose transactions with entities that are part of the
Cable & Wireless Communications Group, or investees of the Group qualifying as related parties, as all of the Company’s voting rights are
controlled within the Group

Related party transactions are detailed in nate 32 to the consolidated financial statements

11 Subsidiaries and joint ventures and associates
Principal subsidiaries and joint ventures and associates are detalled in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group comprises a large number of companies and 1t i1s not practical to include all of them The hst therefore only includes those comparies
whose results or financial position, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affects the figures shownnthe financial statements

The Company does not have any direct investment in the subsidiaries and joint ventures and associates listed in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements, with the exception of Cable & Wireless Liruted

Full details of all subsidiary undertakings, Joint ventures and assocrates and trade mvestments will be attached te the Company’s Annual Return,
to be filed with the Regstrar of Companies in England and Wales

12 Dividends
Accounting policy detailedinnote 16 »

Dividend information 1s detailed in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements

13 Commitments
The Company had no capital comrmitments at 31 March 2013 (31 March 2012 - no capital commitment s)

14 Guarantees and contingent habilities

Under the Separation Agreement, Cable & Wireless Communicattons Plc and Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc agree to provide each other with
certain customary indemnities on a rectprocal basis in respect of habilittes which Cable & Wireless Communications may incur but which relate
exclusively to the Cable & Wireless Worldwide Group and vice versa and inrespect of an agreed proportion of habihitres which do not relate
exclusively to one group or the other

Whilst Pender, the Group's former insurance operation, ceased to underwrite new business from April 2003, 1t has in the past written policies in
favour of the Group and third parties Potentially significant insurance claims have been made against Pender under certain of these third party
policies, which have also given rise to uncertanties and potential disputes with reinsurers Sigruficant progress has been made in resolving these
clams Detalls of these msurance claims and potential claims are not disclosed as such disclosure may be prejudicial to the outcome of such
clams

In addition, the Company, as 1s considered standard practice in such agreements, has given guarantees and indemnities in relation to a number
of disposals of subsidiary undertakings in prior years Generally, lability has been capped at no more than the value of the sales proceeds,
although some uncapped indemnities have been given The Company also gives warranties and indemnities in relation to certain agreements
including factiity sharing agreements Some of these agreements do not contain hability caps
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Shareholder information

Registrar
If you have any queries regarding your shareholding in Cable &
Wireless Communications Plc, please contact

Equiriti

Aspect House, Spencer Road

Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6DA

Telephone 0871 384 2104" (UK shareholders)
+44 (0¥121 415 7052 {overseas shareholders)

Shareholders can view up-to-date information about ther
shareholding at www shareview co uk and answers to frequently
asked questions can be found at https //help shareview co uk

ShareGift

If you have a small number of shares whose value makes them
uneconomic to sell, you may wish to consider donating them to
charity ShareGift is aregistered charity (no 1052686) which
collects and sells unwanted shares and uses the proceeds to support
awide range of UK charities Further information about ShareGift
and the chanties it supports i1s available at www sharegift org or by
contacting them at

17 Carlton House Terrace
London SW1Y 5AH
Telephone +44 {0)20 7930 3737

Registered Office and Company Secretary
The Company's Registered Office 1s

3rd Floor, 26 Red Lion Square
London WCIR 4HQ
Telephone +44 (0)20 7315 4000

Clare Underwood 1s the Company Secretary

investor Relations
Enquiries may be directed to

Head of Investor Relations

3rd Floor, 26 Red Lion Square
London WC1R 4HQ

Telephone +44 (G)20 7315 4000
Email investor relations@cwc com
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Financial calendar

Ex-dividend date 29 May 2013
Record date 31 May 2013
Last date for election to jomn dividend

reinvestrnent plan for August 2013 dividend 12 July 2013
Last date for election to recewve dividend

in US dotlars 12 July 2013
Notsfication of sterling dividend

payment amount 18 July 2013
AGM 25 July 2013
Payment of final dividend 9 August 2013
Announcement of intenm results 2013/14 7 November 2013

Updates to the inancial calendar will be available on the Company's
website www cwe com when they become available

Dividends

Dividends are declared by the Company tnUS dollars The default
payment currency for dividends is sterling and shareholders may
elect to receive paymentin US dellars The actual sterling amount
of any dividend payable by the Company from time to time will be
based on the sterling/US dollar exchange rate in effect on a date
chosen by the Directors nearer to the relevant payment date

A Currency Mandate Form to receive dividends in US dollars may be
requested from Equiniti or can be found on the Company's website
www cwc com Any election to receive dividends in US dollars will
remain in force until cancelled

The table below sets out the US dollar amounts of the intenim, fina!
and total gross dvidends paid or proposed per ordinary share

Cents per ordinary share

Year ended Intenim Final Total
31 March 2011 267 533 800
31 March 2012 267 533 800
31 March 2013 133 267 400

if your dwidend is paid directly into your bank or building society, you
will receive ane consalidated tax voucher each year, which 15 sent

to you in January at the time that the intenim dividend 1s paid If you
would prefer toreceive a tax voucher with each dividend, please
contact our shareholder helpline on 0871 384 2104

If your dwidend s not currently paid direct to your bank or building
saclety and you would like to benefit from this service, please
contact our shareholder helpline on 0871 384 2104' By receiving
your dividends in this way you can avaid the nsk of cheques getting
lost in the post It is also now possible for shareholders in over

90 countnes worldwide to benefit from a similar service Further
information can be obtained from www shareview co uk or by calling
+44 (0121 4157052

1 Calls to this number are charged at Bp per minute plus network extras Lines are open
from B 30am to5 30pm Monday to Friday, extluding UK public holidays




Cable & Wireless Communications Plc offer a dividend reinvestment
plan Shareholders wishing to join the dividend reinvestment plan
should return a completed mandate form to the Registrar, Equiniti
Copies of the dividend reinvestment plan brochure can be obtamed
either from Equiniti or from our website, www cwc com

Cable & Wireless Communications Plc trading market

The Company's shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange
The Company had a market capitalisation of approximately £1,060
milion on 31 March 2013

The diagram below details the position in the FTSE Al Share and the
tugh and low middle market quotations for the ordinary shares on
the London Stock Exchange as reported onts Daily Official List

31 March 2013
Position in the

FTSE All share
at the year end

Pence per ordinary share

High Low

LSE ticker CWC
ISIN GBOOBSKKT968

Electronic communication

Together with Equiniti, Cable & Wireless Communications Ple is abte
to offer shareholders the option to manage their shareholding online
To make use of this facility, please register at www shareview co uk

following the onscreen instructions

The Company also offers shareholders the option to receive
communications from the Company electronically as an alternative
to receiving documents through the post

Unsolicited mall

Company law allows people unconnected with the Company to
obtain a copy of our share register As a consequence, shareholders
may receive unsolicited mail, including mail from unauthorised
investment firms For more information on unauthonsed investment
firms targeting UK investors, you should visit the website of the
Financial Conduct Authority (www fca org uk/consumers/scams)

If you wish to himit the amount of unsolicited mail you receive,
please contact

The Matling Preference Service
DMA House

70 Margaret Street

London W1W 855

Telephone +44 (0)20 7291 3310
www mpsonline arg uk

Documents on display

Shareholders can view the service contracts of Executive Directors
and the letters of appontment of Non-executive Directors at the
Company's Registered Office Shareholders may also obtain copies of
the Company'’s Articles of Association at the Company's Registered
Office or on the website (www cwe com)

Distribution and classification of Cable & Wireless
Communications Pic shareheldings

HNumber of % of Number of % of

Shares at 31 March 2013 accounts total shares total
Up to 1,000 55,707 6682 23,582,404 088
1,001-10,000 25120 3012 66,445,437 250
10,001-100,000 2104 252 50,116,314 188
100,001-1,000,000 277 033 99,560,467 373
1,000,001 and over 178 021 2,425907,705 9101
Total 83386 100 2,665.611,727 100

At 21 May 2013, the Company had 82,956 shareholders on record
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Shareholder information
continued

Definitions

This Annual report of Cable & Wireless Communications Plc has
been prepared in accordance with English legal and UK Listing Rules
requirements The Annual review for the year ended 31 March 2013
1s published as a separate document

Unless otherwise stated in this Annual report, the terms ‘Cable &
Wireless Communications’, the ‘Group’, ‘CWC', ‘Cable & Wireless
Communications Group’, It', ‘we’, ‘us’ and “our” refer to Cable &
Wireless Communications Plc and its subsidianes collectively The
term ‘Company’ and ‘Parent Company’ refer to Cable & Wireless
Communications Plc The terms 'Cable & Wireless’ and ‘Cable &
Wireless Group’ refer to the former Cable and Wireless plc and its
subsidianies collectively The term ‘Cable & Wireless Worldwide
group’ refers to Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc and its subsidiaries
collectively, which was demerged from the former Cable and
Wireless plc on 26 March 2010, and since July 2012 has been

a wholly owned subsidiary of Vodafone Group Plc

Unless otherwise indicated, any reference in this report to financial
statements 1s to the consolidated financial statements of Cable &
Wireless Communications on pages 71 to 127 References to ayear
in this report are, unless otherwise indicated, references to the year
ended 31 March 2013 (the financial year)

Cable & Wireless Communications prepares its financial mformation
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) applicable for use in the European Union (EU) The Company
prepares its financial information in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP)

In this report, financial and non-financial information s, unless
otherwise indicated, stated on the basis of the Group's financial year
EBITDA 1s defined as earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation and net other operating and non-operating income
and expense Unless otherwise stated, EBITDA excludes exceptional
items Exceptional items are material items which derive from
individual events that fall within the ordinary activities of the Group
that are identified as exceptional items by virtue of their size, nature
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orincidence Operating cash flow 1s defined as pre-exceptional
EBITDA less balance sheet capital expenditure Adjusted earmngs per
share (adjusted EPS) 1s before exceptional items, transaction costs,
gain/(loss} on disposals and amortisation of acquired intangibles
Return on Invested Capital 1s defined as total operating profit

before exceptional items divided by average adjusted invested
capital Average adjusted mvested capital for continuing operations
15 after deducting deferred tax assets, retirement benefit assets,

the goodwill balance attributable to the Monaco Telecom put

option (less the current portion of the related put option financial
hability), interest bearing assets, total assets and current labilities
for discontinued operations, and adding back interest bearing
current habilities A reconciliation of GAAP to non-GAAP measures 1s
provided on pages 125 to 126

Where approprate to aid understanding of our results compared to
the prior year, we refer to financial performance on a total Group
and/or constant currency basis Constant currency figures are
calculated by retranslating prior year figures at the exchange rates
used during 2012/13 to eliminate the impact of movements in
exchange rates

Information has been updated to the most practical date prior to the
approval date of the document, being 21 May 2013

Companies Act 2006

Pages 1 to 33 constitute the Chairman’s statement and Business
review of Cable & Wireless Communications Plc and, for the
purposes of section 463 of the Companies Act 2006, are
incorporated by reference into the Directors’ report set out on
pages 37 to 50 and shall be deemed to form part of that report

English law

Pages 1 to 67 nclusive consist of a Directors’ report that has been
drawn up and presented in accordance with and in reliance upon
English company law The habilities of the Directors in connection
with that report shall be subject to the himitations and restrictions
provided by suchlaw




Porthcurno

1elegtaph museum

Porthcurno, a picturesque valley
on the south-westerly tip of
Cornwall, occupies a sigmificant
position in history as one of the
most strategically important
communication sites 1n

the world.

Cornwall’s Victorian Sslicon Valley

Laid by the Eastern Telegraph Company {later to become Cable and
Wireless), the first undersea cable to land on Porthcurno's sandy beach
forged alink between Britain and Bombay Porthcurno grew to
become the largest and busiest telegraph cable station in the world,
by the late 1920s a network of 14 undersea cables made 1t one of the
most connected places on Earth

Previousty the fastest means of international commurucation was by
packet ship Sub-sea telegraph techrology, the use of electrical pulses
to send Morse code messages via cable, was a world-shaping
breakthrough i communications technology

Porthcurno was also an important centre for education The Cable &
Wireless international college was a leading training institution for the
telecommunications industry

The communications hub became so strategically important during
World War i that the telegraph station was moved into fortified
underground tunnels For many visitors today, these impressive
tunnels, and the working telegraph mstruments within, form

a memorable highlight of their experience

Two major tourism industry awards received in late 2012 and early
2013 have reinforced the museurn's reputation as a unique heritage
attraction

Cable & Wireless Communications

The PK Trust, the chanty that runs Porthcurno Telegraph Museum,

houses the historical archive of our Group From staff records and |
photographs, to artefacts and film footage, the archive 1s the

embodiment of our heritage, anch record of pecple and places \

We are proud to sponsor the PK Trust and Porthcurno Telegraph
Museum, which s an educational charnity, focused on the history,
science and innovation of telegraph and wireless communications
Through our work with the Museum, we help to underpin and raise
awareness of the important role that telecommunications has played
n Britain’s past

Tel +44 (0) 1736 810966
www porthcurnoe org uk

Addressees of the Annual repsrt

They Annual report s addressad solely 1o the members of Cable & Wirekess Commurwcations Pic a3 3 body to assist
them in g35es5ng the strategies adopted by the Company and the potential for those strategss to succeed
Neither the Company nor its Drectors accept o assume responsibiity to sny person for ths Annual repart o any
responsdbty 1o update any mths Ireport save as required by spphcable laws of regutation

Cautlonary statement regarding forward looking statements

Thes Annuat report contains forward looking statements that are based on cutrent expectations or bekefs as well
as assumptions about fyture events These forward looking statements can be identrhed by the fact that they do
not relate only to histoncalor current facts Fatward looking statemwnts.often use words suchas an Kipate

tans expect eshmmate’ n end” plan g:arbﬁeve ‘will may' ‘should ‘would could” of other words of
smilar me. Undue rekance not be placed on any such statements because, by ther very nature they
are subject to knoan and unknawn ks and uertantses and can be sffectad by ather factors that covld cause

actual resudts and Cable & Wrreless Commarmcations plans and obyeetves Lo differ materully from those
expressed or implied in the Forward looking statements. Furthermaore mlhin? nihs Annu:lr?nn should be
construed as aprofit forecast Thore are severd factors whiek could caune actual results to differ materially from
1hose expressed of imphedin torward looking ttatements Among the factors sre changes in the global, politic al
econemic business competitve market requlatory forces foture exchange and m*ercst rates cha ntax
rates and future business combina*on oc disposals Summaries of the patential risks faced by Cable & Wireless
Communy afions aTe set oat on pages 31ta 3l

Cable & Wreless Comemunications Cannot guarantee future results. levels of actvity performance

or achevements Cable & Wareess ComMunicitnns undertskes no obhgation to revise of update any forward
looking statement ¢ d wthm thes t regardiess of whether those sta*ements are affected as &
resutt of new snformation, fUTLIC EVents or otherwe save as requred by apphcable lrws of tegutaticn
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